P’ N
TC Traverse City

Qe Housing Commission
_ a Public Housingg Authority

COMMISSION MEETING MATERIAL

FOR THE REGULAR MEETING
Friday, September 27, 2019 at 8:00 A.M.

LOCATION:

SECOND FLOOR COMMITTEE ROOM — GOVERNMENTAL CENTER
400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684



N
Tc Traverse City

HOUSING

P Housing Commission

a Public Housing Authority

TABLE OF CONTENTS

September 27, 2019 Annual Meeting Agenda................. .4
August 23, 2019 Regular Meeting MInULEs ..aassssarasnnsimssisisrmssimmii sl 7
Schedule of Disbursements for August 2019 for Public HOUSING ......ccovieviievceeeeeiieeeiieieeeen 11
Schedule of Disbursements for August 2019 for HCV Section 8 Programs .........cceeeeevveevvemeerenen. 14
INVOICES TOr SEPLEMBEr 2019 ..ottt e e eaesasesreeres e eresbaeaeestsearessanessesssesensassnanes 17
Financial Statements AUBUSE 2019 .....iiiiiiiiiiiieieeeie et esescscsesaeesaeeesaesnsasseeesnesensesessnnesnneans 22
September 23, 2019 Executive & Finance Committee Meeting MinuUtes .........ccecevevveveerveernennn 34
September 19, 2019 Governance & Compliance Committee Meeting Minutes .........cccovvevveunas 35
Executive Director’s Report for September 2019 ... seee s sees e sesieeeaiens 38
Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Report for September 2019 ......ovoveeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeereenenns 39
Resident Council Report for SEptemMber 2019 ........oouvieieiireiieieeeeceiees et ecteseiaesreereessaesssserasens 41
Fiscal Year 2020 Consolidated Budget (AUBUSE 2019) ...vueieieieeeereeirereeeeeeeeeeneseenesessessssesssnsessees 54
TCHC POlicy REVIEW SChEAUIE ..ottt st teas e e b saeesaa s s e s snesansannes 57
Memorandum on RAD UPAte ......ciciiiiiiiciieciiicicciscsessesesssaeesssessessssssessesssessasesssssessnesssesssassses 39
Resolution to Adopt FY 2020 Fair MArk@t RENES ....cccuiieeeiieiiieiisesesseseeersesesssessssesessssssssssssessens 61
Resolution to Adopt FY 2020 Flat Rent Schedule for Public Housing .................. . 69
Resolution to Adopt Revised Executive Staff Succession POlCY ........ccccceveeceiviveiscevesiessivsininen. 71
Resolution to Approve Management Agreement with the ERHC ......ocueemveeeeeeeoeeieeieieeeeeenns 75
Resolution to Submit Section 18 APPliCatioNn .......c.ccocviiiiiuiiiiiiiesiieeeieeeesseiisesseseeeeeessesseessesssens 79
August 27, 2019 E-Mail from Carl Coan on HUD CFP LAWSUIT ..cceeeieeireereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeasns 99



Table of Contents Continued

Invitation to Orchardview Residents for September 25, 2019 Meeting ........ccccvvcevevveereeenennas 101
September 8, 2019 Record-Eagle Article on OrchardvieWw .......c.ccoeceveeeeeeomneeeeeeeeeeeeeeesnesnenns 102
September 16, 2019 Letter from Cunningham Limp Construction Company .........ce..eeveuee... 106
Various Documents of FY 2020 Federal BUAEEL ..........cooeuiiieiueeiecivseeciesieseeeesessiesesssnesesneenss. 107

TCHC Response Activity Plan to State of Michigan DEGLE .........c.ccocvviivieiiieieeeireesseesssesseenness 112



r -\
Tc Traverse City

HOUSING

— Housing Commission

a Public Housing Authority

MEETING AGENDA

September 27, 2019




TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION
150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684
T:(231) 922-4915 | F:(231)922-2893

esinall  TDD: (800) 649-3777
— TCHousing.org

NOTICE

THE TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A REGULAR MEETING
ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2019 AT 8:00 A.M.

SECOND FLOOR COMMITTEE ROOM — GOVERNMENTAL CENTER
400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684
(231) 995-5150

POSTED: SEPTEMBER 25, 2019

The Traverse City Housing Commission does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the
admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs or activities. Please, contact
the Traverse City Housing Commission Office, 150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684,
(231) 922-4915, to coordinate specific needs in compliance with the non-discrimination
requirements continued in Section 35.087 of the Department of Justice Regulations. Information
concerning the provisions of Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and the rights provided
hereunder, are available from the ADA Coordinator. If you are planning to attend and you have
a disability requiring any special assistance at the meeting, please notify the Executive Director

immediately.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
PUBLIC COMMENT

CONSENT AGENDA

The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items
together to be dealt with by one Commission motion without discussion. Any member of the
Commission, staff or the public may ask that any item on the Consent Agenda be removed from
and placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will automatically be
respected. If an item is not removed from the Consent Agenda the action noted on the Agenda
is approved by a single Commission action adopting the Consent Agenda (al/l items on the Consent

Agenda are printed in italics).

A. Consideration of Approval of August 23, 2019 Annual Meeting Minutes: Approval

Recommended.
B. Consideration of Approval of Schedule of Disbursements for August 2019 for Public Housing
& HCV / Section 8 Programs: Approval Recommended.
C. Review & Approval of Payment of Invoices for September 2019: Approval Recommended.
D. Review & Acceptance of Financial Statements for August 2019: Approval Recommended.

Page 1 of 2



Vi

vil

vill

Xl

Xil

COMMITTEE & COMMISSIONER REPORTS

A. Executive & Finance Committee Meeting: September 23, 2019
B. Governance & Compliance Committee Meeting: September 19, 2019

STAFF & PROGRAM REPORTS

A. Executive Director’s Report: September 2019
B. Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Report: September 2019
C. Resident Council Report: September 2019

OLD BUSINESS

A. 2020 Consolidated Budget: Review of August 2019
B. TCHC Policy Review Schedule: Review
C. Memorandum on RAD Update: Review

NEW BUSINESS

Resolution to Adopt FY 2020 Fair Market Rents: Action Required

Resolution to Adopt FY 2020 Flat Rent Schedule for Public Housing: Action Required
Resolution to Adopt Changes to the Executive Staff Succession Policy: Action Requested
Resolution to Approve Management Agreement with the ERHC: Action Required
Resolution to Submit Section 18 Application: Action Requested

moow®»p

CORRESPONDENCE

A. August 27, 2019 E-Mail from Carl Coan on HUD CFP Lawsuit

B. Invitation to Orchardview Residents for September 25, 2019 Meeting with DHHS/DEGLE/
County Health Departments

September 8, 2019 Record-Eagle Article on Orchardview

September 16, 2019 Letter from Cunningham Limp Construction Company

Various Documents of FY 2020 Federal Budget

Draft Response Activity Plan to State of Michigan

Mmoo

PUBLIC COMMENT

COMMISSIONER COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT

NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING: October 25, 2019

Page 2 of 2



V N
Tc Traverse City

HOUSING

—_— Housing Commission

a Public Housing Authority

CONSENT AGENDA

August 23, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes

Schedule of Disbursements for August 2019 for
Public Housing & HCV Section 8 Programs

Payment of Invoices for September 2019

Financial Statements for August 2019



DRAFT Meeting Minutes of the Traverse City Housing Commission
August 23, 2019

A Regular Meeting of the Traverse City Housing Commission was called to order by President Heather
Lockwood at the Government Center — Second Floor Training Room, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse

City, Michigan at 8:09 A.M.

v

ROLL CALL
The following Commissioners were present: Heather Lockwood, Roger Putman, and Jim Friend.

Andy Smits and Sarah Lucas were excused.
Staff: Tony Lentych, Executive Director, and Michelle Reardon, Deputy Director.
Residents: Norma Loper and Jeff Turner.

PUBLIC HEARING ON 2019 ADMINISTRATION PLAN FOR HCV PROGRAM

Commissioner Putman moved (Lockwood support) to open the public hearing on the 2019
Administration Plan for the HCV Program. The motion was unanimously approved and the
public hearing was called to order at 8:11 A.M.

There were no verbal or written comments from the public.

Commissioner Friend moved (Putman support) to close the public hearing. The motion was
unanimously approved and Commissioner Lockwood closed the public hearing at 8:12 A.M.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Putman moved (Friend support) to accept the agenda as presented. The motion

was unanimously approved.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

CONSENT AGENDA
Commissioner Friend moved (Putman support) to approve the Consent Agenda as tendered in the

August 23, 2019 packet. The motion was unanimously approved.

The Consent Agenda was as follows:

A. Meeting Minutes of the June 28, 2018 Annual Commission Meeting.

B. Schedule of Disbursements for June & July 2019 for Public Housing and Housing Choice
Voucher Section 8 Programs.

C. Payment of Invoices for August 2019.

D. Financial Statements for June (Year End) & July 2019.

Page 10of 4



vi COMMITTEE REPORTS
A. The meeting minutes from the July 31, 2019 and the August 13, 2019 Executive & Finance
Committee meeting were presented and accepted.
B. The meeting minutes from the July 18, 2019 & August 15, 2019 Governance & Compliance
Committee meetings were presented. There was a brief discussion.

Vil STAFF AND PROGRAM REPORTS
A. The Executive Director’s July & August 2019 Report was presented. There was a brief
discussion.
B. The July & August 2019 Family Self-Sufficiency Report was presented and accepted.
C. TheJune & July 2018 Resident Council Reports were presented and accepted.

viil OLD BUSINESS

A. The 2019 Consolidated Budget was presented and reviewed for a final time.

B. The 2020 Consolidated Budget was presented and reviewed for the month of July.

C. TCHC Policy Review Schedule was presented and reviewed. There was a brief discussion
regarding the transition of staff and the policies that might effect.

D. Staff presented a memorandum on activities with the RAD Program and selected handouts
from the recent HUD forum on “repositioning” in Charlevoix, Michigan were reviewed.
There was a discussion regarding the funding information under the RAD program.

X NEW BUSINESS
A. Staff presented a memorandum regarding the RTRC & TCHC Memorandum of
Understanding and a draft of the MOU was presented and discussed. Commissioner
Putman moved (Friend support) to authorize staff to finalize the negotiations and to execute
the final document. The motion was unanimously approved.

B. Staff presented a memorandum regarding a FSS Escrow Disbursement due to Graduation.
Commissioner Lockwood moved (Friend support) to disburse $5,422.35 as outlined in the
memo provided in the August 23, 2019 packet. The motion was unanimously approved.

C. Commissioner Putman moved (Lockwood support) to adopt the Resolution to Change
Authorized Signers on Financial Accounts as presented in the August 23, 2019 packet.

Roll Call

Lockwood Yes
Friend Yes
Putman Yes
Lucas Excused
Smits Excused

The resolution was adopted.

D. Commissioner Friend moved (Putman support) to adopt the Resolution to Adopt the 2019
HCV Administration Plan as presented in the August 23, 2019 Packet.

Roll Call
Friend Yes

Page 2 of 4



X

Putman Yes

Lockwood Yes
Lucas Excused
Smits Excused

The resolution was adopted.

E. Commissioners Putman moved (Lockwood support) that the Traverse City Housing
Commission enter into a closed session immediately following the second public comment
section of today’s agenda in order to discuss a privileged attorney-client communication per
MCL 15.268(e).

Roll Call

Putman Yes
Lockwood Yes
Friend Yes
Lucas Excused
Smits Excused

The motion was approved.

CORRESPONDENCE
Six items of correspondence were presented and accepted.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

Note: Commissioner Lockwood called for a recess so that the Commission could enter into a
closed session at 8:47 A.M.

CLOSED SESSION

Commissioner Lockwood called the regular meeting back to order at 9:07 A.M.

Commissioner Friend moved (Lockwood support) to instruct TCHC staff to begin the work
necessary to complete HUD Form 52860 on Inventory Removal and the HUD Addendum Form
52860-A and such additional action as may be required in connection with the Section 18
Removal & Conversion Program for the property known as Orchardview Townhomes.

There was a detailed conversation with TCHC attorney Ward Kuhn about the practicality of this
action. It was noted that there will be another vote prior to the final submission of the forms to
HUD. Upon the advice of counsel, Commissioner Lockwood then called for a roll call vote.

Roll Call

Lockwood Yes
Friend Yes
Putman Yes
Lucas Excused

Page 3 of 4



X

X

Smits Excused
The motion was approved.

COMMISSIONER COMMENT
None.

ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Friend moved (Putman support) to adjourn the meeting and Commissioner
Lockwood closed the meeting at 9:20 A.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Reardon, Recording Secretary

Heather Lockwood, President

Page 4 of 4

10



Date: 09/24/2019
Time: 14:31:13

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report

Chemical Bank

From: 08/01/2019 To: 08/31/2019

Page:

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
08/01/2019 DEP 3,111.00 55,468.82
08/02/2019 EFT Internal Revenue Service 2,996.24 52,472.58
08/02/2019 EFT T Mobile 2,404.00 54,876.58
08/02/2019 DEP 7,822.37 62,698.95
08/02/2019 DEP 2,678.00 65,376.95
08/05/2019 EFT U.S. Dept. of HUD 5,602.00 70,978.95
08/05/2019 EFT U.S. Dept. of HUD 29,742.00 100,720.95
08/07/2019 DEP 27,550.50 128,271.45
08/08/2019 DEP 424.30 128,695.75
08/08/2019 038890 Traverse City Record Eagle 343.20 128,352.55
08/08/2019 038891 Environmental Pest Control 290.00 128,062.55
08/08/2019 038892 Spectrum Business 187.75 127,874.80
08/08/2019 038893 The Home Depot Pro Multifamily 763.89 127,110.91
08/08/2019 038894 Sherwin Williams Co. 58.41 127,052.50
08/08/2019 038895 Anthony Lentych 73.31 126,979.19
08/08/2019 038896 Barton Carroll's Inc 72.00 126,907.19
08/08/2019 038897 Ace Hardware 166.00 126,751.19
08/08/2019 038898 Kendall Electric Inc 65.26 126,685.93
08/08/2019 038899 Allen Supply 890.82 125,795.11
08/08/2019 038900 Ace Welding & Machine Inc 150.00 125,645.11
08/09/2019 038901 B & T APPLIANCE 25.00 125,620.11
08/09/2019 038902 Otis Elevator Company 7,588.73 118,031.38
08/09/2019 038903 Kuhn Rogers PLC 3,423.00 114,608.38
08/09/2019 038904 DTE ENERGY 64.50 114,543.88
08/09/2019 038905 City of Traverse City, Treasurer's 216.00 114,327.88
08/09/2019 038906 Joseph Frawley 140.76 114,187.12
08/09/2019 038907 City of Traverse City, Treasurer's 636.97 113,550.15
08/09/2019 038908 D & W Mechanical 581.00 112,969.15
08/09/2019 038909 Northern Greenlawn 284.00 112,685.15
08/09/2019 038910 Grand Traverse Cty. Treasurer 56.07 112,629.08
08/09/2019 038911 Accident Fund 3,151.00 109,478.08
08/09/2019 038912 Verizon Wireless 58.05 109,420.03
08/09/2019 038913 Justin Sailors 34.56 109,385.47
08/09/2019 038914 Byte Productions, LLC 30.00 109,355.47
08/09/2019 038915 David Gourlay 265.06 109,090.41
08/09/2019 038916 Engineered Protection Systems Inc 127.26 108,963.15
08/09/2019 038917 Thomas P. Licavoli 670.00 108,293.15
08/09/2019 038918 Nuisance Animal Control 290.00 108,003. .15
08/09/2019 038919 AT&T 459.04 107,544.11'11'
08/09/2019 038920 Great Lakes Business Systems, Inc. 124.37 107,419.74




Date: 09/24/2019
Time: 14:31:14

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report

Chemical Bank
From: 08/01/2019 To: 08/31/2019

Page:

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
08/09/2019 038921 Housing Data Systems, Inc. 145.00 107,274.74
08/09/2019 038922 Snap Printing 86.00 107,188.74
08/09/2019 038923 Total Attention 2,609.29 104,579.45
08/09/2019 038924 City Of Traverse City 165.89 104,413.56
08/09/2019 038925 Grand Traverse County DPW 483.00 103,930.56
08/09/2019 038926 McCardel Water Conditioning 34.50 103,896.06
08/09/2019 038927 Cardmember Service 2,632.17 101,263.89
08/09/2019 038928 City Of Traverse City 121.80 101,142.09
08/09/2019 038929 DTE ENERGY 52.20 101,089.89
08/13/2019 ADJST Alisa Kroupa 1,278.56 99,811.33
08/13/2019 ADJST Anthony Lentych 2,528.28 97,283.05
08/13/2019 ADJST Michelle Reardon 1,467.01 95,816.04
08/13/2019 ADJST Angela N. Szabo 950.16 94,865.88
08/13/2019 ADJST Joseph Battaglia 298.90 94,566.98
08/13/2019 ADJST Joseph Frawley 1,192.83 93,374.15
08/13/2019 ADJST David Gourlay 1,.213.66 92,160.49
08/13/2019 ADJST Justin Sailors 369.98 91,790.51
08/13/2019 ADJST Henry Webb 406.48 91,384.03
08/13/2019 ADJST Chemical Bank 121.14 91,262.89
08/13/2019 EFT Principal Life Insurance Co. 759.96 90,502.93
08/16/2019 EFT Internal Revenue Service 2,881.74 87,621.19
08/20/2019 EFT State Of Michigan 1,456.07 86,165.12
08/21/2019 DEP 6,250.03 92,415.15
08/23/2019 038930 Casey McCotter 5,422.35 86,992.80
08/23/2019 038931 Ethos Development Partners 5,000.00 81,992.80
08/23/2019 038932 Riverview Terrace Resident Council 1,725.00 80,267.80
08/26/201¢ EFT U.S. Dept. of HUD 8,7569.19 89,026.99
08/26/2019 DEP 1,277.00 90,303.99
08/26/2019 DEP 392.10 90,696.09
08/26/2019 038933 Collier's Pest Control 350.00 90,346.09
08/26/2019 038934 Northern Greenlawn 213.00 90,133.09
08/26/2019 038935 Home Depot Credit Services 892.72 89,240.37
08/26/2019 038936 SAM'S CLUB 405,35 88,835.02
08/26/2019 038937 Save Carpet USA 5,797.00 83,038.02
08/26/2019 038938 Nahro Professional Development 532.68 82,505.34
08/26/2019 038939 Michigan NAHRO 45.00 82,460.34
08/26/2019 038940 Housing Authority Accounting 1,099.41 81,360.93
08/26/2019 038941 D & W Mechanical 2,098.40 79.262.‘5:'3‘
08/26/2019 038942 Integrated Payroll Services, Inc. 169.35 79,093.le§
08/26/2019 038943 Safety Net 864.00 78,229.18



Date: UY/44/2019
Time: 14:31:14

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report

Chemical Bank

From: 08/01/2019 To: 08/31/2019

Page:

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
08/26/2019 038944 City Of Traverse City 10,961.26 67,267.92
08/26/2019 038945 Anthony Lentych 289.25 66,978.67
08/26/2019 038946 DTE ENERGY 48.70 66,929.97
08/26/2019 038947 Staples Business Advantage 98.43 66,831.54
08/26/2019 038948 Johnson Controls 1,142.26 65,689.28
08/26/2019 038949 AT&T 166.21 65,623.07
08/26/2019 038950 State Of Michigan 250.00 65,273.07
08/26/2019 038951 Republic Services #239 913.79 64,359.28
08/26/2019 038952 CynergyComm.net,Inc 11.00 64,348.28
08/26/2019 038953 Ace Hardware 156.00 64,192.28
08/26/2019 038954 AmRent 203.55 63,988.73
08/26/2019 038955 Vision Service Plan 72.09 63,916.64
08/26/2019 038956 Spectrum Business 3,471.64 60,445.00
08/26/2019 038957 Priority Health 675.36 59,769.64
08/26/2019 038958 Environmental Pest Control 65.00 59,704.64
08/27/2019 ADJST Alisa Kroupa 1,278.55 58,426.09
08/27/2019 ADJST Anthony Lentych 2,528.28 55,897.81
08/27/2019 ADJST Michelle Reardon 1,530.13 54,367.68
08/27/2019 ADJST Angela N. Szabo 950.16 53,417.52
08/27/2019 ADJST Joseph Battaglia 217.68 53,199.84
08/27/2019 ADJST Joseph Frawley 1,227.07 51,972.77
08/27/2019 ADJST David Gourlay 1,094.39 50,878.38
08/27/2019 ADJST Justin Sailors 287.96 50,590.42
08/27/2019 ADJST Henry Webb 622.23 49,968.19
08/27/2019 ADJST Chemical Bank 121.14 49,847.05
08/27/2019 038945 **VOID** Anthony Lentych ( 289.25) 50,136.30
08/27/2019 038959 Michelle Reardon 289.25 49,847.05
08/30/2019 EFT Internal Revenue Service 2,904.89 46,942.16
08/30/2019 DEP 1,305.00 48,247.16
08/30/2019 DEP 1,695.00 49,942.16
Total: 101,428.15 99,012.49

13



Date: 09/24/2019
Time: 14:33:20

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8

From: 08/01/2019 To: 08/31/2019

Page:

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
08/01/2019 EFT U.S. Dept. of HUD 8,239.00 146,051.65
08/01/2019 EFT U.S. Dept. of HUD 103,972.00 250,023.65
08/01/2019 ADJST PNC Bank 77.10 249,946.55
08/01/2019 000232 TC Commons | LDHA, LLC 258.00 249,688.55
08/01/2019 000232 Jeana Aiken 602.00 249,086.55
08/01/2019 000232 Dustin Ansorge 1,250.00 247,836.55
08/01/2019 000232 Anthony Ansorge 731.00 247,105.55
08/01/2019 000232 Ayers Investment Properties LLC 728.00 248,377.55
08/01/2019 000232 B & RRENTALS, LLC 778.00 245,599.55
08/01/2019 000232 Bay Front Apartments 359.00 245,240.55
08/01/2019 000232 Bay Hill Housing LDHALP 7,271.00 237,969.55
08/01/2019 000232 Bay Hill 1| 8,638.00 229,331.55
08/01/2019 000232 Elizabeth Beckett 312.00 229,019.55
08/01/2019 000232 Bellaire Senior Apartments 304.00 228,715.55
08/01/2019 000232 Brookside Commons LDHA, LP 3,046.00 225,669.55
08/01/2019 000232 Brown Elder Apartments LLC 177.00 225,492.55
08/01/2019 000232 irma Jean Brownley 136.00 225,356.55
08/01/2019 000232 Rebecca Carmien 288.00 225,068.55
08/01/2019 000232 Carson Square 5,930.00 219,138.55
08/01/2019 000232 Chris R. Frank 958.00 218,180.55
08/01/2019 000232 Central Lake Townhouses 390.00 217,790.55
08/01/2019 000232 Cherrywood Village Farms, Inc. 3,125.00 214,665.55
08/01/2019 000232 Douglas A. Chichester 650.00 214,015.55
08/01/2019 000232 Davis Investment Properties, LLC 671.00 213,344.55
08/01/2019 000232 Jack V. Dean 417.00 212,927.55
08/01/2019 000232 Zachary Duell 1,200.00 211,727.55
08/01/2019 000232 East Bay Properties 584.00 211,143.55
08/01/2019 000232 Chester Farrell 499.00 210,644.55
08/01/2019 000232 Five P Enterprises, LLC 477.00 210,167.55
08/01/2019 000232 Lisa Forbes 531.00 209,636.55
08/01/2019 000232 Mabel Foust 446.00 209,190.55
08/01/2019 000232 Frankfort Housing LDHA LP 297.00 208,893.55
08/01/2019 000232 Michael Glowacki 707.00 208,186.55
08/01/2019 000232 David Grzesiek 393.00 207,793.55
08/01/2019 000232 Habitat for Humanity 331.00 207,462.55
08/01/2019 000232 Matthew Hamminga 1,200.00 206,262.55
08/01/2019 000232 Harbour Ridge Apts 1,159.00 205,103.55
08/01/2019 000232 Leonard Herman 524.00 204,579.‘55-
08/01/2019 000232 Hillview Terrace 1,575.00 203,004.153‘
08/01/2019 000232 Josh Hollister 403.00 202,601.55




Date: 09/24/2019
Time: 14:33:20

Ti'averse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report

PNC - Section 8
From: 08/01/2019 To: 08/31/2019

Page:

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
08/01/2019 000232 HomeStretch 3,058.00 199,543.55
08/01/2019 000232 Nancy Irish 572.00 198,971.55
08/01/2019 000232 Donna Kalchik 304.00 198,667.55
08/01/2019 000232 Kalkaska Woods Limited Partnership 302.00 198,365.55
08/01/2019 000232 Bruce W. Korson 420.00 197,945.55
08/01/2019 000232 Lake Pointe Acquisitions LLC. 307.00 197,638.55
08/01/2019 000232 Sidney Lammers 397.00 197,241.55
08/01/2019 000232 John J. Lewis 310.00 196,931.55
08/01/2019 000232 Don E. Lint 502.00 196,429.55
08/01/2019 000232 Maret Sabourin 514.00 195,915.55
08/01/2019 000232 Sue Martin 658.00 195,257.55
08/01/2019 000232 Robert J. Mork 390.00 194,867.55
08/01/2019 000232 Kim Lien Thi Nguyen 974.00 193,893.55
08/01/2019 000232 Oak Park Apts 1,361.00 192,532.55
08/01/2019 000232 Oak Terrace Apts 720.00 191,812.55
08/01/2019 000232 Daniel G. Pohiman 893.00 190,919.55
08/01/2019 000232 Douglas L. Porter 418.00 190,501.55
08/01/2019 000232 Timothy Rice 340.00 190,161.55
08/01/2019 000232 Sabin Pond Apartments LLC 126.00 190,035.55
08/01/2019 000232 Eldon Schaub 377.00 189,658.55
08/01/2019 000232 Mike & Melissa Schichtel 1,100.00 188,558.55
08/01/2019 000232 Sherwin Rentals 1,212.00 187,346.55
08/01/2019 000232 Samuel Shore 986.00 186,360.55
08/01/2019 000232 Gerald Sieggreen 741.00 185,619.55
08/01/2019 000232 SILVER SHORES MHC 3,979.00 181,640.55
08/01/2019 000232 Mark & Cheryl Snyder 497.00 181,143.55
08/01/2019 000232 Ryan Storey 360.00 180,783.55
08/01/2019 000232 22955 Investments LLC 1,879.00 178,904.55
08/01/2019 000232 Traverse City Property Management 51.00 178,853.55
08/01/2019 000232 TCR Investments, LLC 491.00 178,362.55
08/01/2019 000232 TCWFH 688.00 177,674.55
08/01/2019 000232 Wendy Teagan 502.00 177,172.55
08/01/201¢ 000232 TEAMCO PROPERTIES, LLC 394.00 176,778.55
08/01/2019 000232 TOS Holdings, LLC 781.00 175,997.55
08/01/2019 000232 Tradewinds Terrace Apts 289.00 175,708.55
08/01/2019 000232 Village Apartments LDHA 387.00 175,321.55
08/01/201¢ 000232 Village Glen Apartments 7,939.00 167,382.55
08/01/2019 000232 Village View Housing LHDA LP 1,476.00 165,906._5&:1
08/01/2019 000232 Village Woods 1,633.00 164,273.%5:>
08/01/2019 000232 Wagner Asset Group at Ninth Street, 732.00 163,541.55




Date: 09/24/2019 Traverse—Ci;}-l l-I.c;using Commission _Page-:
Time: 14:33:20 Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8

From: 08/01/2019 To: 08/31/2019

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
08/01/2019 000232 Paul Wheelock 602.00 162,939.55
08/01/2019 000232 Susette Redman Wilson 1,000.00 161,939.55
08/01/2019 000232 Woda Boardman Lake LDHA.LP 943.00 160,996.55
08/01/2019 000232 Woodmere Ridge Apartments LDHA 3,888.00 157,108.55
08/01/2019 000232 Wyatt Road Apartment Company 1,178.00 155,930.55
08/01/2019 000232 Theodore V. Zachman 887.00 155,043.55
08/01/2019 000232 Barb Zupin 493.00 154,550.55
08/01/2019 023150 PK Housing 698.00 153,852.55
08/01/2019 023151 Kevin Warren 540.00 153,312.55
08/07/2019 DEP 1,029.86 154,342.41
08/15/2019 022938 **VOID** DTE ENERGY ( 809.00) 155,151.41
08/26/2019 023152 Traverse City Housing Commission 21,103.06 134,048.35
08/26/2019 023153 Chase Bank 6,685.00 127,363.35
08/26/2019 023154 Cherryland Electric Cooperative 147.20 127,216.15
08/26/2019 023155 City Of Traverse City 147.10 127,069.05
08/26/2019 023156 Consumers Energy 81.20 126,987.85
08/26/2019 023157 DTE ENERGY 280.20 126,707.65
08/26/2019 023158 Lisa L. Forbes 14.00 126,693.65
08/26/2019 023159 Holtons LP Gas Fife Lake 6.30 126,687.35
Total: 124,366.16 113,240.86

16



Date: 09/24/2019
Time: 14:32:34

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report
Chemical Bank
From: 09/01/2019 To: 09/20/2019

Page:

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
09/03/2019 EFT U.S. Dept. of HUD 5,602.00 55,544.16
09/03/2019 EFT U.S. Dept. of HUD 29,742.00 85,286.16
09/03/2019 DEP 36,813.06 122,099.22
09/03/2019 DEP 7,194.37 129,293.59
09/04/2019 DEP 8,842.00 138,135.59
09/05/2019 DEP 5,706.00 143,841.59
09/05/2019 038960 Perfect Fence Co. 5,679.50 138,162.09
09/06/2019 DEP 7,483.02 145,645.11
09/10/2019 ADJST Alisa Kroupa 1,278.55 144,366.56
09/10/2019 ADJST Anthony Lentych 2,528.29 141,838.27
09/10/2019 ADJST Michelie Reardon 1,698.52 140,139.75
09/10/2019 ADJST Angela N, Szabo 850.17 139,189.58
09/10/2019 ADJST Joseph Battaglia 298.90 138,890.68
09/10/2019 ADJST Joseph Frawley 1,227.08 137,663.60
09/10/2019 ADJST David Gourlay 1,219.94 136,443.66
09/10/2019 ADJST Justin Sailors 435.18 136,008.48
09/10/2019 ADJST Henry Webb 564.70 135,443.78
09/10/2019 ADJST Chemical Bank 121.14 135,322.64
09/10/2019 EFT Principal Life Insurance Co. 778.84 134,543.80
09/11/2019 DEP 1,214.50 135,758.30
09/12/2019 111.00 135,869.30
09/12/2019 472,70 136,342.00
09/13/2019 EFT Internal Revenue Service 3,065.39 133,276.61
09/13/2019 038961 All American Investment Group, LLC 9,486.76 123,789.85
09/13/2019 038962 The Inspection Group 1,200.00 122,589.85
09/13/2019 038963 Traverse Outdoor 590.85 121,999.00
09/13/2019 038964 Collier's Pest Control 300.00 121,699.00
09/13/2019 038965 Advantage Electric, LLC 295.04 121,403.96
09/13/2019 038966 Summit Companies 136.27 121,267.69
09/13/2019 038967 Grand Traverse Cty. Treasurer 56.07 121,211.62
09/13/2019 038968 Byte Productions, LLC 30.00 121,181.62
09/13/2019 038969 Environmental Pest Control 208.80 120,972.82
09/13/2019 038969 **VOID** Environmental Pest Control ( 208.80) 121,181.62
09/13/2019 038970 Roto-Rooter of Northern Michigan 222.25 120,959.37
09/13/2019 038971 Grand Traverse County DPW 483.00 120,476.37
09/13/2019 038972 AT&T 419.54 120,056.83
09/13/2019 038973 Traverse City Record Eagle 432.00 119,624.83
09/13/2019 038974 Integrated Payroll Services, Inc. 112.90 119,51 1;9_(?
09/13/2019 038975 Total Attention 1,025.00 1 18,486%95
09/13/2019 *VOID** Total Attention ( 1,025.00) 119,511.93

038975




Date: 09/24/2019 Traverse City Housing Commission
Time:  14:32:34 Check Register Summary Report
Chemical Bank
From: 09/01/2019 To: 09/20/2019

Page:

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
09/13/2019 038976 Great Lakes Business Systems, Inc, 265.24 119,246.69
09/13/2019 038977 Spectrum Business 3,656.62 115,590.07
09/13/2019 038978 Dolly's Best Inc. 800.00 114,790.07
09/13/2019 038979 Elmer's 4,575.00 110,215.07
09/13/2019 038980 City Of Traverse City 175.24 110,039.83
09/13/2019 038981 Northern Greenlawn 293.00 109,746.83
09/13/2019 038982 AmRent 123.90 109,622.93
09/13/2019 038983 Republic Services #239 1,961.82 107,661.11
09/13/2019 038984 CynergyComm.net,Inc 22.73 107,638.38
09/13/2019 038985 Allen Supply 15.52 107,622.86
09/13/2019 038986 Housing Authority Accounting 2,806.32 104,816.54
09/13/2019 038987 Safety Net 1,989.12 102,827.42
09/13/2019 038988 Environmental Pest Control 2,977.00 99,850.42
09/13/2019 038989 Verizon Wireless 392.30 99,458.12
09/13/2019 038990 Justin Sailors 32.83 99,425.29
09/13/2019 038991 Joseph Frawley 121.85 99,303.44
09/13/2019 038992 David Gourlay 156.25 99,147.19
09/13/2019 038993 DTE ENERGY 129.61 99,017.58
09/16/2019 038994 Engineered Protection Systems Inc 208.80 98,808.78
09/17/2019 2,726.14 101,534.92
09/20/2019 EFT State Of Michigan 968.57 100,566.35
Total: 55,282.60 105,906.79

18



Date: 09/24/2019
Time: 14:33:54

Traverse City Hoilsing Commission

Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8

From: 09/01/2019 To: 09/20/2019

Page:

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
09/03/2019 EFT U.S. Dept. of HUD 8,239.00 134,926.35
09/03/2019 EFT U.S. Dept. of HUD 100,785.00 235,711.35
09/03/2019 ADJST PNC Bank 77.45 235,633.90
09/03/2019 000233 TC Commons | LDHA, LLC 258.00 235,375.90
09/03/2019 000233 Jeana Aiken 602.00 234,773.90
09/03/2019 000233 Dustin Ansorge 1,250.00 233,523.90
09/03/2019 000233 Anthony Ansorge 731.00 232,792.90
09/03/2019 000233 Ayers Investment Properties LLC 728.00 232,064.90
09/03/2019 000233 B & R RENTALS, LLC 790.00 231,274.90
09/03/2019 000233 Bay Front Apartments 359.00 230,915.90
09/03/2019 000233 Bay Hill Housing LDHALP 7,271.00 223,644.90
09/03/2019 000233 Bay Hill 1 8,681.00 214,963.90
09/03/2019 000233 Elizabeth Beckett 280.00 214,683.90
09/03/2019 000233 Bellaire Senior Apartments 304.00 214,379.90
09/03/2019 000233 Brookside Commons LDHA, LP 3,053.00 211,326.90
09/03/2019 000233 Brown Elder Apartments LLC 205.00 211,121.90
09/03/2019 000233 Irma Jean Brownley 136.00 210,985.90
09/03/2019 000233 Rebecca Carmien 288.00 210,697.90
09/03/2019 000233 Carson Square 5,930.00 204,767.90
09/03/2019 000233 Chris R. Frank 931.00 203,836.90
09/03/2019 000233 Central Lake Townhouses 390.00 203,446.90
09/03/2019 000233 Cherrywood Village Farms, Inc. 3,125.00 200,321.90
09/03/2019 000233 Douglas A. Chichester 650.00 199,671.90
09/03/2019 000233 Davis Investment Properties, LLC 671.00 199,000.90
09/03/2019 000233 Jack V. Dean 417.00 198,583.90
09/03/2019 000233 Zachary Duell 1,200.00 197,383.90
09/03/2019 000233 East Bay Properties 584.00 196,799.90
09/03/2019 000233 Chester Farrell 499.00 196,300.90
09/03/2019 000233 Five P Enterprises, LLC 477.00 195,823.90
09/03/2019 000233 Lisa Forbes 531.00 195,292.90
09/03/2019 000233 Mabel Foust 439.00 194,853.90
09/03/2019 000233 Frankfort Housing LDHA LP 297.00 194,556.90
09/03/2019 000233 Michael Glowacki 685.00 193,871.90
09/03/2019 000233 David Grzesiek 393.00 193,478.90
09/03/2019 000233 Habitat for Humanity 331.00 193,147.90
09/03/2019 000233 Matthew Hamminga 1,200.00 191,947.90
09/03/2019 000233 Harbour Ridge Apts 1,159.00 190,788.90
09/03/2019 000233 Leonard Herman 524.00 190,264.?(1
09/03/2019 000233 Hillview Terrace 1,675.00 188,689,53
09/03/2019 000233 Josh Hollister 403.00 188,286.90




Date: 09/24/2019
Time: 14:33:54

Traverse City Housing Commission
Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8
From: 09/01/2019 To: 09/20/2019

Page:

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
09/03/2019 000233 HomeStretch 3,015.00 185,271.90
09/03/2019 000233 Nancy Irish 560.00 184,711.90
09/03/2019 000233 Donna Kalchik 304.00 184,407.90
09/03/2019 000233 Kalkaska Woods Limited Partnership 302.00 184,105.90
09/03/2019 000233 Bruce W. Korson 420.00 183,885.90
09/03/2019 000233 Lake Pointe Acquisitions LLC. 307.00 183,378.90
09/03/2019 000233 Sidney Lammers 397.00 182,981.90
09/03/2019 000233 Don E. Lint 502.00 182,479.90
09/03/2019 000233 Maret Sabourin 514.00 181,965.90
09/03/2019 000233 Sue Martin 658.00 181,307.90
09/03/2019 000233 Robert J. Mork 390.00 180,917.90
09/03/2019 000233 Kim Lien Thi Nguyen 966.00 179,951.90
09/03/2019 000233 TOS Holdings, LLC 771.00 179,180.90
09/03/2019 000233 Oak Park Apts 1,385.00 177,795.90
09/03/2019 000233 Oak Terrace Apts 720.00 177,075.90
09/03/2019 000233 Daniel G. Pohiman 893.00 176,182.90
09/03/2019 000233 Douglas L. Porter 539.00 175,643.90
09/03/2019 000233 Timothy Rice 340.00 175,303.90
09/03/2019 000233 Sabin Pond Apartments LLC 126.00 175,177.90
09/03/2019 000233 Eldon Schaub 377.00 174,800.90
09/03/2019 000233 Mike & Melissa Schichtel 1,100.00 173,700.90
09/03/2019 000233 Sherwin Rentals 1,212.00 172,488.90
09/03/2019 000233 Samuel Shore 986.00 171,502.90
09/03/2019 000233 Gerald Sieggreen 741.00 170,761.90
09/03/2019 000233 SILVER SHORES MHC 3,979.00 166,782.90
09/03/2019 000233 Mark & Cheryl Snyder 497.00 166,285.90
09/03/2019 000233 Ryan Storey 360.00 165,925.90
09/03/2019 000233 22955 Investments LLC 1,853.00 164,072.90
09/03/2019 000233 Traverse City Property Management 51.00 164,021.90
09/03/2019 000233 TCR Investments, LLC 491.00 163,530.90
09/03/2019 000233 TCWFH 688.00 162,842.90
09/03/2019 000233 Wendy Teagan 502.00 162,340.90
09/03/2019 000233 TEAMCO PROPERTIES, LLC 394.00 161,946.90
09/03/2019 000233 Tradewinds Terrace Apts 289.00 161,657.90
09/03/2019 000233 Village Apartments LDHA 387.00 161,270.90
09/03/2019 000233 Village Glen Apartments 7,793.00 153,477.90
09/03/2019 000233 Village View Housing LHDA LP 1,476.00 152,001.90
09/03/2019 000233 Village Woods 1,633.00 150,368.90
09/03/2019 000233 Wagner Asset Group at Ninth Street, 732.00 149,636§8
09/03/2019 000233 Paul Wheelock 602.00 149,034.90




Date: 09/24/2019
Time: 14:33:54

Traverse City Housing Commission

Check Register Summary Report

PNC - Section 8
From: 09/01/2019 To: 09/20/2019

Page:

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
09/03/2019 000233 Susette Redman Wilson 1,000.00 148,034.90
09/03/2019 000233 Woda Boardman Lake LDHA.LP 959.00 147,075.90
09/03/2019 000233 Woodmere Ridge Apartments LDHA 4,590.00 142,485.90
09/03/2019 000233 Whyatt Road Apartment Company 1,178.00 141,307.90
09/03/2019 000233 Theodore V. Zachman 887.00 140,420.90
09/03/2019 000233 Barb Zupin 493.00 139,927.90
09/03/2019 023160 PK Housing 698.00 139,229.90
09/03/2019 023161 Kevin Warren 328.00 138,901.90
09/04/2019 DEP 100.00 139,001.90
Total: 96,809.45 109,124.00

21



Traverse City Housing Commission
Low Rent Public Housing
Balance Sheet

As of August 31, 2019
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash

1111.1 - General Fund $ 93,152.71

1111.9 - Cash-Short Term Investments 411,351.92

1116 - Debt Svc. Reserve-CFFP (Restricted) 26,876.38

1117 - Petty Cash Fund 230.61

1118 - Laundry Coin Fund 50.00
Total Cash $ 531,661.62
Receivables

1122 - Tenants $ 93.29

1122.1 - Aliowance for Doubtful Accounts (696.51)

1125 - Accounts Receivable - HUD 7,937.28

1129.1 - Accounts Receivable-Other (7,300.71)

1129.11 - Interfund Due From Vouchers 10,069.93

1130 - Accounts Receivable-TAHDC 1,177.27

1145 - Accrued Interest 528.79
Total Receivables $ 11,809.34
Investments

1162 - Investments $ 53,280.78
Total Investments $ 53,280.78
Deferred Charges

1211 - Prepaid Insurance $ 27,312.10

1290 - Other Deferred Charges (1,700.00)
Total Deferred Charges $ 2561210
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ 622,363.84
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

1300 - Investments in Joint Ventures $ 75,000.00
Fixed Assets

1400.5 - Accumulated Depreciation $ (7,172,648.99)

1400.6 - Land 297,665.49

1400.61 - Site Improvements 404,676.02

1400.7 - Buildings 3,618,326.64

1400.71 - Building Improvements 3,985,147.91

1400.72 - Non-dwelling Structures 349,405.97

1400.8 - Furn., Equip., Mach.-Dwellings 103,727.20

1400.9 - Fumn., Equip., Mach.-Admin 253,410.96
Total Fixed Assets $ 1,839,711.20
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS $ 1,914,711.20

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,537,075.04

22



Traverse City Housing Commission
Low Rent Public Housing
Balance Sheet
As of August 31, 2019

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
2111 - Vendors and Contractors
2114 - Tenant Security Deposits
2117.3 - State Income Tax Withheld
2117.4 - HSA Withheld
2117.7 - AFLAC Withheld
2119 - Accts Payable-Other
Total Accounts Payable

Accrued Liabilities
2130.1 - Notes Payable-ST (Deutsche Bank)-CFFP

2130.2 - Notes Payable ST (AAIG)-EPC
2135 - Salaries and Wages

2135.1 - Compensated Absences-Short Term
2135.2 - Accrued Payroll Taxes

2136 - Accrued Liabilities-Other

2137 - Payments in Lieu of Taxes

Total Accrued Liabilities

Deferred Credits
2290 - Other Deferred Credits

2690 - Undistributed Deposits After Cutoff
Total Deferred Credits

Total Current Liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
2315 - Notes Payable-LT (Deutsche Bank)-CFFP
2316 - Notes Payable LT-EPC
2435.1 - Compensated Absences-Long Term

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
2806.1 - Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt

Net Assets
2806 - Unrestricted Net Assets

2807 - Restricted Net Assets

Income and Expense Clearing
Income and Expense Clearing-2018 CFP

Total Net Assets
TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES/EQUITY

10,168.92
38,413.00
968.57
7.40
329.30
4.360.00

54,247.19

34,894.98
32,705.34
9,253.26
4,840.91
645.84
9,686.04
31,159.75

123,186.12

994.51
300.00

1,294.51

178,727.82

328,939.07

88,909.54
1,670.02

419,418.63

598,146.45

1,363,104.07

473,070.70
75,000.00
18,994.88

8,758.94

575,824.52

1,938,928.59

2,637,075.04

23



Operating Income
Rental Income
3110 - Dwelling Rental
3110.2 - Dwelling Rental-Proj. 2
3120 - Excess Utilities
3190 - Nondwelling Rental

Total Rental Income

Revenues - HUD PHA GRANTS
3401.2 - Operating Subsidy

Total HUD PHA GRANTS

Nonrental Income
3610 - Interest Income-Gen. Fund
3690 - Tenant Income
3690.1 - Non-Tenant Income
3690.2 - Tenant Income-Cable
3692 - Management Fee

Total Nonrental Income

Total Operating Income

Operating Expenses
Routine Expense

Administration
4110 - Administrative Salaries

4130 - Legal Expense

4140 - Staff Training

4150 - Travel Expense

4170 - Accounting Fees

4171 - Auditing

4182 - Employee Benefits - Admin
4185 - Telephone

4190.1 - Publications

4190.2 - Membership Dues and Fees
4190.3 - Admin. Service Contracts
4190.4 - Office Supplies

4190.5 - Other Sundry Expense
4190.6 - Advertising

Total Administration

Tenant Services
4220 - Rec., Pub., & Other Services
4230 - Cable TV-Tenants

Total Tenant Services

Traverse City Housing Commission
Low Rent Public Housing
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 2 Months Ended August 31, 2019
1 Month Ended 2 Months Ended

August 31, 2019 August 31, 2019 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER
$ 32,340.00 $ 64,690.00 $ 445,000 § 380,310.00
6,800.00 12,080.00 0 (12,080.00)
111.00 238.00 0 (238.00)
7,989.37 15,380.74 85,000 69,619.26
$ 47,24037 $ 92,388.74 § 530,000 $ 437,611.26
$ 29,742.00 $ 67,141.00 $ 260,000 $ 192,859.00
$ 29,742.00 $ 67,141.00 $§ 260,000 $ 192,859.00
$ 22562 $§ 471.99 § 2,750 §$ 2,278.01
189.00 772.00 5,000 4,228.00
1,216.25 2,413.50 50,000 47,586.50
2,225.00 4,450.00 33,000 28,550.00
4,931.18 24,153.36 32,000 7,846.64
$ 8,787.05 $ 32,260.85 $ 122,750 § 90,489.15
5 85,769.42 $§ 191,790.59 $ 912,750 $ 720,959.41
$ 9,786.76 $ 2473204 $ 138,790 § 114,057.96
3,423.00 3,606.30 18,000 14,393.70
395.38 395.38 5,950 5,554.62
408.13 735.00 4,700 3,965.00
450.16 900.32 8,500 7,599.68
0.00 0.00 4,000 4,000.00
492.81 5,368.34 30,010 24,641.66
852.46 1,535.98 7,500 5,964.02
0.00 0.00 800 800.00
157.05 184.55 1,000 805.45
1,276.07 2,677.15 21,770 19,092.85
161.79 272.67 4,200 3,927.33
5,709.34 7,092.62 11,900 4,807.38
0.00 0.00 1,500 1,500.00
$ 23,11295 § 47,510.35 $ 268,620 §$ 211,109.65
$ 1,968.66 $ 2,202.76 $ 9,500 $ 7,297.24
3,471.64 6,943.28 40,000 33,066.72
5 5,440.30 $ 9,146.04 $ 49,500 $ 40,353.96

1

24



Traverse City Housing Commission
Low Rent Public Housing
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 2 Months Ended August 31, 2019

Utilities
4310 - Water
4320 - Electricity
4330 - Gas
Total Utilities

Ordinary Maint. & Operations
4410 - Labor, Maintenance
4420 - Materials
4430.02 - Heating & Cooling Contracts
4430.03 - Snow Removal Contracts
4430.04 - Elevator Maintenance Contracts
4430.05 - Landscape & Grounds Contracts
4430.06 - Unit Tumaround Contracts
4430.07 - Electrical Contracts
4430.08 - Plumbing Contacts
4430.09 - Extermination Contracts
4430.10 - Janitorial Contracts
4430.11 - Routine Maintenance Contracts
4430.12 - Misc. Contracts
4431 - Garbage Removal
4433 - Employee Benefits - Maint.

Total Ordinary Maint. & Oper

General Expense
4510 - Insurance
4520 - Payment in Lieu of Taxes
4550 - Compensated Absences
4570 - Collection Losses
4586 - Interest Expense-CFFP

Total General Expense
Total Routine Expense
Non-Routine Expense
Extraordinary Maintenance
4610.3 - Confract Costs
Total Extraordinary Maintenance

Casualty Losses-Not Cap.
Total Casualty Losses

Total Non-Routine Expense
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Depreciation Expense

4800 - Depreciation - Current Year
Total Depreciation Expense

1 Month Ended 2 Months Ended

August 31, 2019 August 31, 2019 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER
$ 2,791.51 $ 454965 $ 17,500 $ 12,950.35
8,818.64 16,565.76 145,000 128,434.24

93.95 274.73 22,000 21,725.27

$ 11,704.10 § 21,390.14 § 184,500 $ 163,109.86
$ 9,430.57 $ 23,406.42 § 135570 $ 112,163.58
4,850.86 7,106.04 39,500 32,393.96

2,679.40 2,794.40 6,000 3,205.60

0.00 0.00 5,000 5,000.00

7,838.73 7,838.73 9,500 1,661.27

3,106.29 4,323.79 10,000 5,676.21

670.00 2,710.00 18,000 15,290.00

0.00 0.00 1,000 1,000.00

0.00 353.70 2,500 2,146.30

995.00 1,285.00 3,000 1,715.00

0.00 0.00 1,000 1,000.00

1,426.03 3,226.03 15,000 11,773.97

150.00 963.32 15,000 14,036.68

913.79 1,756.93 8,000 6,243.07

2,396.16 8,810.74 48,760 39,949.26

$ 34,456.83 § 64,575.10 $ 317,830 § 253,254.90
$ 2,697.31 § 5469.16 $ 31,500 $ 26,030.84
2,083.34 4,166.68 25,000 20,833.32
0.00 0.00 (1,000) (1,000.00)

0.00 0.00 3,000 3,000.00

0.00 0.00 33,000 33,000.00

$ 4,780.65 § 9,635.84 $ 91,500 $ 81,864.16
$ 79,494.83 $ 152,257.47 $ 901,950 §$ 748,692.53
$ 257.86 $ 7,757.86 $ 10,000 $ 2,242.14
$ 257.86 $ 7,757.86 $ 10,000 $ 2,242.14
$ 0.00 $ 0.00 § 0 $ 0.00
$ 257.86 $ 7.757.86 $ 10,000 $ 2,242.14
$ 79,752.69 $ 160,015.33 $ 911,950 $ 751,934.67
$ 6,016.73 $ 31,775.26 § 800 § (30,875.26)
$ 15,729.82 § 31,459.74 § 0 $ (31,459.74)
$ 15,729.82 § 3145074 $ 03 (31,458.74)




Traverse City Housing Commission
Low Rent Public Housing
Income & Expense Statement

For the 1 Month and 2 Months Ended August 31, 2019

1 Month Ended 2 Months Ended

August 31, 2019 August 31, 2019 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER
Surplus Credits & Charges
Total Surplus Credits & Charges § 0.00 § 0.00 $ 0 $ 0.00
Capital Expenditures
7540 - Betterments and Additions $ 13,859.00 $ 13,859.00 § 20,000 § 6,141.00
7590 - Operating Expenditures-Contra (13,859.00) (13,859.00) 0 13,859.00
Total Capital Expenditures $ 0.00 § 0.00 § 20,000 $ 20,000.00
Other Financial Iltems
8010 - Operating Transfers In $ 18,679.36 § 18,679.36 $ (109,000) $  (127,679.36)
Total Other Financial items $ 18,679.36 § 18,679.36 $ (109,000) §  (127,679.36)
HUD Net Income (Loss) $ 10,837.09 § 36,595.62 $ 89,800 § 53,204.38
GAAP Net Income (Loss) $ 8,966.27 §$ 18,994.88 § (128,200) $  (147.194.88)
3

26



Traverse City Housing Commission
Housing Choice Voucher Program
Balance Sheet

As of August 31, 2019
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash

1111.1 - General Fund $ 126,665.20

1111.6 - FSS Escrow Savings 66,274.52
Total Cash $ 192,939.72
Receivables
Total Receivables $ 0.00
Investments
Total Investments $ 0.00
Deferred Charges
Total Deferred Charges $ 0.00
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ 192,939.72
Fixed Assets

1400.5 - Accumulated Depreciation $ (5,259.28)

1400.9 - Fum., Equip., Mach.-Admin 6,057.13
Total Fixed Assets $ 797.85

TOTAL ASSETS $ 193,737.57




Traverse City Housing Commission
Housing Choice Voucher Program
Balance Sheet
As of August 31, 2019

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
2111 - Vendors and Contractors $ 1,569.17
2119.21 - Interfund Due To Low Rent 10,069.93
Total Accounts Payable $ 11,639.10
Accrued Liabilities
2135 - Salaries and Wages $ 3,399.98
2135.1 - Compensated Absences-Short Term 2,295.85
2135.2 - Accrued Payrall Taxes 230.22
2182 - FSS Escrow Trust 63,471.39
Total Accrued Liabilities $ 69,397.44
Deferred Credits
Total Deferred Credits $ 0.00
Total Current Liabilities $ 81,036.54

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

2435.1 - Compensated Absences-Long Term $ 448.20
Total Noncurrent Liabilities $ 448.20
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 81,484.74
NET ASSETS

Net Assets
2806 - Unrestricted Net Assets $ 104,911.56
2826 - Operating Reserve-Admin 126,396.57
2826.01 - Operating Reserve-HAP (20,937.45)
2826.1 - Operating Reserve-Contra (105,459.12)
Income and Expense Clearing 11,907.45
Income and Expense Clearing - FSS (4,566.18)
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 112,252.83
TOTAL LIABILITIES/NET ASSETS $ 193,737.57




Traverse City Housing Commission
Housing Choice Voucher Program
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 2 Months Ended August 31, 2019
1 Month Ended 2 Months Ended
August 31, 2019 August 31, 2019 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER
Operating Reserve Income

3390 - Fraud Recovery Income $ 50.00 $ 100.00 $ o} (100.00)

3603 - Number of Unit Months (181.00) (362.00) 0 362.00

3604 - Unit Months - Contra 181.00 362.00 0 (362.00)
Total Operating Reserve Income $ 50.00 $ 100.00 § 0 (100.00)
Revenues - HUD PHA GRANTS

3410 - HAP Funding $ 103,972.00 $ 207,944.00 $ 1,130,000 922,056.00

3411 - Admin Fee Funding 8,239.00 19,348.00 67,200 47,852.00
Total HUD PHA GRANTS $ 112,211.00 § 227,292.00 § 1,197,200 9689,908.00
Income Offset HUD A.C.

3310 - Portable Admin Fee 39.86 119.58 0 (119.58)
Total Income Offset 39.86 119.58 0.00 (119.58)
Total Operating Income $ 112,300.86 $ 227,511.58 § 1,197,200 969,688.42
Operating Expenses

Routine Expense
Administration

4110 - Administrative Salaries $ 317489 % 8,007.18 § 105,290 97,282.82

4120 - Compensated Absences 0.00 0.00 (500) (500.00)

4130 - Legal Expense 0.00 11.70 2,000 1,988.30

4140 - Staff Training 182.30 182.30 2,550 2,367.70

4150 - Travel Expense 105.56 135.72 2,800 2,664.28

4170 - Accounting Fees 649.25 1,298.50 10,500 9,201.50

4171 - Auditing 0.00 0.00 2,000 2,000.00

4182 - Employee Benefits - Admin 502.91 2,529.65 31,360 28,830.35

4185 - Telephone 143.71 280.31 3,200 2,919.69

4190.1 - Publications 0.00 0.00 500 500.00

4190.2 - Membership Dues and Fees 0.00 37.50 1,000 962.50

4190.3 - Admin. Service Contracts 546.89 888.15 9,330 8,441.85

4190.4 - Office Supplies 69.33 78.23 2,200 2,121.77

4190.5 - Other Sundry Expense 234.01 794.51 5,100 4,305.49
Total Administration $ 5608.85 § 1424375 § 177,330 163,086.25
General Expense

4590 - Other General Expense $ 0.00 $ 3438 § 0 (34.38)
Total General Expense $ 000 $ 3438 § 0 (34.38)
Total Routine Expense $ 5608.85 $ 14,278.13  § 177,330 163,051.87

1

29



Traverse City Housing Commission
Housing Choice Voucher Program
Income & Expense Statement

For the 1 Month and 2 Months Ended August 31, 2019

Housing Assistance Payments
4715.1 - HAP - Occupied Units

4715.3 - HAP - Non-Elderly Disabled
4715.4 - HAP - Utility Allowances
4715.5 - HAP - Fraud Recovery
4715.6 - HAP - Homeownership
4715.61 - HAP-Homeownership URP
4715.8 - HAP - Portable Paying Out
4715.9 - HAP - Portable Receiving
4715.91 - HAP - Portable Rec. Reimb.
4719 - HAP - FSS Escrow

Total HAP Payments

Depreciation Expense
Total Depreciation Expense

Total Operating Expense

Capital Expenditures
Total Capital Expenditures

GAAP Net Income (Loss)
Memo:

Admin Operating Income/(Loss)

Analysis of Funding
A.C. Received: August 31, 2019
3410 - HAP Funding

A.C. Earned
4715.1 - HAP - Occupied Units
4715.3 - HAP - Non-Elderly Disabled
4715.4 - HAP - Utility Allowances
4715.5 - HAP - Fraud Recovery
4715.6 - HAP - Homeownership
4715.61 - HAP-Homeownership URP
4715.8 - HAP - Portable Paying Out
4715.9 - HAP - Portable Receiving
4715.91 - HAP - Portable Rec. Reimb.
4719 - HAP - FSS Escrow

Total Funding Required

Over/(Under) Funding

RNP as of: August 31, 2019
UNP as of: August 31, 2019

1 Month Ended

2 Months Ended

August31.2019  August31.2019  PBUDGET  *QVERIUNDER

92,466.00 $ 185,722.00 $ 1,100,000 $ 914,278.00
1,816.00 3,633.00 0 (3,633.00)
662.00 1,324.00 0] (1,324.00)
(50.00) (100.00) 0 100.00
1,462.00 2,612.00 0 (2,612.00)
14.00 28.00 0 (28.00)
0.00 817.00 0 (817.00)
890.00 1,780.00 0 (1,780.00)
(890.00) (890.00) s} 890.00
3,095.00 6,400.00 0 (6,400.00)
99,465.00 § 201,326.00 $§ 1,100,000 $ 898,674.00
000 § 000 § 0 3 0.00
105,073.85 $ 215,604.13 § 1277330 $ 1,061,725.87
000 $ 0.00 % 0§ 0.00
722701 $ 11,90745 § (80130) § (92,037 .45)
2,630.15 $ 5069.87 $ (110,130) $ (115,199.87)

2 Months Ended

August 31, 2019

$ 207,944.00

185,722.00

3,633.00

1,324.00

(100.00)

2,612.00

28.00

817.00

1,780.00

(890.00)

6,400.00

$ 201,326.00

$ 6,618.00

$ 2,878.58

5 125,646.71

2

30



Operating Reserve income

Traverse City Housing Commission

Voucher FSS Program
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 2 Months Ended August 31, 2019

1 Month Ended

Total Operating Reserve Income $ 0.00

Revenues - HUD PHA GRANTS

3412 - FSS Grant Revenue
Total HUD PHA GRANTS

Income Offset HUD A.C.
Total Income Offset

Total Operating Income

Operating Expenses
Routine Expense

Administration
4110 - Administrative Salaries

4182 - Employee Benefits - Admin
4190.1 - Publications

Total Administration

General Expense
Total General Expense

Total Routine Expense

2 Months Ended

August 31,2019 August 31, 2019 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER
$ 0.00 0 0.00

$ 5,602.00 $ 11,204.00 0 (11,204.00)
$ 5,602.00 $ 11,204.00 0 {11,204.00)
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

$ 5602.00 $ 11,204.00 0 (11,204.00)
$ 3,697.10 $ 9,307.68 55,800 46,492.32
993.73 6,064.50 19,070 13,005.50

0.00 398.00 0 (398.00)

$ 4,690.83 $ 15,770.18 74,870 59,099.82
$ 0.00 $ 0.00 0 0.00
$ 4,690.83 $ 15,770.18 74,870 §9,009.82

31



Traverse City Housing Commission

Housing Assistance Payments
Total HAP Payments

Depreciation Expense
Total Depreciation Expense

Total Operating Expense

Surplus Credits & Charges
Total Surplus Credits & Charges

Capital Expenditures
Total Capital Expenditures

GAAP Net Income (Loss)

Voucher FSS Program
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 2 Months Ended August 31, 2019

1 Month Ended

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 4,690.83
$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 911.17

2 Months Ended
Auqust 31, 2019 BUDGET *OVER/UNDER
0.00 o] 0.00
0.00 0 0.00
15,770.18 74,870 59,099.82
0.00 4] 0.00
0.00 0 0.00
(4,566.18) (74,870) (70,303.82)

32



G

Traverse City
Housing Commission

a Public Housing Authority

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Executive Committee Meeting: September 23, 2019

Governance Committee Meeting: September 19, 2019

33



DRAFT Meeting Minutes of the Traverse City Housing Commission

Executive & Finance Committee
September 23, 2019

A regular meeting of the Executive Committee of the Executive & Finance Committee of the Traverse
City Housing Commission was called to order by President Heather Lockwood at 3:30 P.M.

ROLL CALL
The following Commissioners were present: Heather Lockwood, President, and Andy Smits, Past

President.

CORRESPONDENCE
A letter from the Construction Company working on the site next door was distributed and briefly
discussed and well as an update on HUD CFP Lawsuit.

AGENDA
The following Agenda items were discussed:

A. The minutes of the August 13, 2019 meeting minutes were reviewed and accepted.

B. There was a lengthy discussion regarding staffing within the TCHC office. It was noted that two
policies, Succession Plan and the By-Laws, would be effected with the new organizational chart
that was shared in the meeting. The changes to the Succession Plan Policy were recommended
by the Governance Committee and it was recommended that the minutes of the next regular
meeting should reflect the change in the Board’s Secretary Position. The By-Laws will be
amended in the spring should the change becomes permanent.

C. Staff provided an update on the Orchardview issue and the upcoming meeting for the residents.
It was decided that Commission Smits can provide a history of the land (from the original site
assessment documents) as requested by DEGLE. Staff was encouraged to provide the Response
Activity Plan (RAP) in the Board Packet.

D. The Agenda for the September 27, 2019 Regular Meeting was discussed. There will be some
pro-forma resolutions on rents and a resolution to submit a Section 18 application as requested

by HUD.

ADJOURNMENT
President Lockwood adjourned the meeting at 5:02 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Heather Lockwood, President &
Tony Lentych, Executive Director

Page 1of 1

34



DRAFT Meeting Minutes of the Traverse City Housing Commission

Governance & Compliance Committee
September 19, 2019

The Regular Meeting of the Traverse City Housing Commission Governance & Compliance Committee
was called to order in the Community Room, 150 Pine Street, Traverse City at 10:05 A.M.

| ROLL CALL
The following Resident Members were present: Ellen Corcoran and Norma Loper.
Commissioners: Roger Putman. Commissioner Jim Friend was excused.
Staff: Tony Lentych, Executive Director, and Martha Falk, Intake Intern.
Residents: Vivian Arnold, Jeff Turner, and Linda Woodcock.

| APPROVAL OF AGENDA & REVIEW OF MINUTES
The meeting minutes from the August 15, 2019 meeting of this committee and the agenda for

this meeting were accepted by the committee.

i PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

v UPDATES
A. The Policy Review Schedule was presented and reviewed.
B. The committee discussed the Lower Boardman River Planning project there may be an
update at the next DDA meeting on September 20, 2019. There was a brief discussion on the
second parcel next door (on the river) and what may or may not be place there.

\" OLD BUSINESS

A. There is no update on the Safety & Evacuation Plan.

B. There is no update on the TCHC Lease.

C. There was nothing new on the RAD financing plan.

D. There was a lengthy conversation about the parking issue at Riverview Terrace. There was
some concern about the loss of trees should the parking lot be re-designed to include more
parking spots. It was noted that no decisions have been made.

E. A proposed crosswalk in front of Riverview Terrace that would allow residents to completely
avoid the construction site was presented and discussed. This design was a result of the
construction company visiting the RTRC monthly meeting the previous week.

Vi NEW BUSINESS
A. The update to the Elk Rapids Housing Commission was presented and reviewed. There were

no issues discussed.

B. Staff presented a draft organizational chart for the TCHC office. There was a discussion and
general consensus that the restructuring made sense.

C. As aresult of the restructuring, it was noted that the Executive Succession Plan needed to
be revisited and updated. The proposed updates were presented and discussed.

D. The Procurement Policy was briefly discussed but no action was taken. It was noted that the
only major change would be on notification to the Commission on certain contracts that is

based not only on dollar amount but length of contract.

Page 1 0f 2
35



vil

Vil

PUBLIC COMMENT
General Comments: Ellen Corcoran and Linda Woodcock.

ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Putman moved (Loper support) to adjourn the meeting at 11:01 A.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Tony Lentych, Executive Director

Page2of2

36



P Housing Commission

a Public Housing Authority

STAFF & PROGRAM REPORTS

Executive Director’s Report: September 2019

Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Report: September 2019
Resident Council Report: September 2019

37



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT: September 27, 2019

This report covers the work accomplished from August 23, 2019 until September 27, 2019. Please
contact me directly should you have any questions or wish to receive more information about any items

highlighted in this report.

Strategic Goal 1 | Expand affordable housing inventory and range of options.

Current Properties

1. Riverview Terrace: We have one unit open and it will be filled next week.

2. Orchardview: There is one unit open at this time. We expect two more in the next month as
well.

Housing Choice Vouchers

1. We have 180 HCV filled at this time. No one is looking for housing at this time and we don’t
anticipate issuing any new vouchers in the near term but we will be adding one new voucher on
a VOWA exemption (HUD approved). We are still working with HUD every month to work on
our predicted overage of approximately $15k. That represents about a 0.014% of program
overage. Technically, we are told that we have a program for 208 Vouchers but with living costs
in this region, we can never fill that many without going over budget.

Projects & Potential Projects

1. EAST BAY FLATS: This continues to consume a lot of time as we try to lease up additional units.
Currently, we are about 75% leased up. We continue to get a steady stream of applications and
we are working out our operational activities on this site including maintenance and emergency

maintenance.

2. RAD: We continue to work on this with our consultants. | anticipate that this work will ramp up
next month.

3. Continued conversations with partners to implement Homeless Youth Housing — continued to
ensure that the program is successful.

4. Attended several meetings with Bay Area Transit Authority and others, including County
officials, about a potential project. We are now examining another potential property that will
be the same concept. Both properties are on the table.

Page 10of 3
38



Create opportunities for residents to improve quality of life and achieve

StrategicGoal2 | . .. .
& individual successes.

1. Continued to work on new Housekeeping & Sanitary Standards Policy.

2. Attended meeting of the RTRC.

Strategic Goal 3 | Foster an environment of innovation and excellence.

Financial

1. Prepared monthly financial reports for August 2019.

General Management

1. Deputy Director has departed and staffing has been shuffled. We plan to finalize all new job
duties over the next 60 days. We hired an intern to cover some of the duties during the

transition.

2. Continued work on internal Policy Review. Reviewed Executive Succession Policy.

Office IT

1. Met with IT company employees to plan activities and upgrades as employees move.

TCHC

1. Attended one Commission Meeting (August) and prepared for another (September).
2. Prepared for and attended an Executive & Finance Committee meeting.
3. Prepared for and attended a Governance & Compliance Committee meeting.

4, Met with Insurance Company employee on annual compliance inspection.

1. Prepared for and attended a Commission Meeting (September).

2. Coordinated staff activities to implement management contract (schedules, duties, etc.).

Page 2 of 3
39



FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY (FSS) PROGRAM REPORT

September 27, 2019

Current SEMAP Status

SEMARP (Section 8 Management Assessment Program) reporting places the program in the
“High Performer” category:

i Number of Families with % of Families with
Number of Number of % of Families
o Progress Reports & Progress Reports &
Mandatory Slots Families Enrolled Enrolled
Escrow Balances Escrow Balances
21 19 90% 13 68%

Program Manager Update

I have been meeting with current FSS clients and continue to schedule appointments to
update their goal plans. | have been talking to clients about FSS as they come in for their
recertification. We are not issuing new vouchers at this time so enrollment for new
participants has slowed. | am attending the Family Support Team monthly meeting hosted by
Father Fred next month to learn more about local resources for our clients.

Status of Participants

Current participants are showing progress and continuously working to meet their goals. We
have one participant that will be doing a two-year extension on her contract. This will allow
her time to take the last six (6) credits needed for her degree. Two families from Orchardview
are newly enrolled and are looking forward to the services the program offers. We will be
sitting down and completing their Individual Training Service Plan (ITSP) this month.

FSS Grant

We continue to make monthly draws on our grant but the RFP for the next Fiscal Year has not
been released yet.

Page 10f 1

40



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN |49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 27, 2019
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directﬁ\/
SUBJECT: Riverview Terrace Resident Council (RTRC) Updates

MESSAGE:

Attached are the monthly financial reports from RTRC for the month of August 2019. The
financial reporting continues to be completed in a timely and thorough manner. Once again, |
received all the information and there have been no mistakes in accounting. The MOU is has
been signed and the tenant participation funds have been forwarded to them.

Also attached, RTRC Vice President, Laura Cole, submitted a letter to be included this month’s
packet that covers their activities each month.

ATTACHMENT: Letter from RTRC President
Financial Reports
Memorandum on Tenant Participation Funding
Copy of Signed MOU

Pagelof1l
41



RIVERVIEW TERRACE RESIDENT COUNCIL REPORT
FOR TCHC BOARD PACKET SEPTEMBER 2019

BIRTHDAY BASH
The Birthday Bash on September 11" went
well with 13 Residents in attendance.

RAD / GOVERNANCE MEETINGS
| was not able to attend the RAD or Governance Committee Meetings because |

was out of State, but | will get an update from Norma when | get back.

RTRC MEETING
Our RTRC meeting was held on September 12'. Tony attended. He talked about

the Bed Bug situation. They have it under control at this point, but encouraged
people to report it to the office if they think they have them. The Project
Manager from the development next door also attended. He had information
about their next steps in the development. They are doing everything possible to
make sure that our residents will be safe.

BY-LAW’s

Ellen suggested that we change the BY-LAW’s so that council members would
serve a one year term instead of a two year term. It was voted on and accepted
unanimously by 16 members. A copy of the BY-LAW's, signed officers, will be

available in October.

Respectfully Submitted,
Vice President Laura Cole .

RECEIVED

SEP 1 8 2013

Traverse City
Housing Commission 42




6102 ‘T€ 31snbny fo so Juarin)

TLEP0°C  $ =1V10L ANVYD
00°00T S =ysn) Anad
00°'S $ =ssbuinps [proy
1uawWalels yueg sienby
TL'8€6°T TL'8E6'T TL'8E6'T TL°8E6'T 1L'8€6'T TL8E6'T  $ | OT'09% S x1V101 W03
v1'v0T A% 1" vi'vot vi'v0T ri'voT Y101 S 6£°L9T ) Jviol ans
8 3 - S S pung s8uines
E . ST°¢9 S 8LWL S sosuadx3
- - - = - - S 1599 S awodu|
yT¥0T 10T YTv01 PTv0T Y101 6€°/91 S 09°S/T S piemio] aduejeq pajdLisasun
LSYEST LSVES'T LS'vER'T LS'VES'T LSVER'T LSVER'T $ TLT6T ) Tviol ans
) = YT €8T S 00001 S sasuadx3
= - . - > 00'STLT S - S awoouy
LSVEST LS'VERT LSVEST LSPE]'T LSPE]T 12°76C S T/.T6E S piemio] asuejeg pajlisay
aunf 29Q AON PO 1das 8ny Ajng

020Z-6T0C Ad

[12UNO) JUBPISAY IIBUID| MIIAIDALY

43



AT

LAKE MICHIGAN CREDIT UNION

P.O. Box 2848

Grand Rapids, MI 49501-2848
LAKE

MICHICAN " RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED

CREDAT LINJON

76077 1 AV 0.383 131439-7L077-327
U O UL U N B BT R TR T T
RIVERVIEW TERRACE RESIDENT COUNCIL

150 PINE ST # MB1
TRAVERSE CITY MI 49684-2478

Summary-Share Accounts

Your Statement Of Accounts
08/01/2019-08/31/2019

Your Account Number
xxxxxx1794

Page 1

LMCU’ s 3% Max Checking Account pays you
interest on balances of up to $15,000.
Plus, there are no monthly fees, no
minimum balance required, and you'll
have free access to over 55,000 ATMs.

Stop by your local branch, visit

LMCU.org, or call us at (800) 242-9790

to open your free account today.

REC

Beginning Ending
ID# Type Balance Balance SEP 0 9 2013
00 MEMBER SAVINGS $5.00 $5.00
01 FREE CHECKING $460.10 $1,938.71 Traverse City
Total $1,943.71 Housing Commission
MEMBER SAVINGS Share Account ID 00
Trans Eff Date Transaction Withdrawal Deposit Balance
Aug 01 Beginning Balance $5.00
Aug 31 Ending Balance $5.00
FREE CHECKING Share Account ID 01
Total Deposits $1,726.00
Total Withdrawals $246.39
Trans Eff Date Transaction Withdrawal Deposit Balance
Aug 01 Beginning Balance $4€0.10
Aug 02 Aug 02 Draft 1169 Tracer 042000010257078 ($81.16) $378.94
Processed Check - Spectrum
TYPE: Check Pmt ID: 3431843260
DATA: Charter///0000004019
Aug 12 Aug 12 Draft 1170 Tracer 042000019129137 ($39.99) $338.95
Processed Check - Spectrum
TYPE: Check Pmt ID: 3431843260
DATA: Charter///0000004019
Aug 13 Aug 13  Withdrawal POS #922513914959 ($63.25) $275.70
MEIJER 033 TRAVERSE CITY MI
Aug 19 Aug 19 Withdrawal POS #923100214724 ($22.00) $253.70
USPS PO 25932006 202 S UNION ST TRAVERSE
CITY MI
Aug 23 Aug23 Draft 1171 Tracer 042000014614489 ($39.99) $213.71
Processed Check - Spectrum
TYPE: Check Pmt |D: 3431843260
DATA: Charter///0000004019
Aug 26 Aug 26 Deposit by Check $1,725.00 $1,938.71
Aug 31 Ending Balance $1,938.71
Checking Account Summary
Chk# Date Amount Chki# Date Amount Chk# Date Amount
0 1169 Aug 02 $81.16 O 1170 Aug 12 $39.99 O 117 Aug 23 $39.99
Total Checks Cleared 3 $161.14
The Asterisk (*) indicates a break in check sequence.

LAKE MICHIGAN CREDIT UNION e P.O. Box 2848 e Grand Rapids, MI 49501-2848
(R16Y 2479790 @ 1-R0N-247-.979N e wrarar lmen Aro

44



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 27, 2019
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Director & Jo Simerson, President RTRC
SUBIJECT: Riverview Terrace Resident Council Funding

MESSAGE:

After reviewing the files for the Riverview Terrace Resident Council (RTRC) fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019. | have determined that the RTRC has managed and tracked its allocation of
tenant participation funds in a more than adequate manner and | have released the funds for
this fiscal year. It should be noted that an updated and fully executed three-year Memorandum

of Understanding is now in place.

FY 2019: All funding was reported to the Commission on a monthly basis. We were provided direct access to the
official bank statements and no expenditures where outside of their proposed budget throughout the year. Also,
it should be noted that the RTRC reported to all residents during their regular monthly meetings and these reports
segregated tenant participation funds from all other funds received whether earned or unearned {program income

vs. donations or gifts).

FY 2020: The RTRC has submitted an appropriate budget for this fiscal year. Nothing on this budget would be
considered outside the normal allowable activities for a resident council utilizing tenant participation funds. Staff
continues to work with RTRC leadership to monitor budget items on an excel spread sheet. This allows for more
tracking activities to be recorded which improves monthly reporting. All other reporting and recording activities
will continue as previously submitted. It should also be noted that the RTRC remains a 501(c)(3) in good standing
with both the state and the federal government.

By signing this document, the TCHC and RTRC agree to continue the appropriate recording and
reporting requirements for all tenant participation funds allocated for Riverview Terrace in

Fiscal Year 2020.

S A— 219

Jo/Smerson, President, RTRC Date
% é/lﬂ% /( E-2C . 2017
Tez{w Lentych ecutive Dw/éctor,z/CHC Date

45
Page 1 of 1



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

WHEREAS, the Traverse City Housing Commission (TCHC) has owned and successfully operated
the Riverview Terrace housing development for nearly forty years and has worked diligently to
provide an enjoyable and peaceful environment for its residents; and

WHEREAS, the currently established and duly elected Riverview Terrace Resident Council
(Resident Council) is a formally recognized nonprofit entity in good standing with the State of
Michigan (ID No. 71656F) and the Internal Revenue Service that was established to encourage
resident involvement in creating a positive living environment; and

WHEREAS, TCHC and Resident Council desire to enter into a collaborative relationship to
support the tenants of the Riverview Terrace in accordance with the understanding of the
implementation of the provisions of 24 C.F.R. 964; and

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between TCHC and the Resident Council as follows:

1. Upon execution of this MOU, TCHC will formally recognize the Resident Council and
consider it to be the voice of the majority of Riverview Terrace residents.

2. TCHC will, when appropriate, communicate through the Resident Council President on
issues regarding the resident’s overall enjoyment of Riverview Terrace.

3. The Resident Council will, when appropriate, communicate through the Executive
Director on issues regarding the resident’s overall enjoyment of Riverview Terrace.

4. TCHC will accept an approved motion or an adopted resolution as identified in the By-
Laws of the Resident Council as the “will” of the residents on all matters of significance
or urgency.

5. TCHC will disperse Tenant Participation Funds to the Residents Council in a timely
manner and in accordance with 24 C.F.R. 964.150:

(a) Funding duly elected resident councils.

(1) The Housing Authority shall provide funds it receives for this purpose to the duly elected
resident council at each development... as provided by 24 CFR part 990, to permit HAs to
fund $25 per unit per year for units represented by duly elected resident councils for resident
services.... Of this amount, $15 per unit per year would be provided to fund tenant
participation activities under subpart B of this part for duly elected resident councils... and
$10 per unit per year would be used by the HA to pay for costs incurred in carrying out
tenant participation activities under subpart B of this part.... This will guarantee the resources
necessary to create a bona fide partnership among the duly elected resident councils, the HA

and HUD.

Page 1 of 2
46



6. The Resident Council will provide a proposed budget in advance of disbursement and
will report financial activity to the TCHC Executive Director in a timely manner which
includes both monthly and annual financial reports in accordance with 24 C.F.R.
964.150:

(3) Funding provided by a HA to a duly elected resident council may be made only under a
written agreement between the HA and a resident council, which includes a resident council
budget and assurance that all resident council expenditures will not contravene provisions of
law and will promote serviceability, efficiency, economy and stability in the operation of the
local development. The agreement must require the local resident council to account to the
HA for the use of the funds and permit the HA to inspect and audit the resident council's
financial records related to the agreement.

7. TCHC agrees to provide an “office” to the Resident Council on the third floor of the
building. Located within the Community Room of Riverview Terrace, this office has an
estimated value for rent of $300.00 per month and is intended for the sole purpose of
Riverview Terrace resident business as directed through the duly adopted by-laws.
Additional office support will be provided from time to time and in a case by case
manner that may include but will not be limited to the following: assistance with the
purchase of, or donation of, office supplies and office equipment; the provision of office
furniture; and assistance, when appropriate, in communication with all building
residents through newsletters, memorandums, or building-wide fliers.

8. This MOU will be in effect for three years from the date of execution but may be
terminated by either party with sixty (60) days written notice.

We, the undersigned, have read and agree with this MOU:

/ M (\‘—;) Qt_dd‘ﬂ’,/]uﬁiftm e’

Tony Len/{ych for the/ Jo-Simerson, for the
Traverse City Housing Commission, its Riverview Terrace Resident Council, its
Executive Director President

DATE: ﬂf 26 - F2¢/5 DATE: S A b~RkD1 T

Page 2 of 2
47



DRAFT  RIVERVIEW TERRACE RESIDENT COUNCIL
MINUTES SEPTEMBER 12. 2019

Welcome and Call To Order : Time: 2:00pm
Pledge Of Allegiance:
Roll Call: Quorum: 23

- Jo Simmerson. Pres. (*) Laura Cole, Vice Pres. (*) Norma Loper Sec.(*)
Louis Kanan, Treas.(-)

Introduction of Guests:
.Ex Dir. Tony Lentych,
. Steve Morra, Project Manager
.Mark Federinchic, Superintendent
Secretary'sreport:

.Norma Loper.Sec. ....... StandasRead
Treasurer's report;
.Jo Simerson, (Mr.Kanan Absent) .......... Stand as Read

Old Business:
A. September Birthday Bash was well attended as always with

cake and ice cream served. There were 13 people there.
B. By Laws voting August 16, 2019
1. Article visection 3 #1 (NOT amended )
2.. Article vii section 1#4 (amended)

New Business:
A. Election information is in this months Gazzette.
1.Also, you will be getting more information or reminders

here each month.
B.TFAP (freefood) September 23, 2019 @ 2:00pm
Public Comment:

RECEIVED

SEP 16 2019

Traverse City
Housing Commission 48



Council Comment:
A.We suspended Article viii - Amendments to By-Laws
for purpose of Special Election to change Term of Office.
B. Motion by Jo. seconded by Lois : To change the term of
office from two (2) yearsto one (1) year.
Motion passed: 16 -yes 0-no
C.Term of any office is now one (1) year.
Motion to Adjourn: Time: 2:49pm
by: Lois seconded by: Debbie Adjourned!
Next Meeting:
October 18,2019 @ 2:00 pm

RECEIVED
SEP 16 2019

Traverse City
Housing Commission

49



RIVERVIEW TERRACE RESIDENT COUNCIL
FINANCIAL REPORT SEPTEMBER 9, 2019

RESTRICTED FUNDS
*BeginNinNg BalanCe ..ot e cramrsseame snseemanssenses $292.71
“EXPONSOS amississsiismmssisinssiiios -$183.14
Balance........ $109.57
VDEPOSIT ....ceerticieneerranseceteesserernentesnrsssnessasasssanaaananns +51.725.00
$1,834.57
**RESTRICTED FUNDS FINAL BALANCE ......... $1,834.57
UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
*Beginning Balance .........cuciceneccincsernrsassensssenessserssasssseas $167.39
~Expenses ...........- eeesensnssnsansasrsanannanasasen -$63.25
Balance......... $104.14
**UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
FINAL BALANCE .......coooeeeeeceeneneaneecennnssassensens $104.14
**RESTRICTED / UNRESTRICTED FINAL BALANCE ............. $1938.71
SAVINGS ............... $5.00
PETTY CASH ......... $100.00
$1938.71
$100.00
+ $5.00
GRAN® TOTlk $2,043.71

50



DRAFT RIVERVIEW TERRACE RESIDENT COUNCIL
MINUTES AUGUST 16, 2019

Welcome and Call to Order: Time: 2:00pm
Pledge Of Allegiance:
Roll Call: Quorum: 19 yes

Jo Simerson, Pres. (+ ) Laura Cole, Vice Pres. (+ ) Norma Loper,Sec, (+ )
Louis Kanan, Treas, ( +)

Introduction of Guest: RECSiVE )
A. Dennis: Can still Order Meal Today $7.00 ; Ty
Secretary's report: SEP 16 2019 ‘
. Norma Loper, Sec .............. Stand asread (yes ) e Gy |

Treasurer's report:
. Louis Kanan, Treas. ... Stand as read (yes )
Old Business:

A. Disability Network is still on summer vacation. Be back soon.

B. July Birthday Bash was well attended.

1. Pam brought all the buns for the Hamburgers and Hot

dogs. Thank You, Pam |
2.The Band, “ John's Band “ played again this year.
C. August Birthday Bash included 'sloppy joe's’ with all our
ice cream, cup cakes & stuff. Yea !
D. By Laws Voting
1.The By Laws were amended : August 16,2019
New Business:
A. Elections
1. Election slips will be in the September Gazette.
Public comment:
A. Jannine: TFAP will be the last Monday in September.
Council Comment:
A. Jo: Took a survey about our congested Parking Lot
for Director Tony.
Motion to adjourn: Time: 2:52pm
by: Janine  seconded by: JoAnn Adjourned
Next Meeting/ Birthday Bash *September 12, 2019 * @ 2:00pm

6?4./0 J elos &L B ccllrre T Fe
7 2 (b mfe/

51



RIVERVIEW RESIDENT COUNCIL
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR AUGUST 16%, 2019

*RESTRICTED FUNDS
Beginning Balance ...t eresee e $392.71
™ EXPENSES ...covrereeeeerrraarnresasesaessreeresesasaeseresns eesesstsssnmsnnns - $100.00
' $292.71
RESTRICTED FUNDS FINAL BALANCE .........coccoceeennn $292.71
*UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
Beginning Balance ... oo $175.60
T @XPEMNSES wuereereereeiceienrerastmersssarerssnsearesseresensanssssesses e snsnesnnenes -S74.78
$100.82
N AONALIONS....c.eceee ettt eee s e e e me e anane + $66.57
$167.39
*UNRESTRICTED FINAL BALANCE $167.39
*RESTRICED / UNRESTRICTED FINAL BALANCE .............c.c.... $460.01
*savings ........... $5.00
*petty cash ...... $100.00
*GRAND TOTAL .$565.10
RECEIVED
SEP 16 2013
Traverse City
Housing Commission

52



> N
TC

HOUSING

Traverse City
Housing Commission

a Public Housing Authority

OLD BUSINESS

2020 Consolidated Budget: August 2019

TCHC Policy Review Schedule: Review

Memorandum on RAD Update

53



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSE BUDGET WORKSHEET

OPERATING INCOME
Property Rents
Investment Interest
Program Income: HCV
Program Income: FSS
Earned Income
HUD Property Subsidy
CFP / Draw on Surplus

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Benefits
Compensated Absences
Legal
Travel / Staff Training
Accounting / Auditing
General Office Expenses
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

TENANT PROGRAMS & SERVICES
Recreation, Programs, and Other
Cable Television
HAP

TOTAL TENANT PROGS / SERVICES

UTILITIES
Water
Electricity
Gas

TOTAL UTILITIES

MAINTENANCE / BUILDING OPERATION

Labor
Maintenance Benefits
Materials
Contract / CFP Costs
TOTAL ORDINARY MAINTENANCE

GENERAL EXPENSE
Insurance
Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Collection Losses
Interest Expense / Other
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSE

EXTRAORDINARY / CASUALTY

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS/EQUIP*

RESIDUAL RECEIPTS (DEFICIT)*

* Accountant Reviewed

FY 2019 YTD FY 2020 AUGUST 2019 FY 2020 YTD % OF
ACTUAL* BUDGET ACTUAL* ACTUAL* BUDGET
$ 44951742 445,000.00 $ 39,140.00 76,770.00 17.25%
3,816.69 2,750.00 225.62 471.99 17.16%
1,256,017.28 1,130,000.00 112,300.86 227,352.14 20.12%
56,020.00 67,200.00 5,602.00 11,204.00 16.67%
175,639.02 205,000.00 16,661.80 47,407.60 23.13%
246,768.50 260,000.00 29,742.00 67,141.00 25.82%
3 160,000.00 18,679.36 18,679.36 11.67%
$  2,187,778.91 2,269,950.00 $ 22235164 449,026.09 19.78%
s 213,803.33 239,500.00 $ 12,961.65 38,349.77 16.01%
74,667.00 60,969.17 995.71 12,968.75 21.27%
346.09 (1,500.00) 5 - 0.00%
14,987.34 20,000.00 3,434.70 3,629.70 18.15%
9,437.24 16,000.00 1,121.53 1,478.56 9.24%
20,340.42 25,000.00 1,099.41 2,198.82 8.80%
61,172.93 70,000.00 9,006.94 14,105.96 20.15%
$  394,754.35 429,969.17 s 28,619.94 72,731.56 16.92%
$ 6,640.33 9,500.00 3 1,968.66 2,202.76 23.19%
40,680.51 40,000.00 3,471.64 6,943.28 17.36%
1,156,960.45 1,100,000.00 99,073.85 197,664.23 17.97%
S 1,204,281.29 1,149,500.00 $  104,514.15 206,810.27 17.99%
$ 19,819.75 17,500.00 $ 2,791.51 4,549.65 26.00%
125,998.86 145,000.00 8,818.64 16,565.76 11.42%
20,442.63 22,000.00 93.95 274.73 1.25%
$  166,261.24 184,500.00 s 11,704.10 21,390.14 11.59%
$ 129,476.68 140,150.00 $ 9,430.57 23,406.42 16.70%
40,796.97 50,641.76 2,396.16 8,810.74 17.40%
40,910.64 39,500.00 4,850.86 7,106.04 17.99%
138,997.42 145,000.00 17,779.24 25,251.90 17.42%
$ 35018171 375,291.76 $ 34,456.83 64,575.10 17.21%
5 30,961.55 31,500.00 $ 2,697.31 5,469.16 17.36%
26,993.07 25,000.00 2,083.34 4,166.68 16.67%
6,366.25 3,000.00 - - 0.00%
26,103.43 33,000.00 s - 0.00%
$ 90,424.30 92,500.00 $ 4,780.65 9,635.84 10.42%
$ 4,525.88 10,000.00 257.86 7,757.86 77.58%
$  2,210,428.77 2,241,760.93 $  184,333.53 382,900.77 17.08%
$ (22,649.86) 28,189.07 $ 38,018.11 66,125.32
$ (47,089.15) (20,000.00) $ {13,859.00) (13,859.00)
$ (69,739.01) 8,189.07 $ 24,159.11 52,266.32

Current as of 9/26/2019

54



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSE BUDGET WORKSHEET

OPERATING INCOME
Property Rents
Investment Interest
Program Income: HCV
Program Income: FSS
Earned income
HUD Property Subsidy
CFP / Draw on Subsidy

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Benefits
Compensated Absences*
Legal
Travel / Staff Training
Accounting / Auditing
General Office Expenses
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

TENANT PROGRAMS & SERVICES
Recreation and Other
Cable Television
HAP

TOTAL TENANT PROGS / SERVICES

UTILITIES
Water
Electricity
Gas

TOTAL UTILITIES

MAINTENANCE / BUILDING OPERATION

Explanation / Description

Labor
Maintenance Benefits
Materials
Contract / CFP Costs
TOTAL ORDINARY MAINTENANCE

GENERAL EXPENSE
Insurance
Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Collection Losses
Interest Expense / Other
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSE

EXTRAORDINARY / CASUALTY*

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS/EQUIP*

RESIDUAL RECEIPTS (DEFICIT)*

* Accountant Reviewed

A total of collected rents from Riverview Terrace and Orchardview properties.

A total of interest amounts earned.

Housing Chaice Voucher program dollars earned.

ROSS funding designated for Resident Self Sufficiency Program.

A total of non-program dollars earned by TCHC.

HUD dollars received to assist with rent deficits.

A total of Capital Fund Program dollars received plus what is drawn down from Checking Surplus
A total of operating income amounts.

Inciudes all salaries for Executive Director, Associate Director, Program Manager, Support Staff.
includes all benefits for Executive Director, Associate Director, Program Manager, Support Staff.
Year-end diffences between annual leave amounts owed to employees.

Includes all legal fees for operational issues as well as commission governance issues.

Includes all conference, continuing education, and training fees plus travel expenses for all staff.
A total of all third party, contract accounting and auditing expenses.

A total of all office expenses including telephone charges, office equipment and supplies, etc.

A total of all operating expenses across all program activities.

Resident programming and acitivities associated with current tenants.

Fees paid to Charter Communications to provide cable television to residents.
Housing Assistance Payments to [andlords in the five county area.

A total of all tenant progamming and services.

Fees paid to Traverse City Light & Power for water and sewer.
Fees paid to Traverse City Light & Pawer for electricity.

Fees paid to DTE for gas utlity.

A total of all utility expenditures.

Includes all salaries and wages for maintenance team (2.5 persons)
Includes all benefits for maintenance team (2.5 persons)
A total of all purchases related to upkeep and maintenance of properties owned by TCHC.

A total of all contract maintenance and upkeep costs by third party suppliers on properties owned by TCHC.

A total of all ordinary maintenance and building operation expenditures.

A total of all insurance monies paid by TCHC related to all operations.

Amount of property taxes paid to the City of Traverse City - adjusted by PILOT ordinance.
A total amount of losses from rents when residents vacate units owing monies.

Misc.

A total of all general expense expenditures.

A total of unexpected and unbudgeted items plus expenses reimbursed from insurance proceeds.
A grand total of all expenses.

This amount reflects total income over total expenses.

A total of all property and equipment purchased above $1,500 capitalization threshhold - plus all appliances.

This category utilizes prior year(s) receipts of funding.
Final amounts to be determined by accountants.

Internal Document - Current as of 9/24/2019



TCHC MONTHLY CASH POSITION REPORT

END OF AUGUST 2019

PUBLIC HOUSING

Chemical Bank
4Front Credit Union
TC State Bank
Huntington Bank
TC State Bank
Chemical Bank
Chemical Bank
Huntington Bank
Chemical Bank

SUB TOTAL

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER

PNC
Chase Bank

SUB TOTAL

OTHER

Reserves*/FSS/CFP
SUB TOTAL

TOTAL Cash & Cash Equivilants

* as of December 31, 2017

Checking
Savings
1051647
1388434863
ICS Acct
1075909
9426
1388405232

CD 806592

Checking

135080088317

S 93,152.71
S 6,619.19
S  164,594.65
S  163,431.58
S 76,702.72
S 3.78
S 26,876.38
S 53,280.78
$ 584,661.79
S  126,665.20
S 59,589.52
$ 186,254.72
$ 516,958.06
$ 516,958.06
S 1,287,874.57

Certificate of Deposit

Escrow Account

Restricted

Current as of 9/24/2019

56



6102 43quia3das fo sp Juaiin)

3131dINOD 1ON Ul Juawndogq sy

paun)s 6102 Jaqwaidas 9UON M3IN Adljod spsepueis Aiexiues 13 Suidaayasnoy
610 Joquaydas 110 ‘T Ainr €007 ‘8T Atenigay Adijod uonesunwwio) piezey
agl umouun umouyun Ad110d 3dueAslID
STOZ ‘9T aung VN STOZ aunr STOC ‘91 aunr Adijod uonewoyul yo wopaaly
9102 ‘€z 19qwajdasg VN 9107 Joquwaydag 866T ‘TE€ 1sn3ny ueld uo11dy Aduamiyng Jjos Ajiwiey
adi SUOoN 066T ‘8 Ydiew uelqd Aylunyoddg Suisnoy |enbg
LT0Z ‘sz 1snSny VN /10¢ 1sn8ny 1107 ‘Sz 1sn8ny Ad1j0d 33Ud|0IA I11SAWOQ JO SWIDIA 10} J9ysuea] Asuasiawg
9102 ‘9z Atenigay VN 910z Aenigay 9002 ‘8T |1dy Adljod Buisol) Aduadiawg
8102 ‘€2 Yyoreyw 810C YaJelw Z10¢ ‘og dunf 900¢ ‘LT Jdy Adjod A7
£102 ‘Lz Aenuer VN LT0Z Aenuer 1007 ‘8T Yole Adijod 30-23M 1UN02DY [njagnog
6T10¢ Jswwng umouyun umouwjun >u__0n_ UoJlualay Jjuawniog
asl umouun G861 ‘sz aunf Adijod uonisodsig
9102 ‘zZ |udy VYN 910¢ |1idy 886T ‘S |Udy Adijod 1uapisay pasearaq
ST0Z ‘0z 429010 VN S10Z 43900 STOZ ‘0¢ 4890310 Adljod pae) apasd
8102 ‘sz Aey 8T0Z AN 800¢ ‘ST AInr S00¢ ‘6T AInf Adyjod 21195 Ajunwiwo)
9102 ‘Sz Ydlew VN 9T0Z YdIe 900¢ Aenugaq Ad)jod wooy Ayunwwo)
8102 ‘sz Aeiy 810Z Aen €107 ‘1T Aenuer 10T ‘87 Jaquialdas A3110d 19npuo) jo apo)
asl auoN 9661 ‘TT Jaquiardas Aoijod sysy 1A
L102 ‘vz Yy1ew VN LT0T Yoy 00T Joquiadag Ad1j0d BuluBis yoay)
agal umouun umouun Adjod uonezuoyiny saioleusis sodaq 10 91D
8102 ‘€2 YdoJe 8T0C Ydsew 9007 ‘0¢ Aeniga4 €007 ‘8T Yasew Ad1j04 uonezijeyder
L10Z ‘62 1oquidydas VN LT0T Jaquiaydas LT0T ‘6T Joquirdas Adnjod esawe)
L10Z ‘62 Jaquiaidag VN £10T Joqwaidas €T0¢ Atenigaq Ad1j0d uoneuauQ pieog
£102 ‘€g aun( VN £10Z 8unr £10¢ ‘€ dunf Adyj0d @duepuanly
910¢ ‘¢ AMenuer VN 910¢ Aenuer 910¢ ‘¢ AMenuer wnpuappy juawaseue jueld |edisAyd ] 19ssy
L10Z ‘sz 3sn3ny 8107 |1dy L10T JoWwing L10T ‘5z 35n3ny Adjjod Juswissesey Juawiuoiaug aj1IsoH @ SulAjng-1uy
6102 ‘sZ ¥sn3ny 610Z Joawwns 9T0Z Yotew S00Z ‘T Asenuer (ADH veld aanessiuiwpy) NIAIGY
8107 ‘6 Ateniqaq LT0Z J9qWaag €102 ‘9T Ainf 5002 ‘T AeIN (Ad110d4 Aduednaog panunuo) g uolssIupy) dodv
610Z ‘8z aung 6102 Ae. _stozaunt | booz‘6Tqop0 | T e smet-Ag JHIL
919|dwo) ajepdn MBIADY pAINPaYISs (s)ma1aaYy snoinaug pardopy 15414

AdI10d

9INPaYdS Mainay Adijod DHIL

57



6T0Z 12qwia1das fo so juatin)y

313TdWOJ LON Ut Judwnooq syl

8102 ‘€2 YdJew 8T0Z Aenigay 110Z Aenigay 900¢ Isn8ny Adtjod apiyap
8102 ‘v¢ Aein 610C Aey 800¢ Anr 9002 ‘8T Ainf Adyjod ssedssas)
8102 ‘zz dung 8T0Z dunf 2102 ‘12 15n3ny €002 ‘8T Aenigad Adjjod |aneay,

adl umouwjun umouwjun Adijod Jaysuesj
610T ‘Lz »aquaidas 6107 Jaquydas ¥10Z ‘LT Ainf £00T ‘ST Aeny ue|d uoissadxdng
910¢ ‘ze AMenuer VN 910¢ Alenuer 9107 ‘¢z Aenuer Adjod Adeald Jaquiny Aundag jeros

9102 ‘9Z ¥sn3ny VN 910z ¥shdny 910¢ ‘9z 3shdny Adijod eipapy jerdos

8102 ‘€ AMenugay L7107 J3quardag CT0C ‘8T s9qwiddas | 9007 ‘6T Jaquisdag Ad1jod sanuadoud aalg-ayows
aal SUON 9661 ‘TT Joqwaldas Ad1j10d Juswssesey |enxas
agl SUON 2661 ‘£ [Udy Adjod sadsey) seday/aoueualuiely Jo 3|Npayas

LT0Z ‘82 _:o_< VN Zom _:o_< mwmﬂ b1 Em:Emu_ Adijod mwm..m:u AM|1n ssadx3 jo apnpayds
Sujon-ug grog Bupds ‘6T oqus . 5 ~huoq uoyendes g Aiajes
3wo9-ugp 8102 Joqwadas . cso:v_cn umouyun a:wEwm:m,q 9SEa7 |enuapIsay

L10Z ‘LZ 139010 VN duoN 8861 ‘G Judy Adtjod uoid3)0) Juay
agl umouyjun T10C ‘6T |Udy UOIlepoWWOIIY 3|qeuoseay
aqai umouun umouyjun ue|d 3aueualule|y SuiSnoH anqnd

610 l1ed ¥10z ‘61 1snSny 0661 ‘T Aey Adtjod Juawaindosgd

8102 ‘0€ 19qwidanoN 810 JaquianoN 8002 ‘T Aeny €00¢ ‘8T Atenugayg Adjjod jonuo) 1594
LT0¢ ‘ST 1sn8ny 0zZ0z 1sn3ny LTOZ 1sn3ny umowyun yooqpuey aakojdwy / Adjod jauuosiad
6107 4990120 auoN 8007 ‘9T Joqwiardas Adljod ysed Anad

9107 ‘82 499030 YN 9T0T 42903100 0102 ‘0t udy Adljod 194
aglL umouyun umoujun Ad1j0d soueuuIRN

9102 ‘zz Indy VN 910z IMdy 900¢ ‘8T AInr Adijod (1a1sen) Aoy
QgL umouyun G86T ‘Gz aunf Adijod wsunsanu)

9102 ‘9z Isnsny VN 910¢ Isn3ny umouyun Md1jod Arojuanuj

919)dwo) arepdn MBIARY paINpayds (s)mainay snoinalg padopy 15114 AdI10d

3NPaYdS MaIA3Y Adljod JHIL

58



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 27, 2019
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directar
SUBIJECT: Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Update

MESSAGE:

While | continue to have conversations with both our Real Estate Development Consultants and
or RAD Transaction Manager, | have nothing new to report this month. We did not have a
monthly Resident Meeting this month either but we will have one next month for sure.

Over the next several weeks, | do expect to spend some significant time with our team to work
on our Financing Plan. It appears that we will be requiring an extension from the end of the
calendar year until some point next year. Our financing plan must include our applications for
tax credits and we will be applying either in April or October of 2020.

Page 1of 1
59



> N
TC

HOUSING

Traverse City
Housing Commission

a Public Housing Authority

NEW BUSINESS

Resolution to Adopt FY 2019 Fair Market Rents

Resolution to Adopt FY 2019 Flat Rent Schedule for Public Housing
Resolution to Adapt Changes to the Executive Staff Succession Policy
Resolution to Approve Management Agreement with the ERHC

Resolution to Submit Section 18 Application

60



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN |49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 27, 2019
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directgm\/
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2020 HUD Fair Market Rents

MESSAGE:

On an annual basis, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) publishes fair
market rent limits for every community in our Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program. Once
adopted through resolution, local Public Housing Authorities are allowed to establish a
payment standard to landlords at any level between 90 percent and 110 percent (120 percent if
approved) of the established FMR for any unit size [See Attached Schedule].

TCHC staff, therefore, recommends adoption of the following:

RESOLUTION FOR THE ADOPTION OF THE HUD FAIR MARKET RENTS
September 27, 2019

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires
local public housing authorities including the Traverse City Housing Commission (TCHC) to
adopt Fair Market Rents (FMRs) for the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program; and

WHEREAS, the HUD Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 Fair Market Rents are now published (attached) for
our region; and

WHEREAS, FMRs are primarily used to determine payment standard amounts for the HCV
Program and the local Public Housing Authority may establish the payment standard amount
for a unit size at any level between 90 percent and 110 percent (120 percent if approved) of the
published FMR for that unit size (24 CFR 982.503(b)); and

WHEREAS, the TCHC concurs in the recommendation of the Executive Director and staff.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Traverse City Housing Commission as follows:
The Fair Market Rent Payment Standards established by HUD are adopted for the Housing

Choice Voucher (HCV) Program for the remainder of TCHC FY 2019 beginning January 1, 2019.

Page 1of 1
61



"uoidasx3 JuawAbd %0zt o Jof GNH 01 Ajddp jjim JHI1  TION

6102 ‘T Aspnuor andaff3,

6102 /T 49quia1das pasodoid

%021 00'90T‘T S | 00'760T S | 0088 S | 00299 S |00119 S

%0TT 00'¥T10‘T S | 00 €00t $ | 00's08 S | ooet9 $ | 00°09S S pioyxam
T2 00226 S |oozie S |o0zeL $ | 00°9ss $ | 00°60S S

%021 00°'T09'T S | 00'sgz‘t S | 00'8¥6 S | 00882 S| o06LL S

%0TT 00°L9%'T S |o08LTT S | 00°698 S |oo¢ges S| oovis S neuejaay
E] 00'VEET S| 00TLOT S | 00°06L S | 007259 S | 00619 S

%0CT 00'8€T'T S| 000ST‘T S | 00958 S | 00°6%9 S | 00°8SS S

%0TT 00°'SET‘T S | 00'¥S0T S | 00V8L S | 00°s6S s | oozts S eysesyjey
b TE | 00°CE0‘T S | 00°8s6 S| oo€ts S | 00" THS S | 00°sot S

%0¢T 00'S0L‘T S | 00'vrtT S | 00°€60°T S | 00916 S | 00092 S

%0TT 00°€9S'T S| 00°€ECET S | 00°200‘T S| 00498 S | 00969 S 9si9Aes) puesn
EIE 00'TZr'T S | 00€0z'T S| 00TI6 S | 00882 S | 00°€€9 S

%0CT 009/2°T S | o009t $ | 00TE6 S | 00°20L S | 0019 S

%0TT 00'69T°T S | 00'¥90°T S | 00'vS8 S | 00819 S | 00°€6S S a1zuag
i 00°€90°T S | 00°£96 S | 0094L S | 00685 S | 00°'6€S S

%0ZT 00°L0€'T S| 0099T'T S | 00°968 S | 00022 S | 00°8SS S

%0TT 00'861°T S | 0T'890°T S | 00'18L S | 00099 S| oozis S wiuy
[TVE] 00'680°T S| 00TL6 S |ooects S | 00°009 S | 00's9v )

pJiepuels juawAiey woo.pag ¢ woo.pag ¢ woo.pag 7 wooJpag woo.ipag Q >u_.._ noj

xWei3oid ADH 404 (HINI4) S1uay 13xJeW J1e4 0Z0Z A4 JHOL

62



9/23/2019 FY 2020 Fair Market Rent Documentation System — Calculation for Antrim County, Ml

l"l.l FY 2020 FAIR MARKET RENT
DOCUMENTATION SYSTEM

The FY 2020 Antrim County, MI FMRs for All Bedroom Sizes

Final FY 2020 & Final FY 2019 FMRs By Unit Bedrooms
Year Efficiency One-Bedroom Two-Bedroom Three-Bedroom Four-Bedroom
FY 2020 FMR $465 $600 $713 $971 $1,089
FY 2019 FMR | 4450 $577 $700 $958 $1,060

Antrim County, MI is a non-metropolitan county.

Fair Market Rent Calculation Methodology

. Show/Hide Methodology Narrative

Fair Market Rents for metropolitan areas and non-metropolitan FMR areas are developed as follows:

1. 2013-2017 5-year American Community Survey (ACS) estimates of 2-bedroom adjusted standard
quality gross rents calculated for each FMR area are used as the new basis for FY2020 provided
the estimate is statistically reliable. For FY2020, the test for reliability is whether the margin of
error for the estimate is less than 50% of the estimate itself and whether the ACS estimate is
based on at least 100 survey cases. HUD does not receive the exact number of survey cases, but
rather a categorical variable known as the count indicator indicating a range of cases. An estimate
based on at least 100 cases corresponds to a count indicator of 4 or higher.

If an area does not have a reliable 2013-2017 5-year, HUD checks whether the area has had at
least minimally reliable estimate in any of the past 3 years, or estimates that meet the 50%
margin of error test described above. If so, the FY2020 base rent is the average of the inflated
ACS estimates.

If an area has not had a minimally reliable estimate in the past 3 years, the estimate State for the
area's corresponding metropolitan area (if applicable) or State non-metropolitan area is used as
the basis for FY2020.

2. HUD calculates a recent mover adjustment factor by comparing a 2017 1-year 40th percentile
recent mover 2-bedrooom rent to the 2013-2017 5-year 40th percentile adjusted standard quality
gross rent. If either the recent mover and non-recent mover rent estimates are not reliable, HUD
uses the recent mover adjustment for a larger geography. For metropolitan areas, the order of
geographies examined is: FMR Area, Entire Metropolitan Area (for Metropolitan Sub-Areas), State
Metropolitan Portion, Entire State, and Entire US; for non-metropolitan areas, the order of
geographies examined is: FMR Area, State Non-Metropolitan Portion, Entire State, and Entire US.
The recent mover adjustment factor is floored at one.

3. HUD calculates the appropriate recent mover adjustment factor between the 5-year data and the
1-year data and applies this to the 5-year base rent estimate.

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr/fmrs/FY2020_code/2020summary.odn

63

1/5



9/23/2019 FY 2020 Fair Market Rent Documentation System — Calculation for Benzie County, MI

!:lue._! FY 2020 FAIR MARKET RENT
DOCUMENTATION SYSTEM

The FY 2020 Benzie County, MI FMRs for All Bedroom Sizes

Final FY 2020 & Final FY 2019 FMRs By Unit Bedrooms

Year Efficiency One-Bedroom Two-Bedroom Three-Bedroom Four-Bedroom

FY 2020 FMR $539 $589 $776 $967 $1,063

FY 2019 FMR $559 $605 $800 $1,002 $1,081

Benzie County, MI is a non-metropolitan county.

Fair Market Rent Calculation Methodology

Show/Hide Methodology Narrative

Fair Market Rents for metropolitan areas and non-metropolitan FMR areas are developed as follows:

1. 2013-2017 5-year American Community Survey (ACS) estimates of 2-bedroom adjusted standard
quality gross rents calculated for each FMR area are used as the new basis for FY2020 provided the
estimate is statistically reliable. For FY2020, the test for reliability is whether the margin of error
for the estimate is less than 50% of the estimate itself and whether the ACS estimate is based on
at least 100 survey cases. HUD does hot receive the exact number of survey cases, but rather a
categorical variable known as the count indicator indicating a range of cases. An estimate based on
at least 100 cases corresponds to a count indicator of 4 or higher.

If an area does not have a reliable 2013-2017 5-year, HUD checks whether the area has had at
least minimally reliable estimate in any of the past 3 years, or estimates that meet the 50% margin
of error test described above, If so, the FY2020 base rent is the average of the inflated ACS
estimates.

If an area has not had a minimally reliable estimate in the past 3 years, the estimate State for the
area's corresponding metropolitan area (if applicable) or State non-metropolitan area is used as the
basis for FY2020.

2. HUD calculates a recent mover adjustment factor by comparing a 2017 1-year 40th percentile
recent mover 2-bedrooom rent to the 2013-2017 5-year 40th percentile adjusted standard quality
gross rent. If either the recent mover and non-recent mover rent estimates are not reliable, HUD
uses the recent mover adjustment for a larger geography. For metropolitan areas, the order of
geographies examined is: FMR Area, Entire Metropolitan Area (for Metropolitan Sub-Areas), State
Metropolitan Portion, Entire State, and Entire US; for non-metropolitan areas, the order of
geographies examined is: FMR Area, State Non-Metropolitan Portion, Entire State, and Entire US.
The recent mover adjustment factor is floored at one.

3. HUD calculates the appropriate recent mover adjustment factor between the 5-year data and the 1-
year data and applies this to the 5-year base rent estimate.

4. Rents are calculated as of 2018 using the relevant (regional or local) change in gross rent
Consumer Price Index (CPI) from annual 2017 to annual 2018.

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr/fmrs/FY2020_code/2020summary.odn

64

1/56



9/23/2019 FY 2020 Fair Market Rent Documentation System — Calculation for Grand Traverse County, Mi

Il FY 2020 FAirR MARKET RENT
e DOCUMENTATION SYSTEM

The FY 2020 Grand Traverse County, MI FMRs for All
Bedroom Sizes

Final FY 2020 & Final FY 2019 FMRs By Unit Bedrooms

= ne- Two- Three- _
Year Efficiency Bedroom Bedroom Bedroom Four-Bedroom
FY 2020 $633 $788 $911 $1,203 $1,421
FMR
?fwﬁm_g $623 $762 $892 $1,201 $1,338

Grand Traverse County, MI is a non-metropolitan county.

Fair Market Rent Calculation Methodology

= Show/Hide Methodology Narrative

Fair Market Rents for metropolitan areas and non-metropolitan FMR areas are
developed as follows:

1. 2013-2017 5-year American Community Survey (ACS) estimates of 2-bedroom
adjusted standard quality gross rents calculated for each FMR area are used as
the new basis for FY2020 provided the estimate is statistically reliable. For
FY2020, the test for reliability is whether the margin of error for the estimate is
less than 50% of the estimate itself and whether the ACS estimate is based on at
least 100 survey cases. HUD does not receive the exact number of survey cases,
but rather a categorical variable known as the count indicator indicating a range
of cases. An estimate based on at least 100 cases corresponds to a count
indicator of 4 or higher.

If an area does not have a reliable 2013-2017 5-year, HUD checks whether the
area has had at least minimally reliable estimate in any of the past 3 years, or
estimates that meet the 50% margin of error test described above. If so, the
FY2020 base rent is the average of the inflated ACS estimates.

If an area has not had a minimally reliable estimate in the past 3 years, the
estimate State for the area's corresponding metropolitan area (if applicable) or

State non-metropolitan area is used as the basis for FY2020. o

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr/fmrs/FY2020_code/2020summary.odn 117



9/23/2019 FY 2020 Fair Market Rent Documentation System — Calculation for Kalkaska County, Ml

I-l.l FY 2020 FAIR MARKET RENT
DOCUMENTATION SYSTEM

The FY 2020 Kalkaska County, MI FMRs for All Bedroom Sizes

Final FY 2020 & Final FY 2019 FMRs By Unit Bedrooms

Year Efficiency One-Bedroom Two-Bedroom Three-Bedroom Four-Bedroom

FY 2020 FMR $465 $541 $713 $958 $1,032
FY 2019 FMR $466 $548 $725 $966 $1,050

Kalkaska County, MI is a non-metropolitan county.

Fair Market Rent Calculation Methodology
Show/Hide Methodology Narrative

Fair Market Rents for metropolitan areas and non-metropolitan FMR areas are developed as follows:

1. 2013-2017 5-year American Community Survey (ACS) estimates of 2-bedroom adjusted standard
quality gross rents calculated for each FMR area are used as the new basis for FY2020 provided the
estimate is statistically reliable. For FY2020, the test for reliability is whether the margin of error
for the estimate is less than 50% of the estimate itself and whether the ACS estimate is based on
at least 100 survey cases. HUD does not receive the exact number of survey cases, but rather a
categorical variable known as the count indicator indicating a range of cases. An estimate based on
at least 100 cases corresponds to a count indicator of 4 or higher.

If an area does not have a reliable 2013-2017 5-year, HUD checks whether the area has had at
least minimally reliable estimate in any of the past 3 years, or estimates that meet the 50% margin
of error test described above. If so, the FY2020 base rent is the average of the inflated ACS
estimates.

If an area has not had a minimally reliable estimate in the past 3 years, the estimate State for the
area's corresponding metropolitan area (if applicable) or State non-metropolitan area is used as the
basis for FY2020.

2. HUD calculates a recent mover adjustment factor by comparing a 2017 1-year 40th percentile
recent mover 2-bedrooom rent to the 2013-2017 5-year 40th percentile adjusted standard quality
gross rent. If either the recent mover and non-recent mover rent estimates are not reliable, HUD
uses the recent mover adjustment for a larger geography. For metropolitan areas, the order of
geographies examined is: FMR Area, Entire Metropolitan Area (for Metropolitan Sub-Areas), State
Metropolitan Portion, Entire State, and Entire US; for non-metropolitan areas, the order of
geographies examined is: FMR Area, State Non-Metropolitan Portion, Entire State, and Entire US.
The recent mover adjustment factor is floored at one.

3. HUD calculates the appropriate recent mover adjustment factor between the 5-year data and the 1-
year data and applies this to the 5-year base rent estimate.

4. Rents are calculated as of 2018 using the relevant (regional or local) change in gross rent 66
Consumer Price Index (CPI) from annual 2017 to annual 2018,

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr/fmrs/FY2020_code/2020summary.odn 1/5



9/23/2019 FY 2020 Fair Market Rent Documentation System — Calculation for Leelanau County, Ml

!:g FY 2020 FAIR MARKET RENT
DOCUMENTATION SYSTEM

The FY 2020 Leelanau County, MI FMRs for All Bedroom Sizes

Final FY 2020 & Final FY 2019 FMRs By Unit Bedrooms

Year Efficiency One-Bedroom Two-Bedroom Three-Bedroom Four-Bedroom
FY 2020 FMR $649 $657 $790 $1,071 $1,334
FY 2019 FMR $649 $681 $796 $1,072 $1,235

Leelanau County, MI is a non-metropolitan county.

Fair Market Rent Calculation Methodology
Show/Hide Methodology Narrative

Fair Market Rents for metropolitan areas and non-metropolitan FMR areas are developed as follows:

1. 2013-2017 5-year American Community Survey (ACS) estimates of 2-bedroom adjusted standard
quality gross rents calculated for each FMR area are used as the new basis for FY2020 provided the
estimate is statistically reliable. For FY2020, the test for reliability is whether the margin of error
for the estimate is less than 50% of the estimate itself and whether the ACS estimate is based on
at least 100 survey cases. HUD does not receive the exact number of survey cases, but rather a
categorical variable known as the count indicator indicating a range of cases. An estimate based on
at least 100 cases corresponds to a count indicator of 4 or higher.

If an area does not have a reliable 2013-2017 5-year, HUD checks whether the area has had at
least minimally reliable estimate in any of the past 3 years, or estimates that meet the 50% margin
of error test described above. If so, the FY2020 base rent is the average of the inflated ACS
estimates.

If an area has not had a minimally reliable estimate in the past 3 years, the estimate State for the
area's corresponding metropolitan area (if applicable) or State non-metropolitan area is used as the
basis for FY2020.

2. HUD calculates a recent mover adjustment factor by comparing a 2017 1-year 40th percentile
recent mover 2-bedrooom rent to the 2013-2017 5-year 40th percentile adjusted standard quality
gross rent. If either the recent mover and non-recent mover rent estimates are not reliable, HUD
uses the recent mover adjustment for a larger geography. For metropolitan areas, the order of
geographies examined is: FMR Area, Entire Metropolitan Area (for Metropolitan Sub-Areas), State
Metropolitan Portion, Entire State, and Entire US; for non-metropolitan areas, the order of
geographies examined is: FMR Area, State Non-Metropolitan Portion, Entire State, and Entire US.
The recent mover adjustment factor is floored at one.

3. HUD calculates the appropriate recent mover adjustment factor between the 5-year data and the 1-
year data and applies this to the 5-year base rent estimate.

4, Rents are calculated as of 2018 using the relevant (regional or local) change in gross rent 67
Consumer Price Index (CPI) from annual 2017 to annual 2018,

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datassts/fmr/fmrs/FY2020_code/2020summary.odn 1/5



9/23/2019 FY 2020 Fair Market Rent Documentation System — Calculation for Wexford County, Ml

] FY 2020 FairR MARKET RENT
e DOCUMENTATION SYSTEM

The FY 2020 Wexford County, MI FMRs for All Bedroom Sizes

Final FY 2020 & Final FY 2019 FMRs By Unit Bedrooms

i s One- Two- Three- _
Year Efficiency Bedroom Bedroom Bedroor \raom Four-Bedroom
FY 2020 $509 $556 $732 $912 $992
EMR
EL: 12 $526 $569 $753 $943 $1,018

Wexford County, MI is a non-metropolitan county.

Fair Market Rent Calculation Methodology

= Show/Hide Methodology Narrative =

Fair Market Rents for metropolitan areas and non-metropolitan FMR areas are
developed as follows:

1. 2013-2017 5-year American Community Survey (ACS) estimates of 2-bedroom
adjusted standard quality gross rents calculated for each FMR area are used as
the new basis for FY2020 provided the estimate is statistically reliable. For
FY2020, the test for reliability is whether the margin of error for the estimate is
less than 50% of the estimate itself and whether the ACS estimate is based on at
least 100 survey cases. HUD does not receive the exact humber of survey cases,
but rather a categorical variable known as the count indicator indicating a range
of cases. An estimate based on at least 100 cases corresponds to a count
indicator of 4 or higher.

If an area does not have a reliable 2013-2017 5-year, HUD checks whether the
area has had at least minimally reliable estimate in any of the past 3 years, or
estimates that meet the 50% margin of error test described above. If so, the
FY2020 base rent is the average of the inflated ACS estimates.

If an area has not had a minimally reliable estimate in the past 3 years, the
estimate State for the area's corresponding metropolitan area (if applicable) or
State non-metropolitan area is used as the basis for FY2020.

68

hitps://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr/fimrs/FY2020_code/2020summary.odn 17



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 27, 2019
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directgn_,
SUBIJECT: Establishing Flat Rent Schedules in Grand Traverse and Leelanau Counties

MESSAGE:

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) publishes fair market rent
limits for every community where we maintain our Public Housing Program — Grand Traverse
County and Leelanau County. Once adopted through resolution, local Public Housing
Authorities must also establish a Flat Rent Schedule for all of its units at a level that is no more
than 80 percent of the established FMR [See Attached Schedule]. There are many reasons for
HUD maintaining this tool, not the least of which is that this tool encourages our residents to
continue to increase their incomes when possible but not to “earn their way out” of any unit.

TCHC staff, therefore, recommends adoption of the following:

RESOLUTION FOR THE ADOPTION OF PUBLIC HOUSING FLAT RENT SCHEDULE
September 27, 2019

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires
local Public Housing Authorities (PHAs) including the Traverse City Housing Commission (TCHC)
to adopt a Flat Rent Schedule for the Public Housing Program; and

WHEREAS, the HUD Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 Fair Market Rents are now published and adopted for
our region including the two counties where TCHC maintains its Public Housing Program, Grand
Traverse County and Leelanau County; and

WHEREAS, HUD requires each PHA to establish a Flat Rent Schedule at a dollar level equal to
80% of the adopted Fair Market Rent in order to provide incentives for residents to increase
their incomes and to deconcentrate poverty in communities; and

WHEREAS, the TCHC concurs in the recommendation of the Executive Director and staff.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Traverse City Housing Commission as follows:

The Flat Rent Schedule required by HUD is adopted for the Public Housing Program in Grand
Traverse County and Leelanau County beginning November 1, 2019.

Page 1 of 2
69



8T0C ‘T 13GUIIANON an193ff7,

6107 /T 43quiadas pasodoud

SaWoYuMOo | mMalApieyao 00'890°T S | 007958 $ | 00°2€9 S VN VN neuejsa
sjuawiledy 93e119 | MIIAIDALY VN VN VN 00°0¢9 S VN 9SJ9ALl1] pueln
Alunwwo) Juswipedy wooupag ¢ wooipag § wooupag g woopag 1 wooJpag 0 Auno) uediyonn

xSWeldoud SuisnoH a1iqnd 104 3|NPaYIS JUIY 1el4 0Z0Z A4 IHIL

70



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 27, 2019
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directef\\/

SUBIJECT: TCHC Executive Staff Succession Policy

MESSAGE:

Attached you will find a Draft Executive Staff Succession Policy and a current organizational
chart for reference. This policy was last reviewed in 2017 but the recent departure of our
Deputy Director has caused us to review our organizational structure and our succession plan.
This review has only produced some minor edits and suggestions that reflect proposed
restructuring. The Governance Committee reviewed the policy at its September meeting.

TCHC staff, therefore, recommends adoption of the following:

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE EXECUTIVE STAFF SUCCESSION POLICY
September 27, 2019

WHEREAS, the Traverse City Housing Commission has made it a priority to review, update,
and/or create policies and plans to govern all of its operations; and

WHEREAS, the Commission recognizes that a well-planned transition for its Executive Staff
position is crucial to its long-term success; and

WHEREAS, the Commission wishes to adopt the proposed changes to its Executive Staff
Succession Policy that reflects the proposed office structure and organizational chart; and

WHEREAS, the Governance Committee has reviewed the purpose of, and the need for, said
Executive Staff Succession Policy; and

WHEREAS, the Commission concurs in the recommendations of the Executive Director and
staff.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Traverse City Housing Commission as follows:

The Executive Staff Succession Policy is hereby adopted as presented by the Traverse City
Housing Commission with immediate effect.

71
Page 1 of 1



Ayuoyany buisnoy a1jgng o
uoissiwuwo) 3uISnoy ———

ONISNOH
awy] 1nd ‘Ggam Awuay A1) 3sianes]
auwi ] Jubd ‘vybonng ydasor Uh.
[l Jue}SisSy adueuajulie ' k
siojibs ugsnf A31mn.4 ydasor
] JUB]SISSY 2IUeUdUIRIA | JuB)sisSy adueuajule|nl
_ |
Apjunoo piapg (¥104 pyLDW) diysuiaug
Ja8eue\ 3sueuajuiep 1sijenads ayeju|
uioy osjy oqozs pjabuy
J98eue weidoud SS4/133euen Ajiadoud
{uoissiwwo) Aq pay)

y3f1uat Auoy

4012341Q 3ALNIBXT

(2119nd 3y1 1u3asaiday 03 siauolssiwwo) A1) ay3 pub JoADN ay1 Aq paijujoddy)
S$19UOISSIWWOo) JO pieog uoissiwwo) m:_mso_._ >H_U ISJI9Ae.|

LYVH) TYNOILLVZINVDYHO JHIL

72



Traverse City Housing Commission
DRAFT Executive Staff Succession Policy

1. Purpose. The intent of this policy is to ensure the effective day-to-day operations of the

Traverse City Housing Commission (TCHC) shouid the Executive Director be unable to fulfill
the obligations of the office, either in the short-term or the long-term, whether voluntary or
involuntary.

. Policy. The TCHC will proactively follow the procedures outlined in this policy in order to
fulfill the purpose of this policy.

Procedures. Upon the immediate notice of the Executive Director being unable to fulfill the
obligations of the office, either in the short-term or the long-term, whether voluntary or
involuntary the following procedures will be followed:

A. Internal Activities

1) The organizational chart of the Traverse City Housing Commission will be re-
arranged for a temporary time.

2) The Board will appoint the Deputy Director, or a Program Manager if there is not a
Deputy Director, to the position of Interim Executive Director. The Interim Executive
Director will act in the stead of the Executive Director, with all the responsibilities
and authorities granted to the position.

3) The Interim Executive Director will be compensated at a level to be set by the Board,
during the Interim period.

4) When necessary, the Board may temporarily appoint a Program Manager who is
next in succession in the Organizational Chart to the position of Interim Deputy
Director, and such person will act with all the responsibilities and authorities granted
to the Deputy Director.

5) The Interim Deputy Director will be compensated at a level to be set by the Board,
during the interim period.

6) At such atime as the TCHC Board in its sole discretion may determine that the
existing Executive Director is able to satisfactorily fulfill the obligations of the office,
the temporarily rearranged Organizational Chart and interim distribution of job
responsibilities will cease, with Compensation levels of staff to be returned to their
previous levels.

B. External Activities
1) During the time that the operations of the TC Housing Commission are being
overseen by the Interim Executive Director and other members of the temporarily
rearranged Organizational Chart, the TCHC Board in its sole discretion will determine
the need to actively seek an Executive Director who meets the requirements of the
TCHC Board. The search for an Executive Director may include both internal and

external candidates. The Interim Executive Director, as well as other staff members,
Page 1 of 2




are eligible to apply for the Executive Director position, at the same time that other
candidates are sought via external channels.

2) The Board, in its sole discretion, will determine the sources and methodologies
appropriate for an effective and thorough external job search for candidates to fill
the Executive Director position. This may include, but is not limited to, Inter-
governmental agreements with local government entities such as the City of
Traverse City and/or Grand Traverse County. In addition, the Board may consider a
full external candidate search, involving seeking of candidates via advertisement of,
and recruitment for, this position across a wide geographic area. The Traverse City
Housing Commission Board will make final decision on selection of a candidate to fill
the Executive Director position.

3) When a candidate has been named to the position of Executive Director and begins
active employment with the Housing Commission, the temporarily-rearranged
Organizational Chart and job responsibilities distributed on an Interim basis will
cease, with Compensation levels of staff to be returned to their previous levels, at a
time determined by the new Executive Director in consultation with the Executive

Committee.

4. Update and Review. The TCHC shall review the Succession Plan on a bi-annual or as needed
basis.

Adopted: May 15, 2007
Revised: July 17, 2014
Revised: December 1, 2017
Proposed: September 27, 2019

Page 2 of 2



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 27, 2019
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive DirectW

SUBIJECT: TCHC — ERHC Management Services Agreement

MESSAGE:

Attached you will find a draft Management Services Agreement that continues the contractual
arrangement between the Elk Rapids Housing Commission (ERHC) and TCHC. After a sixteen
months of experience, | am pleased to recommend to you that we extent the agreement for
another year — ERHC has reported that the previous agreements were successful and it has
already adopted a companion resolution. Our attorney has previously reviewed the agreement
and approves its form and structure. The Governance Committee has reviewed the terms of
this agreement and recommends its implementation.

TCHC staff, therefore, recommends adoption of the following:

RESOLUTION TO PROVIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES TO
THE ELK RAPIDS HOUSING COMMISSION
September 27, 2019

WHEREAS, the Traverse City Housing Commission has made an effort to expand its mission
within our region by creating housing, partnering to create housing, or through the successful
management of existing housing; and

WHEREAS, the Elk Rapids Housing Commission (ERHC) is in need of management services; and

WHEREAS, both ERHC and TCHC believe that the previous agreement was largely successful
thereby paving the way for this longer-term arrangement; and

WHEREAS, the Commission concurs in the recommendations of the Executive Director and staff
to implement this Management Services Agreement with ERHC.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Traverse City Housing Commission as follows:

The Traverse City Housing Commission will provide Management Services to the Elk Rapids
Housing Commission for a period of twelve (12) months beginning October 1, 2019 per the
terms of the executed Management Agreement.

Page Lof 1

75



DRAFT TCHC MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made between the ELK RAPIDS HOUSING COMMISSION (“ERHC”), a Michigan
Public Housing Authority, whose address is 701 Chippewa Street, Elk Rapids, Michigan, 49629
and the TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION (“TCHC”), a Michigan Public Housing Authority,
whose address is 150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684.

The parties hereto agree to the following:

1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall be effective as of October 1, 2019 and
shall continue for a period of twelve (12) months, or until September 30, 2020. This
Agreement may be extended or renewed by written agreement signed by the parties.
All provisions of this Agreement shall apply to all services and all periods of time in
which TCHC renders services for ERHC.

2. TERMINATING THE AGREEMENT. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving
a sixty (60) day written notice of termination to the other party.

3. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. TCHC agrees to perform all administrative and or
secretarial services necessary for the operation of ERHC’s public housing facility located
at 701 Chippewa Street, Elk Rapids, Michigan, 49629. TCHC’s performance shall be in
accordance with applicable laws, regulations and HUD provisions. The responsibilities
and duties of TCHC under this Agreement are those akin to the duties and
responsibilities of an Executive Director for a public housing facility. The estimate of
service hours per month shall be as follows:

A. Executive Director, Tony Lentych = 8-12 hours per month at approx. $52 per hour
B. Program Manager, Alisa Korn = 8-10 hours per month at approx. $30 per hour
C. Office Coordinator, Angie Szabo = 44-48 hours per month at approx. 528 per hour

4. PAYMENT. In consideration for the services to be performed by TCHC, ERHC agrees to
pay TCHC the sum of TWENTY FOUR THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED ($24,300.00)
DOLLARS for duration of this agreement. Said amount shall be payable in monthly
installments of $2,025.00. Prior to the next renewal date, TCHC shall determine its costs
of providing the services and, at TCHC's request, the parties shall negotiate an increase
in the management fee. Also prior to the next renewal date, ERHC shall analyze its
expenses in receiving the services and, at ERHC’s request, the parties shall negotiate a
decrease in the management fee. TCHC shall be solely responsible for any travel
expenses related to rendering of the services under this Agreement.

Page 1 of 3
76



5. EXPENSES. ERHC will furnish all materials, equipment and supplies used to provide the
services required by this Agreement. These expenses shall include, but not be limited
to, office supplies, computer systems, copier, software, and postage. ERHC shall also be
responsible for any and all expenses related to the operation and maintenance of its

public housing facility.

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. The parties agree that TCHC is an independent
contractor, and that neither TCHC nor its employees or personnel are, or shall be
deemed to be, employees of ERHC.

In its capacity as an independent contractor, TCHC agrees to and represents the

following:

A. TCHC has the right and does fully intend to perform services for ERHC during the
term of this Agreement.

B. TCHC has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner and method by
which the services required by this Agreement will be performed.

C. TCHC has the right to perform the services required by this Agreement at any place
or location and at such times as TCHC may determine.

D. TCHC has the right to use its employees to provide the services required by this
Agreement.

E. The service required by this Agreement shall be performed by TCHC, or its
employees or personnel.

F. Neither TCHC nor its employees or personnel shall be required by ERHC to devote
fulltime to the performance or the services required by this Agreement.

G. TCHC does not receive the majority of its annual compensation from ERHC.

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS. TCHC understands that its employees and personnel are not
eligible to participate in any employee pension, health, vacation pay, sick pay, or other
fringe benefit plan of ERHC. TCHC will cover its employees and personnel with worker’s
compensation insurance. ERHC shall not be responsible for any unemployment
compensation payments of behalf of TCHC or its employees and personnel.

8. LIMITATIONS. All responsibilities for operation of the Elk Rapids Housing Commission,
including any current or future liabilities, shall remain the sole responsibility of ERHC.

S. MISCELLANEOUS.
A. This is the entire Agreement between TCHC and ERHC.

Page 20f 3
77



B. A separate Maintenance Agreement may be negotiated prior to October 31, 2018.

Until then, maintenance work will continue as it has been regularly conducted.

This Agreement may be modified only by a writing signed by both parties.

D. This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan.

E. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given to a party to
this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered or sent
registered or certified mail to the addresses specified above or such other address as
one party may give the other from time to time.

F. This Agreement does not create a partnership relationship. TCHC does not have
authority to enter into contracts on ERHC’s behalf.

G. TCHC may not assign or subcontract any rights or obligations under this Agreement
without ERHC's prior written approval.

0

With the signatures below, the Traverse City Housing Commission and the Elk Rapids Housing
Commission verify that permissions to enter into this contract have been reviewed by each respective
Housing Commission and adopted by way of Resolution.

Traverse City Housing Commission

By:

Tony Lentych Date
Its: Executive Director

Elk Rapids Housing Commission

By:

Myrna Howse Date
Its: President

Page 3 0of 3

78



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 27, 2019
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Direcﬂikf
SUBJECT: Tenant Protection Vouchers and Section 18 Demolition and Disposition of Public

Housing
MESSAGE:

At this time last year, we authorized an application to HUD to participate in the RAD program
that would effectively move our Public Housing portfolio to the Housing Choice Voucher
program. We had notified residents of this application and we continue to meet with our more
vulnerable adults to make sure they understand the program. Orchardview Townhomes was to
be a part of this “asset conversion” process but in the time since our submission of the
application, HUD Field Staff has made us aware that another process may be more appropriate

for this property.

With the continued threat of litigation over the soil conditions at this property, HUD is
recommending that we apply under Section 18 through a “Health & Safety” Disposition of the
Property. According to HUD, this will accomplish two things for us. The first, is that this seems
to be the only mechanism to secure Tenant Protection Vouchers (TPVs) for ALL residents at the
property. Other means of property disposition available to us like “Obsolete Physical
Condition”, do not trigger the same percentage of TPVs, if any at all. The second benefit is that
we will can still keep those units in our overall portfolio (the “Faircloth Amendment” limit) and
“move” those units to another future property once built (as we plan to do under RAD).

It should also be noted that pursuing this application does not mean that the property will
cease to be “affordable” housing. Certain deed restrictions may be sought so that residents
who are not wanting to relocate, can utilize their newly acquired TPVs to remain on property
for the duration of their lease or as long as they maintain their residency on that site. It is likely
that the TPVs will make the property more sustainable financially as an affordable housing

project.

Since attaining the TPVs is our primary goal so that we can offer them to those residents that
wish to relocate away from the property, it is clear that we should utilize the Section 18
application process. Therefore, despite the fact that we have not completed all of the
preliminary requirements for the application like securing the title to the property, we have

Page 1 of 2
79



been encouraged to pass a resolution authorizing an application under Section 18 Property
Disposition in order to quickly secure those TPVs.

RESOLUTION TO SECURE TENANT PROTECTION VOUCHERS THROUGH SECTION 18
September 27, 2019

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has
encouraged Public Housing Authorities, including the Traverse City Housing Commission (TCHC),
to convert its housing property portfolio from the Section 9 funding platform to the Section 8
funding platform which, according to recent Federal budgets, appears to be a more stable

funding platform; and

WHEREAS, the TCHC has previously applied to HUD to participate in the Rental Assistance
Demonstration (RAD) program for its Riverview Terrace and Orchardview Townhomes
properties and has spent much of the last year preparing to complete the requirements to
participate in the RAD program; and

WHEREAS, the TCHC has been notified by HUD staff that this property is now eligible to
participate in a Property Disposition Program under the Health & Safety criteria of Section 18
the Demolition and Disposition of Public Housing which will secure Tenant Protection Vouchers

(TBVs); and

WHEREAS, the TCHC recognizes that HUD has assigned a “Section 18 Expeditor” to TCHC in
order to assist in the Application Process and that this Expeditor has recommended this course

of action; and

WHEREAS, the TCHC staff has thoroughly researched the Section 18 program, participated in
training/conference sessions related to this topic, and believes this to be the most viable option
to accomplish its goal of providing the maximum number of TBVs; and

WHEREAS, the TCHC concurs in the recommendation of the Executive Director and HUD staff.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Traverse City Housing Commission as follows:

TCHC authorizes an application (HUD Forms 52860 & 52860-A) to the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) under Section 18 because the
retention of the property is not in the best interests of the residents or the public housing
agency because conditions in the area surrounding the public housing project may
adversely affect the health or safety of the residents or the feasible operation of the
project by the public housing agency.

ATTACHMENTS: Section 18 Language & HUD PIH Notice 2018-04
E-Mail from HUD Field Office & E-Mail from City Attorney

Page 2 of 2
80



SEC. 18. DEMOLITION AND DISPOSITION OF PUBLIC HOUSING.

(a) APPLICATIONS FOR DEMOLITION AND DISPOSITION.—Except as provided in subsection
(b), upon receiving an application by a public housing agency for authorization, with or without
financial assistance under this title, to demolish or dispose of a public housing project or a
portion of a public housing project (including any transfer to a resident-supported nonprofit
entity), the Secretary shall approve the application, if the public housing agency certifies—
(1) in the case of—

(A) an application proposing demolition of a public housing project or a

portion of a public housing project, that—

(i) the project or portion of the public housing project is obsolete

as to physical condition, location, or other factors, making it unsuitable

for housing purposes; and

(ii) no reasonable program of modifications is cost-effective to

return the public housing project or portion of the project to useful life;

and

(B) an application proposing the demolition of only a portion of a public

housing project, that the demolition will help to ensure the viability of the

remaining portion of the project;

(2) in the case of an application proposing disposition by sale or other transfer of

a public housing project or other real property subject to this title—

(A) the retention of the property is not in the best interests of the residents

or the public housing agency because—

(i) conditions in the area surrounding the public housing project

adversely affect the health or safety of the residents or the feasible

operation of the project by the public housing agency; or

(ii) disposition allows the acquisition, development, or

rehabilitation of other properties that will be more efficiently or

effectively operated as low-income housing;

(B) the public housing agency has otherwise determined the disposition to

be appropriate for reasons that are—

(i} in the best interests of the residents and the public housing

agency;

(i) consistent with the goals of the public housing agency and the

public housing agency plan; and

(iii) otherwise consistent with this title; or

(C) for property other than dwelling units, the property is excess to the

needs of a public housing project or the disposition is incidental to, or does not

interfere with, continued operation of a public housing project;

(3) that the public housing agency has specifically authorized the demolition or
disposition in the public housing agency plan, and has certified that the actions
contemplated in the public housing agency plan comply with this section;

(4) that the public housing agency—

(A) will notify each family residing in a project subject to demolition or

disposition 90 days prior to the displacement date, except in cases of imminent

threat to health or safety, consistent with any guidelines issued by the Secretary
governing such notifications, that—

(i) the public housing project will be demolished or disposed of;

(ii) the demalition of the building in which the family resides will



not commence until each resident of the building is relocated; and

(iii) each family displaced by such action will be offered

comparable housing—

(1) that meets housing quality standards;

(1) that is located in an area that is generally not less

desirable than the location of the displaced person's housing; and

(M1) which may include—

(aa) tenant-based assistance, except that the

requirement under this clause regarding offering of

comparable housing shall be fulfilled by use of tenantbased

assistance only upon the relocation of such family

into such housing;

(bb) project-based assistance; or

(cc) occupancy in a unit operated or assisted by the

public housing agency at a rental rate paid by the family

that is comparable to the rental rate applicable to the unit

from which the family is vacated;

(B) will provide for the payment of the actual and reasonable relocation
expenses of each resident to be displaced;

(C) will ensure that each displaced resident is offered comparable housing

in accordance with the notice under subparagraph (A); and

(D) will provide any necessary counseling for residents who are displaced;

and

(E) will not commence demolition or complete disposition until all

residents residing in the building are relocated;

(5) that the net proceeds of any disposition will be used —

(A) unless waived by the Secretary, for the retirement of outstanding
obligations issued to finance the original public housing project or modernization
of the project; and

(B) to the extent that any proceeds remain after the application of

proceeds in accordance with subparagraph (A), for—

(i) the provision of low-income housing or to benefit the residents

of the public housing agency; or

(ii) leveraging amounts for securing commercial enterprises, onsite

in public housing projects of the public housing agency, appropriate

to serve the needs of the residents; and

(6) that the public housing agency has complied with subsection (c).

(b) DISAPPROVAL OF APPLICATIONS.—The Secretary shall disapprove an application
submitted under subsection (a) if the Secretary determines that—

(1) any certification made by the public housing agency under that subsection is
clearly inconsistent with information and data available to the Secretary or information
or data requested by the Secretary; or

(2) the application was not developed in consultation with—

(A) residents who will be affected by the proposed demolition or

disposition;

(B) each resident advisory board and resident council, if any, of the

project (or portion thereof) that will be affected by the proposed demolition or
disposition; and

(C) appropriate government officials.

82



(c) RESIDENT OPPORTUNITY TO PURCHASE IN CASE OF PROPOSED DISPOSITION.—

(1) IN GENERAL.—In the case of a proposed disposition of a public housing project

or portion of a project, the public housing agency shall, in appropriate circumstances, as
determined by the Secretary, initially offer the property to any eligible resident

organization, eligible resident management corporation, or nonprofit organization acting

on behalf of the residents, if that entity has expressed an interest, in writing, to the public
housing agency in a timely manner, in purchasing the property for continued use as lowincome
housing.

(2) TIMING.—

(A) EXPRESSION OF INTEREST.—A resident organization, resident

management corporation, or other resident-supported nonprofit entity referred to

in paragraph (1) may express interest in purchasing property that is the subject of

a disposition, as described in paragraph (1), during the 30-day period beginning

on the date of notification of a proposed sale of the property.

(B) OPPORTUNITY TO ARRANGE PURCHASE.—If an entity expresses written

interest in purchasing a property, as provided in subparagraph (A), no

disposition of the property shall occur during the 60-day period beginning on the

date of receipt of that written notice (other than to the entity providing the

notice), during which time that entity shall be given the opportunity to obtain a

firm commitment for financing the purchase of the property.

(d) REPLACEMENT UNITS.—Notwithstanding any other provision of law, replacement

public housing units for public housing units demolished in accordance with this section may be
built on the original public housing location or in the same neighborhood as the original public
housing location if the number of the replacement public housing units is significantly fewer
than the number of units demolished.

(e) CONSOLIDATION OF OCCUPANCY WITHIN OR AMONG BUILDINGS.—Nothing in this

section may be construed to prevent a public housing agency from consolidating occupancy
within or among buildings of a public housing project, or among projects, or with other housing
for the purpose of improving living conditions of, or providing more efficient services to,
residents.

(f) DE MINIMIS EXCEPTION TO DEMOLITION REQUIREMENTS.—Notwithstanding any other
provision of this section, in any 5-year period a public housing agency may demolish not more
than the lesser of 5 dwelling units or 5 percent of the total dwelling units owned by the public
housing agency, but only if the space occupied by the demolished unit is used for meeting the
service or other needs of public housing residents or the demolished unit was beyond repair.
(g) UNIFORM RELOCATION AND REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION ACT.—The Uniform

Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 shall not apply to activities under
this section.

(h) RELOCATION AND REPLACEMENT.—Of the amounts appropriated for tenant-based
assistance under section 8 in any fiscal year, the Secretary may use such sums as are necessary
for relocation and replacement housing for dwelling units that are demolished and disposed of
from the public housing inventory (in addition to other amounts that may be available for such

purposes).

83



,,e‘f'l‘{r”"' 3,
J%"\' nr'.!ﬁ-‘oq
OFFICE OF PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING

e
*

US. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
WASHINGTON, DC 20410-5000

= w
»

'k
ol O,

)
z
°
=

x4

Special Attention of: Notice PIH 2018-04 (HA)
Public Housing Agencies (PHAS)

Public Housing Directors Issued: March 22, 2018
Resident Management Corporations Revised: July 3, 2018 to update

Section 6(F)1 and 6(F)3
Revised: December 14, 2018 to add
2018-09 and minor corrections

This notice supersedes and replaces
Notice PIH 2012-7. This notice
remains in effect until amended,
superseded or rescinded.

Cross-References: Notices: PIH 2011-7; 2016-13; 2016-20; 2016-22, 2016-23, 2017-10, 2017-
22,2017-24,2018-09

Subject: Demolition and/or disposition of public housing property, eligibility for tenant-
protection vouchers and associated requirements.

1) Purpose. This notice explains application requirements to request HUD approval to
demolish and/or dispose of public housing property under Section 18 of the United States
Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437p) (1937 Act) and related Tenant Protection Voucher
(TPV) eligibility for such actions. This notice is used in conjunction with HUD’s implementing
regulations at 24 CFR part 970, and related rules and applies to all SAC applications, including
those under review or already approved by HUD if the PHA is requesting an amendment of

HUD’s approval.

For purposes of this notice, public housing or public housing property means low-income
housing, and all necessary appurtenances thereto, assisted under the 1937 Act, other than
assistance under 42 U.S.C. 1437f of the 1937 Act (section 8), and includes public housing units
developed pursuant to the mixed-finance development method. The term “project” is defined by
section 3(b)(1) of the 1937 Act and means housing developed, acquired, or assisted by a PHA
under the 1937 Act, and the improvements of any such housing. Public housing includes non-
dwelling property (e.g., vacant land, administrative buildings and community buildings)
acquired, developed, modernized, operated or maintained with 1937 Act funds.

www.hud.gov espanol.hud.gov

84



2) SAC Application Requirements.!

A. Processing. HUD’s Special Applications Center (SAC) reviews applications for demolition
and disposition (SAC applications) in accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR part 970.
SAC only reviews complete SAC applications. If a PHA submits a SAC application that is
substantially incomplete or deficient (e.g., missing required supporting documentation), SAC
returns the SAC application to the PHA and informs the PHA of the deficiencies.? Prior to re-
submitting the SAC application, the PHA must consult residents and resident groups and secure
a new board resolution on any material changes from the original submission. Pursuant to 24
CFR 970.29, HUD disapproves a SAC application if HUD determines: (1) a certification made
by the PHA under 24 CFR part 970 is clearly inconsistent with the PHA Plan or any information
and data available to or requested by HUD; or (2) the application was not developed in
consultation with residents, resident groups, and local government officials.

B. PHA Plan. Proposed demolition or disposition must be included in a PHA Annual Plan,
Significant Amendment or MTW Annual Plan. Qualified PHAs must discuss the demolition or
disposition at a public hearing, as required by 24 CFR 903.7.3

C. Environmental Requirements. Proposed demolitions and disposition must comply with 24
CFR 970.13 and have environmental clearance, which means final approval from a HUD
Approving Official or the Responsible Entity of an environmental review conducted under 24
CER part 50 or 58. See Notice PIH 2016-22. PHAs are responsible for providing the
Responsible Entity or local Office of Public Housing (Field Office) with a full description of the
activities in connection with the demolition and/or disposition (including relocation, known
future use of the site, use of disposition proceeds) to comply with aggregation requirements.*
The site re-use is not limited to future actions by the PHA, but includes any future known reuse.
See 24 CFR 970.13(b) for factors in determining what constitutes a known future use.

D. Resident Consultation. In addition to resident consultation for PHA Plans, PHAs must
comply with resident consultation requirements under 24 CFR 970.9, including consultation
with: (i) residents who may be affected by the demolition or disposition action; (ii) resident
organizations for the affected project, if any; (iii) PHA-wide resident organizations, if any; and
(iv) the Resident Advisory Board or equivalent body. PHAs must ensure communications and
materials are accessible. See section 6)F.5.

E. Offer of Sale to Resident Organizations (Disposition Only). PHAs must, in appropriate
circumstances as determined by the Assistant Secretary, provide resident entities the opportunity
to purchase the project, subject to certain exceptions. See 24 CFR 970.9(b)(3). A PHA
requesting consideration of exceptions to 24 CFR 970.9(b)(1) follow the process stated at 24
CFR 970.9(b)(4).

F. Board Resolution. A PHA must obtain a signed and dated resolution from its Board of
Commissioners authorizing the PHA to submit the SAC application. The Board must be

! Note that these items are not a substitute for the SAC application requirements described in 24 CFR part 970 or
HUD-52860. Rather, the below provide additional guidance and clarification on certain requirements.

2 SAC currently returns applications to PHAs by changing the status of the application to DRAFT status in the
[nventory Management System/PIH [nformation Center (PIC) (IMS/PIC).

3 Qualified PHASs are defined by the Housing and Economic Recovery Act (HERA) as a PHA that (1) has a
combined unit total of 550 or less public housing units and section 8 vouchers; (2) is not designated troubled under
section 6(j)(2) of the 1937 Act, the Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS), as a troubled public housing
agency during the prior 12 months; and (3) does not have a failing score under the Section 8 Management
Assessment Program (SEMAP) during the prior 12 months.

* See 24 CFR 58.32 and 24 CFR 50.21

85



consulted and approve all material parts of the SAC application including the justification;
method of disposition (if applicable); use of proceeds; and relocation plan. The authorizing
resolution must be dated after all local government and resident consultations are conducted.

G. Phased Applications. PHAs may submit SAC applications through a “phased” method with
staggered timelines, so that units in later phases remain eligible for operating subsidy. A PHA
submits a SAC application in IMS/PIC for each phase, with different relocation start timelines.
The same supporting documentation (e.g., board resolution, resident consultation, government
consultation) may be used for its all phases. See 24 CFR 970.7(a).

H. Amendments. PHAs must comply with all material terms of the SAC application. If after
receiving HUD approval, a PHA’s plan changes on material terms, SAC approval of the change
is required. Material terms include (i) method of disposition; (ii) public bid sale where offer is
less than 80% of fair market value (FMV) appraisal submitted in the SAC application (the PHA
must describes its due diligence in offering the public housing property for sale on the open and
competitive market and its rationale for accepting an offer that is less than 80% of appraised
FMV. Alternatively, the PHA may submit an updated appraisal); (iii) terms of commensurate
public benefit disposition (the PHA must describe the revised future use of the property so HUD
can confirm the commensurate public benefit); and (iv) use of proceeds. PHAs request
amendments by sending an email to SACTA@hud.gov with the information noted above and a
board resolution approving the change. On a case-by-case basis, SAC may require additional
supporting documentation to support an amendment (e.g., evidence of local government and/or
resident consultation; confirmation of environmental clearance).

3) Disposition.

A. Justification Criteria for Units. HUD reviews PHA certifications and narratives, along with
other information available to or requested by HUD, on a case-by-case basis. HUD approves
SAC applications for dispositions based on at least one of the following three reasons:

1. Surrounding Area: 24 CFR 970.17(a). Retention of units is not in the best interests of
the residents or the PHA because the conditions in the area surrounding the project (e.g.,
density, industrial or commercial development) adversely affect the health or safety of
the residents or the feasible operation of the project by the PHA. The PHA supports its
application with at least one of the following:

a. To support a SAC application based on health or safety, PHAs demonstrate
conditions that present serious obstacles in maintaining the units as healthy or safe
housing and why the PHA cannot cure or mitigate those conditions in a cost-effective
manner. HUD encourages PHAs to submit supporting third-party documentation,
which include environmental reviews conducted under 24 CFR part 58. HUD may
consider other available information, including analyses of land development,
socioeconomic, community facilities and services, and natural features. In
accordance with Notice PIH 2016-22, HUD may elect to perform an environmental
review under 24 CFR part 50, or

b. To support a SAC application based on infeasible operation, PHAs demonstrate a
lack of demand for the units. Supporting documentation includes evidence the units
have long-term vacancy issues, notwithstanding due diligence in marketing (e.g.,
census tract data on declining population in the jurisdiction; units located in an
isolated area with limited access to transportation and infrastructure; high turnover

86



rates). On a case-by-case basis, HUD may require a PHA to submit a market analysis
or HUD may perform one.

2. Improved Efficiency/Effectiveness Through Off-Site Development of Low-income
Housing: 24 CFR 970.17(b). Retention of the units is not in the best interests of
residents or the PHA because disposition allows for the development of other properties
that will be more efficiently or effectively operated as low-income housing projects. For
purposes of this notice, “low-income housing” is limited to public housing units, project-
based voucher (PBV) units, or Section 8 PBRA units and does not include housing where
tenants are using tenant-based Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV). Development
may include acquisition (with or without rehabilitation) or new construction. PHAs must
demonstrate why the replacement low-income housing units are preferable (e.g., more
energy efficient; better unit configuration; better location in terms of transportation, jobs,
or schools; furthers minority or economic de-concentration where units are relocated
from an area of minority concentration to one that is not concentrated). The units being
acquired, developed, or rehabilitated must be off-site. In providing the statement
Justifying the proposed disposition pursuant to 24 CFR 970.7(a)(5), PHAs explain their
intention to acquire, develop, or rehabilitate low-income housing projects. For public
housing units, the PHA submits the development proposal to HUD under 24 CFR part
905. For PBV units, the PHA submits an “intent to project-base” notification to the Field

Office.

3. Best Interests and Consistency: 24 CFR 970.17(c). A PHA certifies it has determined
the disposition to be appropriate for reasons that are in the best interests of the residents
and the PHA, consistent with the goals of the PHA and the PHA Plan and are otherwise
consistent with the 1937 Act. In making such a certification, a PHA considers the
tremendous need for public housing units nationwide, the purpose and mandate of the
1937 Act, the mission and obligations of the PHA to maintain and operate projects as
decent and safe housing in accordance with its ACC, and other tools available to the PHA
to preserve and reposition its public housing stock. SAC applications are reviewed on a
case-by-case basis. Below are examples of what HUD generally approves under this
section:

a. Unit obsolescence. The units are obsolete as to physical condition in
accordance with applicable demolition criteria described at section 4)A.1 of
this notice.

b. Very Small PHAs. The PHA owns and operates 50 or fewer public housing
units under its ACC and has determined that it is in the best interests of the
residents and PHA to close out its Section 9 public housing program in
accordance with Notice PIH 2016-23.

c. Comprehensive Rehabilitation or Replacement through Rental Assistance
Demonstration (RAD). The PHA is converting at least 75 percent of the
public housing units within a project (as project is defined by RAD) under
RAD and meets the requirements of the RAD Final Implementation Notice
REV-3, H-2017-3, and is replacing the units proposed for disposition (up to
25 percent of the public housing units within a project) with Section 8 project-
based voucher (PBV) assistance in accordance with 24 CFR part 983. The

4

87



aggregate number of replacement units (RAD and PBVs) must meet the RAD
“substantial conversion of assistance” requirements. To qualify, the project-
based Section 8 units (RAD and PBV) must be newly constructed or
substantially rehabilitated (defined for purposes of this clause as hard
construction costs, including general requirements, overhead and profit, and
payment and performance bonds, in excess of 60% of the Housing
Construction Costs as published by HUD for a given market area) without
using 9% Low Income Housing Tax Credits.

d. Improved Efficiency/Effectiveness Through On-Site Development of
Low-income Housing: 24 CFR 970.17(c). The requirements of Section
3)A.2 of this notice apply except the replacement low-income housing units
are located on-site. The replacement low-income housing units may be newly
constructed or the same public housing units after modernization
(rehabilitation).’

€. Scattered Site Units. Due to distance between units and lack of uniformity of
systems (e.g. HVAC, utilities) the PHA demonstrates an unsustainability to
operate and/or maintain the units as public housing. For purposes of this
notice, scattered site units generally mean units in non-contiguous buildings
with four or fewer total units.

B. Disposition Criteria of Non-Dwelling Buildings and Vacant Land. The PHA certifies, by
narrative statement and supporting documentation, that non-dwelling buildings or vacant land
meets the criteria of 24 CFR 970.17(d) because the property exceeds the needs of the project
after the date of full availability (DOFA); or the disposition of the property is incidental to, or
does not interfere with, continued operation of the remaining portion of the project.

C. Commensurate Public Benefit. In accordance with 24 CFR 970.19, dispositions proposed
below FMYV require a finding of commensurate public benefit, which HUD determines on a case-
by-case basis. Generally, the disposed property is developed for affordable housing purposes
serving low-income families (incomes at or below 80% of area median). Such affordable
housing may include, but is not limited to, public housing, project-based Section 8 housing, and
housing developed with low-income housing tax credits (LIHTCs). HUD encourages PHAs to
maximize economic opportunities available to residents (as described in section 6)F.5 of this
notice) when requesting HUD approval of a below FMV disposition based on commensurate
public benefit. PHAs should specifically describe these economic opportunity benefits in their
SAC applications as part of the commensurate public benefit description. To ensure compliance
with a HUD-approved commensurate public benefit, a use restriction may be required (that
survives foreclosure of mortgages and other liens) publicly recorded in the land records. As the
part of the SAC application, a PHA may propose a preferred form of use restriction (e.g., LIHTC
extended use agreement, HOME agreement, reversion clause in transfer documents, provision in
ground lease, separate use agreement). The use restriction must be in a form acceptable to HUD.
Field Offices will not release the Declaration of Trust/Declaration of Restricted Covenants

> If the PHA is proposing to dispose of public housing units to allow the same units to be modernized (rehabilitated)
under mixed-finance public housing development rules of 24 CFR 9035, the PHA submits the SAC application under
the “MF-MOD” disposition application type in IMS/PIC. This ensures Capital Fund and Operating Fund subsidy
are accurate.

88



(DOT/DORC) (HUD-52190) (4/2018) (or previous versions) until the PHA evidences
compliance.

4) Demolition.

A. Justification Criteria. HUD reviews demolition requests in accordance with the

following criteria:®
1. Physical Condition: 24 CFR 970.15(b)(1)(i) and (b)(2). PHAs must demonstrate
substantial physical issues of the buildings/units (i.e., critical structural issues,
deficiencies in major systems, deterioration due to prolonged deferred maintenance) that
cannot be corrected in a cost-effective manner. PHAs may submit Physical Needs
Assessments (PNAs), government inspections (including condemnation orders), and/or
independent architect or engineer’s reports as supporting documentation.” HUD may
consider other available information, including REAC scores; Capital Fund Program Five
Year Action Plans, Energy Performance Contracting (EPC) information; and/or on-site
inspections by HUD staff. To support a certification of physical obsolescence and cost-
ineffectiveness, the PHA submits form HUD-52860-A (4/2018) and HUD-52860-B
(4/2018), along with a list of specific and detailed work-items that require rehabilitation
or repair, preferably prepared by an outside engineer or architect, in two components:
scope of work and cost-estimates. The following generally applies to the scope of work:

a. Estimates based on the standards outlined in the most recent International
Building Code (IBC) and National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 5000
standards. PHAs may include local code requirements (i.e., fire codes;
requirements for natural disasters such as flooding or wildfires);

b. Building systems (e.g., HVAC, plumbing, electric), external amenities (e.g.,
roofs, doors, windows), and internal amenities (e.g., kitchens, bathrooms,
flooring) limited to those that address immediate capital needs for a maximum of
three years. Replacement costs are restricted to the remaining useful life of an
item for three years or less. Actual service life may depend on initial quality of
the item, local environmental factors, use/abuse, and levels of routine
maintenance. Age of an item alone is not evidence of need to repair or replace.
Each item is individually estimated and may reference life cycle values per the
R.S. Means Facilities Maintenance and Repair Cost Data book;

c. Underground utilities (e.g., sewer, water, gas, electric), regardless of distances,
provided the PHA owns the utility and evidences the need for replacement;

d. Mitigation costs of asbestos, lead-based paint, or other environmental issues
supported by reports submitted with the SAC application;

¢ PHASs do not need demolition approval from HUD if PHAs are proposing to dispose of public housing units or
other property before such property will be demolished (e.g., by a LIHTC acquiring entity). Instead, PHAs must
comply with the disposition criteria in Section 3 of this notice.

7 In accordance with 24 CFR 905.314(g), PHAs are permitted to rehabilitate and address the capital needs of
projects provided the rehabilitation costs do not exceed 90% of total development cost TDC. Accordingly, per 24
CFR 970.15(b)(2), if a project’s rehabilitation costs are between 57.14% (or 62.5% if elevator) and 90% of TDC, the
PHA may either voluntarily pursue a demolition or disposition action for the project or may rehabilitate the project
with Capital Funds. However, if rehabilitation costs for a project exceed 90% of TDC, the PHA’s only choice is to
pursue a demolition or disposition or use funds other than Capital Funds to address the project’s capital needs.

89



e. Structural defects when supported by reports from a licensed professional
engineer;

f. Accessibility improvements for persons with mobility, vision, hearing or other
impairments, provided improvements are consistent with standards, regulations,
and other requirements under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
(including the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS)), Fair Housing
Act, Americans with Disabilities Act, other applicable federal authorities, state or
local requirements that exceed federal baseline requirements, and accessibility
requirements in remedial agreements or orders;

g- Imminent health and/or safety issues even if such costs are otherwise not eligible
provided the PHA provides supporting documentation from an independent party
evidencing the occurrence and resulting health and/or safety risks.

HUD reserves the right to disallow items in a scope of work if HUD determines there are
more cost-effective alternatives to address the rehabilitation or replacement needs. If
PHAs complete major capital work after the scope of work is prepared, the PHA must
include a description of that work in the SAC application. HUD generally does not
allow the following costs to be included in a rehabilitation scope of work:

a. Work associated with enhancements or improvements of working systems or
fixtures at the project (including energy efficiency “green” improvements);

b. Amenities not currently existing at the project (e.g., solar panels; tank-less water
heaters; trash enclosures, washer/dryer hook-ups; garbage disposals; central air-
conditioning; addition of new porches);

c. Work items that address a project’s needs beyond three years;

d. Local code compliance if the building code requirements are otherwise not
triggered by the rehabilitation/repair;

e. Landscaping or other site work beyond five feet of the exterior walls of a
building;

f. Upgrading utility lines that are otherwise in working condition;

g. Work items associated with site improvements and appurtenances (e.g., parking
lots, security cameras, playgrounds, community centers), even if those site
improvements or appurtenances exist and need of repairs; and

h. Replacing PHA personal property (e.g., replacing appliances or other removable
fixtures such as refrigerators, ovens, and window treatments).

The following generally applies to cost-estimates of the eligible scope of work items:

a. Total development costs (TDC) comparisons per HUD-posted costs for the year
the rehabilitation estimate is made. See 24 CFR 905.314.

b. R.S. Means cost index, Marshall and Swift cost index, or other accurate and
reliable cost-estimates (e.g., actual and competitive bids).

¢. Hard construction costs (HCC) as defined in 24 CFR part 905 (including existing
items inside a building or within five feet of the exterior walls; and costs to repair
landscaping damaged due to rehabilitation).

PHAs may not include additional costs attributable to inflation or “cost escalation.” For
example, if a PNA completed in 2017 indicates a roof replacement is necessary in 2019,

90



the PHA must use current estimated costs without any escalation, cost adjustments or
other means of adjusting for inflation for work projected to be undertaken/completed in
2019. Instead, the PHA uses 2017 cost-index information.

The following fees are maximum amounts for soft costs associated with public housing
rehabilitation.® PHAs may flexibly determine costs for each item provided the total cost does
not exceed the maximum. Percentages are based on hard construction and will vary based on
the project size:

a. Construction contingency: 7.5 percent

b. Architectural/Engineer’s design and construction monitoring fees: 5.5 percent

c. Profit and overhead fees for specialty sub-contractor (e.g. HVAC, Electric,

Plumbing, Elevator): 10 percent
d. General Condition fees (e.g. Permit, Insurance, Bonds): 5 percent
e. PHA administrative costs: 2 percent

2. Location: 24 CFR 970.15(b)(1)(ii) and (b)(2). PHA demonstrates the location of the
units causes obsolescence, including physical deterioration of the neighborhood; change
in neighborhood from residential to industrial or commercial; or environmental
conditions of the site, a portion of the site, or the housing jeopardize the residential use.
The cost-test for obsolescence based on location includes the PHA’s cost to cure the
obsolescence (e.g., buffering nearby industrial or commercial development; mitigating
environmental conditions) and whether these costs exceed applicable TDC percentages.
[n some cases, there may be no way to cure the obsolescence, regardless of cost (e.g.,
project is in a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) designated floodway).
In other cases, the obsolescence may be curable with a mitigation cost (e.g., flood-
proofing and FEMA -insurance for designated floodplains).

3. Other Factors: 24 CFR 970.15(b)(1)(iii) and (b)(2). PHA demonstrates factors
impacting the marketability, usefulness, or management of the units that seriously impede
operations for residential use supported by third party documentation. The cost-test for
obsolescence based on other factors includes the PHA’s cost to cure the cause and
whether these costs exceed applicable TDC percentages. In some cases, curing the
obsolescence is not possible regardless of costs. In cases where the obsolescence may be
curable, include the PHA’s cost of due diligence in marketing and to cure obsolete factors
(e.g., cost to add a second bathroom to units with a high number of bedrooms).

B. De Minimis Demolition. In any 5-year period, a PHA may demolish the lesser of 5
dwelling units or § percent of the total public housing dwelling units without the need to
obtain HUD approval under 24 CFR part 970, provided the resulting space is used to meet
the service or other needs of the residents or the PHA determines the unit(s) are beyond
repair. Demolition criteria of 970.15 does not apply to de minimis demolitions. Prior to
demolishing units under this authority, the PHA must submit information to HUD via
IMS/PIC, including a description of the proposed units and other items required by 24 CFR

970.7(a)(1), (2), (12), (13), and (14).

8 HUD may consider higher percentages for soft costs for compelling reasons on a case-by-case basis.

91



5) Eligibility and Application Process for Tenant-Protection Vouchers (TPVs).

A. TPV Eligibility. As part of HUD’s approval of a SAC application, a PHA may be eligible to
receive Section 8 HCV assistance from HUD in the form of TPVs. The issuance of TPVsto a
PHA does not occur with SAC approval of an application. Instead, the PHA must apply
separately for TPVs in accordance with the current PIH funding notice for the HCV program.

HUD determines a PHA’s TPV award based on the relevant appropriations and other HUD-
issued guidance (including the applicable year’s HCV funding notice). HUD’s approval of the
SAC application indicates the maximum number of both relocation and replacement TPVs that a

PHA is eligible to receive.

Notice PIH 2018-09 states a PHA’s final replacement TPV award for Public Housing actions is
based on the occupancy of the units at the time HUD approves the SAC application. A PHA’s
replacement TPV will not change unless the PHA’s redevelopment plan has been revised to
reduce the number of eligible replacement TPVs. See Section 6.C.1.b.ii.

Notice PIH 2018-09 states a PHA’s final relocation TPV award for Public Housing actions is
based on the occupancy of the units at the time the TPV application is submitted to HUD. This
number may be less (but not more) than the maximum number of relocation TPVs identified in
HUD’s approval of the SAC application. See Section 6.C.1.b.1.

Based on limited availability of TPV funding, HUD is limiting the maximum TPV awards
for dispositions based on improved efficiency or effectiveness under Section 3) A.2 or 3)
A.3.d of this notice to 25 percent of the occupied units at the project. However, even if a
PHA is not eligible to receive TPVs in a SAC-approved disposition, the PHA must still
comply with relocation requirements of 24 CFR 970.21.

B. TPV Application Process. A PHA must submit the following to the Field Office:

1. Name and IMS/PIC number for the units approved in the SAC application. Number of
TPVs (both relocation and replacement) requested which must equal or be less than the
maximum number of TPVs identified in the SAC approval and address relevant
appropriation limits including HUD TPV guidance. See Notice PIH 2017-10 (or the
current replacement PIH funding notice for the HCV program) concerning the
differences between replacement and relocation TPVs.

2. Form HUD-52515 (Voucher Funding Application). If lease-up covers more than one
calendar year, the PHA must submit a separate Form HUD-52515 for each calendar
year.

3. Leasing schedule identifying the number of TPVs leased on a month-to-month basis. If
lease-up covers more than one calendar year, the PHA must submit separate leasing
schedules for each calendar year. Ifthe PHA is approved for both replacement and
relocation TPVs as part of the same SAC approval, the PHA must submit separate
leasing schedule(s) for each type of TPV.

4. SAC application approval as a PDF copy, signed and dated.

92



5. Ifthe PHA is a Public Housing only PHA (and therefore cannot receive or administer
TPVs), the name and PHA code of the PHA that has agreed to administer the TPV,
along with an agreement letter from that PHA. HUD does not allow Public Housing
only PHAS to create Section 8 HCV programs based solely on TPV eligibility.

The Field Office conducts a threshold review of the TPV request prior to sending the request to
HUD’s Financial Management Center (FMC). HUD’s FMC notifies PHAs of final TPV awards.

6) Other Requirements.
A. Existing Financial Transactions. PHAs with an approved transaction through the Capital
Fund Financing Program (CFFP), Section 30 (including PHA Mortgaged Transaction (PMT)),
Energy Performance Contracting (EPC), or Operating Fund Financing Program (OFFP) must
comply with additional instructions provided by HUD regarding such financing and may not take
any steps to implement a SAC-approved application without receiving confirmation from HUD
that all applicable requirements of the financing are satisfied. PHAs must certify an existing
financial agreement is not at-risk because of the proposed demolition or disposition action.
B. Operating Fund Accuracy. Updating Days to Relocation. As part of the SAC application,
PHAs include an estimated number of days from a SAC-approved application that it plans to
start relocation. HUD recognizes relocation plans sometimes change. However, because HUD
relies on relocation information to determine Operating Funds, PHAs are responsible to ensure
the relocation information remain reasonably accurate. If days to relocation in a SAC
application is not reasonably accurate, Asset Repositioning Fee (ARF) payments under 24 CFR
990.190 will be affected. See Notice PIH 2017-22 on how to update relocation dates.
C. Re-occupying Units Proposed for Demolition or Disposition. 24 CFR 970.25(a) states a
PHA should not re-rent units at turnover while HUD is considering a SAC application.
However, due to community needs or for other reasons consistent with its PHA Plan, a PHA may
decide it is in the best interests of the PHA, its residents, and the community to re-occupy
vacated units that are under SAC review. [f the PHA proposes demolition or disposition because
units are structurally unsound, located in a floodway, or otherwise uninhabitable, the PHA
cannot reoccupy the units. PHAs cannot re-occupy units after issuance of the 90-day relocation
notice.
D. Reporting Requirements. Within seven days of completion of the demolition or disposition
(e.g., execution of the sale or lease contract for disposition), PHAs must report the action in
IMS/PIC. On a case-by-case basis, HUD may require other reporting information.
E. False Certifications and HUD Enforcement. Any person knowingly presenting a false,
fictitious or fraudulent statement or claim in a HUD matter, including certifications and
supporting documentation submitted with SAC applications, are subject to criminal penalties,
civil liability, or administrative actions which HUD may prosecute. HUD may pursue
debarment/suspensions of principals and PHAs, and any enforcement actions available including,
but not limited to, injunctive relief and other equitable remedies.
F. Civil Rights Requirements. This notice does not modify a PHA’s fair housing, civil rights,
or accessible housing obligations. It does clarify those obligations with respect to public housing
demolition/disposition under Section 18.
1. PHA Certification. As part of the SAC application, PHAs certify compliance with all
applicable civil rights requirements, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
the Fair Housing Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the

10

93



Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the duty to affirmatively further fair
housing. A PHA'’s certification that it will affirmatively further fair housing means:
(1) for a PHA that has completed an Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) which has
been accepted by HUD, that it will take meaningful actions to further the goals
identified in the AFH conducted in accordance with 24 CFR 5.150 through 5.180, and
that it will take no action that is materially inconsistent with its obligation to
affirmatively further fair housing; or (2) for a PHA that is not yet required to and has
not submitted an AFH, that it must continue complying with the requirements that
existed prior to August 17, 2015, with respect to affirmatively furthering fair housing.
PHA s also certify that if HUD approves the SAC application, subsequent
implementation complies with all applicable civil rights requirements, including
environmental determinations for environmental justice.

. HUD Civil Rights Review. HUD’s Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity
(FHEO) conducts a civil rights review of SAC applications, which may include
applications for non-dwelling property. Pursuant to 24 CFR 970.7(a)(17), HUD may
request additional information, including information about the PHA’s compliance
with nondiscrimination requirements in relocations under 24 CFR 970.21(a) and the
PHA'’s affirmatively furthering fair housing certification under 24 CFR 903.7(0).

. Disclosure of Remedial Orders and Compliance Agreements. In its SAC
application, the PHA provides a certification that the demolition or disposition does
not violate any remedial civil rights order or agreement, voluntary compliance
agreement, final judgment, consent decree, settlement agreement, or other court order
or agreement (per 24 CFR § 970.9(a)(16)). In addition, the PHA states whether it is
operating under any federal, state, or local remedial order, compliance agreement, final
judgment, consent decree, settlement agreement or other court order or agreement,
including but not limited to those related to a fair housing or other civil rights finding
of noncompliance. Ifthe PHA is operating under such a document, it must provide a
citation to the document and attach a narrative description explaining how the
proposed demolition or disposition is consistent with such document.

. Federal Labor Standards and Economic Opportunity. PHAs using HUD funds for
demolition or disposition must comply with all applicable federal labor standards of
section 12 of the 1937 Act (42 U.S.C. 1437j) (Davis-Bacon) and requirements of
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C 1701u), as
amended. Activities include but are not limited to demolition and resident relocation.
Under Section 3 and 24 CFR 135, recipients of certain HUD financial assistance must
provide employment, training, and economic opportunities to the greatest extent
feasible to Section 3 residents or business concerns. Recipients of HUD funds have
Section 3 obligations regardless of the amount of funds (24 CFR 135.3(a)(3)).

. Accessible Resident Consultation. To ensure individuals with disabilities have
reasonable opportunities to consult on the SAC application, PHAs must ensure
communications and materials are accessible and in compliance with Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 24 CFR 8.6, 49 CFR 24.5, the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, and 28 CFR 35 and 36. This includes ensuring written and
oral communications, including resident meetings, are provided in appropriate
alternative formats as needed, e.g., Braille, audio, large type, accessible electronic
communications, assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, computer-

11

94



assisted real time transcription of meetings, brailed materials, large print documents,
accessible web-based and email communications, and when providing materials via
the Web. In selecting locations for consultation with residents, the PHA must provide
equal access for persons with disabilities, conducing sessions at locations that are
physically accessible to persons with disabilities, including individuals who use
wheelchairs. Individuals with disabilities must receive services in the most integrated
setting appropriate to their needs, meaning the needs of qualified individuals with
disabilities that enables interactions to the fullest extent possible. The PHA is guided
by the goal of maximizing participation in an integrated setting so that residents with
disabilities and residents without disabilities may hear and consider each other’s
views. Priority shall be given to on-site accessible locations (e.g., TV rooms or
informal gathering places) even if to do so requires multiple sessions with smaller
groups of residents. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and regulations at 24
CFR 1, require PHAs to take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and activities for persons who have limited ability to read, speak, or
understand English (i.e., individuals who have limited English proficiency or LEP
persons). Written materials provided in English are to be provided in regularly
encountered languages among the residents. PHAs may need to provide interpreters to
communicate between different languages to ensure LEP persons have meaningful
access. PHAs hold meetings in languages other than English to provide direct
communication and participation.

6) Relocation of Residents. If residents are relocated due to a demolition and/or disposition, the
PHA must follow relocation requirements at 24 CFR 970.21, and not the relocation requirements
at 49 CFR part 24, which implements the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA), as amended. However, if subsequent acquisition,
rehabilitation or demolition carried out with HUD funds or carried out with other HUD-funded
activities causes residents to relocate, the URA may apply to those relocations. Additionally, if
CDBG or HOME funds are used in the demolition or with conversion of lower-income dwelling
units to a use other than lower-income dwelling units, the project may be subject to section
104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, including relocation
assistance and one-for-one replacement provisions under 24 CFR part 42 subpart C.

7) Technical Assistance. Contact SACTA@hud.gov.

8) Paperwork Reduction Act. Information collection requirements contained in this notice are
approved by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) under the Paperwork Reduction Act
of 1995 (44 U.S.C. 3501-3520). The OMB control numbers are 2577-0029 and 2577-0075.

Dominique Blom
General Deputy Assistant Secretary for
Public and Indian Housing

12

95



Tony Lentych

From: Gordon, Douglas C <Douglas.C.Gordon@hud.gov>

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2019 11:27 AM

Cc: DET Public Housing Staff - Detroit; Gerut, John D; Lyons, Kelley D
Subject: Section 18 Expeditors — Removal Application Reviews

Dear Executive Directors:

The repositioning of Public Housing units is in process! Thank you for your action to sustain your assisted housing
portfolio for the long term. As you know, HUD is offering many tools to support your efforts. We recognize every PHA
has a unique combination of physical, financial, market conditions, and governing community to assess and lead into
that sustainable future. We (1) look forward to our continued communication as you and your Boards determine the

path to your repositioning goal.

The Section 18 removals and conversions are key to repositioning. If your PHA has decided to move forward with a
Section 18 Application (the "Application”), HUD urges you take advantage of the Section 18 Expeditors in your Field
Office and Region. These Expeditors have been trained and are ready to assist and assure that your Application moves

quickly to approval.

HOW THE EXPEDITOR PROCESS WORKS FOR A PHA

When ready to prepare your Application, contact your assigned Field Office Point of Contact (POC). They will set up a call
with you and the Expeditor to discuss the Application type and schedule to submission. The Application should first be
completed in a draft or “paper” format — PDF or Word and emailed to the Expeditor and your POC (the Applications
should not be submitted in PIC prior to the Expeditor review of the draft). The fillable draft Applications can be found
here: https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/public_indian_housing/centers/sac/exp52860

The Expeditors will review and let you know if you are missing information or have any mistakes. The SAC staff currently
have more PIC Applications than can be reviewed within a reasonable time frame. SAC often must return Applications to
PHA’s for errors that can be corrected, however, currently it could take weeks or months before an Application is
returned. The Expeditors are in a position to discover those issues and work through them with the PHA in a timely

manner.

Once the Expeditor (with a QA/QC review) determines the application is ready, you will be notified to submit the
Application into the PIC system.

DOES A PHA WITH AN APPLICATION IN THE PREPARATION PROCESS HAVE TO USE THE EXPEDITOR?
The simple answer is “No”. There is not a regulation or requirement, but as discussed, HUD urges PHAs to incorporate

the Expeditor review into their Application process. If SAC rejects a PHA’s PIC submitted application, the rejection will be
copied to the Field Office in order to incorporate the Expeditor for the next submission.

If you have any questions, please reach out to your POC who will assist in obtaining a response.
Sincerely,

Douglas C. Gordon, Director

“Our goal is to exceed public expectations.”

Office of Public Housing



Tonx Lentxch —

From: Lauren Trible-Laucht <ltlaucht@traversecitymi.gov>
Sent: Thursday, August 29, 2019 3:18 PM

To: Tony Lentych

Cc: Marty Colburn

Subject: Orchardview - Title Transfer to TCHC

Tony,

The City is aware that transfer of title to the Orchardview property from the City to the Traverse City Housing
Commission is necessary for Section 18 and we are looking in to it. Please let me know if you need something

further on this. Thank you.
Lauren

Lauren Trible-Laucht

City Attorney

City of Traverse City

400 Boardman Avenue
Traverse City, MI 49684
Office: (231) 922-4404

Fax: (231) 922-4476
LTLaucht@traversecitymi.gov
www.cl.traverse-city.mi.us

97



P’ N
Tc Traverse City

HOUSING

——— Housing Commission

a Public Housing Authority

CORRESPONDENCE

August 27, 2019 E-Mail from Carl Coan on HUD CFP Lawsuit

Invitation to Orchardview Residents for September 25, 2019 Meeting
September 8, 2019 Record-Eagle Article on Orchardview
September 16, 2019 Letter from Cunningham Limp Construction Company
Various Documents of FY 2020 Federal Budget
Draft Response Activity Plan to State of Michigan

98



Tony Lentych

From: CL Law Clerk <LawClerk@coanlyons.com>
Sent: Tuesday, August 27, 2019 12:39 PM
Subject: FW: 2012 Offset Lawsuit Appeal

RECEIVED

AUG 2 7 2019

Traverse City
Housing Commission

Dear Plaintiffs:

I am forwarding the message below on behalf of attorney, Carl Coan, lil.

Sincerely,
Joseph Fons

From: Carl Coan, Ili

Sent: Tuesday, August 27, 2019 12:15 PM

To: CL Law Clerk <LawClerk@coanlyons.com>
Subject: 2012 Offset Lawsuit Appeal

Dear Plaintiffs:

The Government filed an appeal yesterday of the Claims Court’s June 25 Judgment awarding damages to you. However,
Bondurant Eley, the Government’s primary attorney in the Claims Court, told me that the Government still has not made
a final decision on whether to pursue an appeal. The Government filed its Notice of Appeal to preserve its right to
pursue an appeal. The Government would have been precluded from pursuing an appeal if it had not filed a Notice of

Appeal by yesterday.

As | have mentioned before, Ms. Eley and HUD have both recommended that the Government pursue an appeal.
However, it is not their decision to make. Rather, it will be made by attorneys in the appellate division of the

Department of Justice.

The Notice of Appeal was filed in the Claims Court which will forward the appeal to the Court of Appeals for the Federal
Circuit. The clerk’s office for the Federal Circuit will then docket the appeal, usually one to two weeks after the Notice of

Appeal was filed in the Claims Court.

Filing deadlines begin to run as soon as the appeal is docketed, including the deadlines for the filing of the parties’ Briefs.
Hopefully, the Government will make a final decision on whether to pursue an appeal by the time these deadlines begin

to run.

The Government can appeal the Claims Court’s denial of the Government’s motion to dismiss the case for lack of
jurisdiction, the Claims Court’s granting of summary judgment in your favor, or both. At this time, | don’t know which
issue(s) the Government is appealing. The Government won’t have to specify the issues it is appealing until it is required
to file a Docketing Statement thirty days after the appeal is docketed.

| have asked Ms. Bondurant to let me know when the Government makes its final decision on whether to pursue its
appeal. Assuming she honors my request, | will let you know what the Government’s decision is as soon as | know.

Please let me or Joseph know if you should have any questions.

Carl A. S. Coan, Ili

Coan & Lyons
1 99



1100 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
Suite 600

Washington, DC 20036

(202) 728-1070

100



' “ TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION
150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684
T:(231) 922-4915 | F:(231)922-2893

el LSl TDD: (800) 649-3777
1 TCHousing.org

MEETING NOTICE

September 2019

To All Orchardview Townhomes Residents:

TCHC continues to work with the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and
Energy (DEGLE) on the condition of the soil at Orchardview. As part of that effort, we want to
make you aware of two things. First, as an interim measure, we are installing a new fence that
will be on the west side of the property. This should occur during the month of September but
no dates have been officially established. | do not expect this installation to be much of an
interference with your daily schedules but there will be a few work trucks on site.

Second, on September 25 at 4:00 P.M., we will have representatives from the
Leelanau/Benzie County Health Department, DEGLE, and the Michigan Department of Health &
Human Services (DHHS) on hand to address any concerns you may have and to answer any of
your questions about living on or near soil that contains arsenic.

Invited:
Brian Flickinger (EGLE)
Gary Klase (DHHS)
Eric Johnston (Benzie/Leelanau District Health Department)

This is not a mandatory meeting but | do encourage you to take advantage of this opportunity.
My staff and | will only be on hand for the introductions and then we will leave you alone with
our guests to discuss whatever you wish. We do plan to help entertain children on the
basketball court and in the play areas so that you can participate in the meetings. Your meeting
will take place in the maintenance area (where voting occurs).

| look forward to seeing all of you at the meeting. In the meantime, should you have any
questions or concerns regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me directly.

Respectfully,

) dey L5 X COPY

Executive Director

Page 1of 1
101



Arsenic in Orchardview Soil Worries Residents

by Jordan Travis

September 8, 2019

TRAVERSE CITY — Traci George takes steps to keep her 3-year-old son from playing in the
arsenic-tainted dirt at Orchardview Townhomes.

She worries it’s not enough.

“I put down landscaping fabric, | brought in sand,” she said. “But he’s 3 years old, what do you
do?”

Warnings from the Traverse City Housing Commission, which manages the income-based, city-
owned rentals, fall flat for George. Kids being kids get covered in dirt when they play outside, so
it’s more than just not letting them eat it, she said.

George heard of other children who lived at Orchardview who had arsenic show up in tests at
doctor’s visits. Her son is due to visit the doctor soon, and she’ll have him tested.

Brian Flickinger is the Michigan Department of Environment Great Lakes and Energy’s
Remediation and Redevelopment Division project manager for the Cadillac district. He said the
housing commission will submit a response activity plan, a report that lays out steps the
housing commission will take to ensure Orchardview residents are safe.

These reports include a look at how people potentially could be exposed to the arsenic, and
what can be done to cut off those exposure pathways, Flickinger said. The housing commission
could also seek a site-specific evaluation — a closer look at Orchardview’s risk factors that go
deeper than the state’s generic residential exposure criteria.

Those criteria are based on 30 years of exposure, and factors like snow cover in the winter and
soil types affect how much of a risk arsenic in the soil actually poses, Flickinger said. So too does
turnover at rental housing like Orchardview.

Flickinger said housing commission representatives requested a sit-down following EGLE’s April
26 request for a due care plan for Orchardview.

Soil around the housing complex contains arsenic from its past as an orchard. Chemicals
containing the toxin once were widely used by farmers and along railroad tracks.

Page 1 of 4

102



Tests by the DEQ — as EGLE was known then — in 2012 showed arsenic levels ranging from 4.2
milligrams per kilogram around the play area to 16 milligrams per kilogram in an overgrown
corner where excavators piled topsoil during construction.

Michigan’s criteria for residential direct contact is 7.6 milligrams per kilogram, documents show
— concentrations higher than that pose a risk if dirt gets on the skin or is breathed or ingested.

The criteria could change, Flickinger said. Newly available science prompted the department to
draft new rules that would bump the cutoff slightly higher. Those would need to go through the
rule-making process before they would take effect.

“But that does not restrict somebody like Traverse City Housing Commission from using that
science and requesting a site-specific (evaluation),” he said.

Kristyn Houle, an environmental attorney, wants to see the response activity plan. She
represents a tenant association of roughly a dozen Orchardview residents with concerns about
arsenic around their homes. She’s also spoken with a now-former resident whose childrens’
urine tests showed high levels of arsenic.

Houle said she’ll have an environmental expert look it over and is prepared to take legal action
if they don’t believe the plan adequately protects the dozens of children at Orchardview.

Residents at Orchardview sign a notice of the issue when they move in, TCHC Director Tony
Lentych said.

That notice warns residents not to dig in the soil or plant anything in the ground.

Rachel Ward lives at Orchardview and has three children, she said. She grows plants in boxes
out back and wishes her youngest, a one-year-old, could play in the mud — “You know, be a
kid,” she said.

Ward thinks the arsenic is mare of a nuisance, and she doesn’t live in fear for her childrens’
health, she said.

Veronica Watson, another Orchardview resident, is completely unconcerned and voiced anger
at what she asserted is a politically driven ploy to squeeze out poor residents from a wealthy
corner of Traverse City.

Arsenic can be found on lots of properties in the area, Watson said. Orchardview has a tight-
knit community of moms who help each other out. Watson, who has two sons, said it’s
something she doesn’t want to lose.

“I am concerned about losing my house, about losing my living,” she said.

Page 2 of 4

103



Lentych said no one will be made homeless by the issue — “I will not allow that to happen,” he
said.

The housing commission will work through the process EGLE laid out, and will fence off areas
with the worst contamination to cut exposure risks, Lentych said.

Residents who want to move can get vouchers for other housing, Lentych said.

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development wants the issue resolved, Lentych
said — the agency said as much in a June 20 letter to city Mayor Jim Carruthers.

Traverse City Housing Commission may sell the property if state regulators don’t eventually
agree no further action is needed on the property. If sold, the housing commission would give
income-based housing vouchers to residents to live elsewhere.

HUD temporarily held the housing commission’s 2018 and 2019 Capital Fund Program Grants
because the housing commission had no environmental review on file. Douglas Gordon,
Michigan HUD Field Office of Public Housing director, wrote as much in a July 23 letter to the

housing commission.

Gordon then wrote on Aug. 22 that the hold was lifted after the housing commission submitted
an environmental review at the end of July.

Messages left at HUD’s Detroit field office weren’t returned as of Friday.

Lentych said the money is for non-maintenance related building expenses — roof repairs, for
example. The hold didn’t affect any projects at Orchardview, he said.

The same contamination issue prompted the housing commission to abandon previous plans to
expand Orchardview, Lentych previously said.

Flickinger said he expects to see the housing commission’s response soon. The housing
commission could face enforcement measures if it doesn’t follow through with the plan.

Residents can learn more about the soil around them at a Sept. 25 meeting, Lentych said. The
Benzie Leelanau Health Department is sending a representative, as is the Michigan Department
of Health and Human Services.

Lynn Sutfin, a DHHS spokesperson, said an agency member will talk about the health impacts of
arsenic and how residents can cut their risk.

George said she’s frustrated by waiting to hear more about the situation. She hopes the
housing commission can test the soil again so residents have new information on how much of
the toxin is in the housing complex’s soil.

Page 3 of 4

104



“The biggest thing is, they’re saying don’t let your kids eat the dirt,” she said. “If their hands are
dirty, they could put their hand in their mouth. They’re just kids, they play on the ground, they
play in the dirt.”

Page4of4 105



) Cu nnin gh am- LI m p Headquarters Traverse City
s 28970 Cabat Drive =Suite 100 818 Red Drive= Suite 30
Novie Mie 48377 Traverse City= Ml » 49684

www.cunninghamlimp.com

September 16, 2019 RE@EUWED

Mr. Tony Lentych

Executive Director SEP 1 8 2019
TC Housing
150 Pine Street Traverse City

Housing Commission

Traverse City, Ml 49684 ==

RE: Thank you and follow-up to meeting with residents 9/12/19

Dear Tony,

Thank you for the opportunity to visit with the residents of Riverview Terrace regarding
the 4Front Credit Union headquarters construction and the safest, most preferred way ~
from their perspective — for them to walk and navigate around the site. | found the group’s
comments and questions to be well-considered, insightful, and helpful as we make our
plans for the coming weeks and months.

Besides the meeting being helpful, it also provided an opportunity for Cunningham-Limp
and its partners on the project to begin a relationship with your team and with the
residents. We would like to honor and maintain that relationship for the duration of the
project and are committed to being available at any time to meet and visit with the
residents. Hopefully, that can be on a regular basis.

As an expression of our good faith and goodwill towards our neighbors, we would consider
it a privilege to help sponsor their annual Thanksgiving event and have set aside $500 for
that purpose. We will work with you to look for other ways to build on our relationship with
the residents of Riverview Terrace as we move through the construction schedule.

Again, we appreciate the way you've represented the best interests of your constituents
at Riverview Terrace, and we appreciate having the unique perspective they offer from
their vantage point next door.

Please share our gratitude with your staff and with our friends and neighbors at Riverview.

Sincerely,

YR INIRIL LG 2 7 H
CUNMINGHAD

Stevé Mora
Sr. Project Manager

106



Helping House America

Pf

POSITION PAPER

FY 20 Appropriations

Budget Deal Does Not Guarantee Adequate Funding
for HUD Programs

THE HOUSE AND SENATE PASSED IMPORTANT LEGISLATION in July that averts sequestration and
raises spending caps for non-defense discretionary (NDD) programs, including HUD, for both FY 20 and 21.
The bipartisan package also raises the debt limit ceiling for the next two years, which is necessary because
the government has reached its maximum borrowing authority and would have been forced to drastically
cut spending had Congress not acted. Under the terms of the bipartisan agreement, Congress will be able
to increase NDD spending by $27 billion compared to FY 19, but this is about $9 billion less than the House

budget approved in May anticipated.

For T-HUD programs, the House provided $50.1 billion through the appropriations process. This is $5.9 billion, or 13.3 percent,
above the 2019 enacted level. Given the reduction in NDD through the budget caps deal, the final HUD budget (along with all
other domestic programs) is now expected to be lower than these previously approved House numbers.

At a minimum, PHADA urges Congress, and members should too, to adopt the previous House numbers for major
program accounts as follows:

FY 20 Budget of Selected HUD Programs

% INCREASE FROM

INDUSTRY FY 19 FY 20 WHITE FY 20 FY19ENACTED TO

EST. OF NEED ENACTED HOUSE BUDGET HOUSE APPNS FY 20 HOUSE

Public Housing Operating Fund $5.400B $4.653B $2.863B $4.753B 2.1%
Public Housing Capital Fund $5.000 B $2.775B $0 $2.8558 2.9%
Housing Choice Voucher Renewals $21.200B $20.313B $20.116 B $21.4008 5.4%
Administrative Fees $2.5008 $1.886 B $1.738B $1.925B 2.1%
Project Based Rental Assistance N/A* $11.747 B $12.0218B $12.590B 7.2%
Choice Neighborhoods $300M $150 M $0 $300 M 100.0%

*The industry groups did not determine an estimate of need for this account.

the process; however, there is a strong likelihood that Congress

The Senate, which had not put forward any of its appropria-
will not enact a final FY 20 spending bill before October 1 and

tions bills pending the outcome of an agreement between the

President, the Senate and the House, may now move forward.
Our sources indicate that the Senate Appropriations
Committee will consider its first FY 20 spending bill on
September 12. It is also widely assumed that the Senate will be
unable to consider all 12 bills by the end of September, when
the current fiscal year ends. Similar to last year, it is likely that
the Senate will package some of the spending bills to speed

that a continuing resolution (CR) to fund the government will
be necessary. It would then follow that Congress would pass
an appropriations bill before that CR expires.

The Effect of the Budget on HUD Programs & Residents
Any decrease in HUD funding is problematic especially
with respect to the public housing operating and capital

107



POSITION PAPER

accounts. We have seen some much-needed recent gains in be even a small excess of HAP renewal funding in the budget,
these accounts in the last two appropriations bills and donot these funds be used for the admin fees account.
want to lose momenturm, We need at least the sums in the

earlier House legislation to maintain progress and to con- Recent Gains in the Capital Fund at Risk

tinue the positive trends in rents for the Rental Assistance Public Housing serves 2 million Americans across the
Demonstration (RAD). This is so because the operating and country and is a critical part of our nation’s infrastructure.
capital funds are used (with the tenant rent contribution) to However, Congressional staff have opined that under the
determine the RAD rents for I[1As seeking to convert their most recent budget deal, Congress will fully fund renewals

properties to that program. PHADA learned from HUD RAD  for HCV and PBRA before any other HUD programs. Most
staff that RAD rents have increased on average between $40 likely, the Operating Fund would be funded next, creating

and $50 per unit per month due to the last two appropria- concern that along with a potential reduction in admin fees,
tions packages. there could very well be a reduction in the Capital Fund,
Capital Fund Appropriations and Backlog
IN BILLIONS
$10.0 — $70
$60
g $75 — g
g ¥ $50 2
B 8
g $40 @
a 5 0 — c
g*s $30 &
T B
Q
§ $25 — $20 8
$10
$0 — ' ' ¥ . $0
1999 2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2010 201 2013 2015 2017 2019
W Annual Appropriations memme Capital Fund Backlog

in its 2010 Report, Capital Needs in the Public Housing Program, Abt Assoclates found there to be a backiog of $26 billion along with annual accruing needs of
$3.4 billion. Failure to meet the annual need compounds the backlog by 8.7% as repair needs become more extensive and replacements are required, pushing

the total figure close to 70 billion dollars.

In addition to operating, capital and RAD funding, which was increased by $8¢ million through the House
PHADA’s other major budget priorities include the Housing Appropriations process in May.
Choice Voucher account, HCV Administrative Fees and Project- House Financial Services Chairwoman Maxine Waters
Based Rental Assistance (PBRA). PHADA earlier estimated (D-CA) has called for $70 billion for the Capital Fund as part
that the House bill includes full funding for Voucher HAP of any national infrastructure package. PHADA provided
renewals but only about 77 percent for admin fees. Given analysis in support of this level, as cited at the House Finan-
this inadequate funding for admin fees, it is particularly cial Services Committee hearing earlier this year. This
important for members to advocate that there be no further funding will address the critical backlog of deferred mainte-
reductions in this account. If there is insufficient funding nance to public housing, a backlog that we know from a 2010
to maintain adequate staffing levels, history has shown HUD report grows at a rate of at least $3.4 billion per year. Yet

that agencies will be unable to fully utilize their voucher  despite deteriorating properties and the effect this has on
budget authority. This hurts those on waiting listsandin  the quality of life for public housing residents, the Capital
dire need of housing. HUD has acknowledged this problem  Fund continues to be severely underfunded through Con-
in the past, stating that it defeats the purpose of fully gressional appropriations. Without sufficient resources, the
funding vouchers through appropriations when admin fees estimated loss of ten to twelve thousand units per year will
are inadequately funded. PHADA urges that where there may  continue as more and more homes become uninhabitable, Wl

PHADA Needs Your Help

PHADA urges members to advocate for the highest funding levels possible for core programs. Please use the PHADA budget
chart on page 1 to communicate our priorities to your Representatives and Senators. The message is simple: Ask Congress
to support, at a minimum, the sums in the House appropriations measure.

PHADA 511 Capitol Court, NE, Washington, DC 20002-4937 | T: 202-546-5445 F: 202-546-2280 www.phada.org 108



Helping House America

POSITION PAPER

Legislative Update

Key Authorizing Legislation for Housing Programs, 116th Congress

PHADA ADVOCATES TO CONGRESS for legislation that will help housing authorities (HAS) preserve
and develop housing and more effectively provide services to residents. This past year, PHADA has
worked closely with Congressional Committees and staff on legislation featured in this policy brief.

As with any legislation, passage of these bills is not guaranteed and often it takes more than one session
of Congress to achieve desired results. Therefore, it is important to continuously advocate to your
Representatives and Senators for outcomes that will be most beneficial to your agencies, the industry,

and the communities and families you serve

1. Annual Contributions Contract

In furtherance of preventing HUD from unilaterally
implementing a new public housing Annual Contributions
Contract (ACC), PHADA, along with CLPHA and NAHRO,
urged Congress to include legislative language in FY 20
appropriations legislation to ensure that: the ACC in effect
as of January 1, 2018, remains intact; no changes be made
without signature of the HA chief executive; and that HUD
may not withhold funds to compel such agreement by an
agency which is otherwise in compliance with its contract.
PHADA expects the Senate to include such a provision.

2. Housing as Infrastructure Act of 2019

To facilitate the development of affordable housing,
and for other purposes.

Draft legislation by Rep. Maxine Waters (D-CA), pending
introduction.

In April, House Committee on Financial Services
Chairwoman Maxine Waters released draft legislation to
ensure that any infrastructure bill signed by the President
includes funding for affordable housing needs. The legisla-
tion authorizes funding for several housing infrastructure
projects, including $70 billion for the Public Housing Capital
Fund, which PHADA estimates will fully address the public
housing capital backlog.! This is critical legislation to pre-
serve the nation’s public housing stock and maintain homes
and the quality of life for nearly two million people. PHADA
is pleased to support this legislation and worked closely with
Committee staff providing comments and formal support.

1 Cited at the House Financial Services Committee Hearing on April 30, 2019, as
well as in the House Financial Services Committee Memorandum for the April 30,
Hearing: PHADA. The Advocate. Spring 2019.

3. Fair Chance at Housing Act
To reform the screening and eviction policies for Federal
housing assistance in order to provide fair access to
housing, and for other purposes.
Legislation Introduced, H.R. 3685, by Rep. Alexandria Ocasio-
Cortez (D-NY) on July 10, 2019, and referred on the same date
to the House Committee on Financial Services, and S. 2076 by
Sen. Kamala Harvis (D-CA) on July 10, 2019, and referved
on the same date to the Committee on Banking, Housing,
and Urban Affairs.
This bill relates to eligibility screening and evictions
resulting from applicant or tenant criminal activity (see
July 31, 2019, Advocate for more analysis) and applies largely to
HAs and owners and operators of federally assisted housing.
Importantly, the bill defines Covered Criminal Conduct for
eligibility purposes as a felony conviction that threatens
the health or safety of tenants, employees, or owners of the
assisted housing. For evictions, the definition is more general
and states that covered criminal conduct is that which
threatens the health or safety of other tenants, employees or
the owner. Specifically excluded from evictions are misde-
meanors and any arrests that do not result in adjudication or
conviction as well as any juvenile or sealed adjudication.
PHADA has expressed members’ concerns in substantive
meetings with the House Financial Services Committee staff,
which sought PHADA’s input. Concerns include limiting the
use and application of known criminal activity as well as the
restriction from considering anything other than feloni-
ous acts. Such limitations are contrary to best practices for
program management and create liabilities for HAs. PHADA
will continue to weigh in with the bill’s sponsors and other
committee members in advance of the markup, which may
occur after the August recess.

109



POSITION PAPER

4. Non-Citizen Rule

To Prohibit the Secretary of IIUD from implementing
certain rules (related to non-citizen status and the loss
of public or assisted housing units).

Legislation Introduced, H.R. 2763, by Rep. Sylvia Garcia (D-TX)
on May 15, 2019, and passed out of Committee on June 11.

On May 10, 2019, HUD published a proposed rule in the
Federal Register that would mandare the termination of
assistance to mixed families and creatc new documentation
and verification procedures for noncitizens. This proposed
rule is a major reversal of regulations that have been in effect
for more than two decades. Current regulations allow house-
holds to receive a pro-rated subsidy, based on the number of
qualified individuals in the household. PHADA’s membership
vigorously opposed the rule during discussions at PHADA’s
annual conference and directed staff to submit comments on
the grounds that the proposed rule is not necessary, practi-
cal, or fair. PHADA submitted extensive comments, which
can be found at: http://bit.ly/30aBCPS. HUD has received
over 30,000 comments to the Rule, the most comments ever,
according to a source at HUD.

5. Facial Recognition Technology Bills

a. To prohibit Federal funding from being used for the
purchase or use of facial recognition technology, and

for other purposes.

Legislation Introduced, H.R. 3875, on July 22, 2019, by Rep.
Rashida Tlaib (D-MI) and referred on the same date io ihe House
Committee on Oversight and Reform.

b. To prohibit the use of biometric recognition technol-
ogy in certain federally assisted dwelling units, and for
other purposes.

Legisiation Introduced, H.R. 4008, by Rep. Yvette Clarke (D-NY)
on July 25, 2019, and referved on the same date to the House
Financial Services Committee.

Along with Rep. Clarke, Reps. Rashida Tlaib (D-MI) and
Ayanna Pressley (D-MA) introduced legislation to prohibit the
use of biometric recognition technology in federally subsidized
housing and require HUD to submiit a report to Congress on
the use of such technology in public housing. The Representa-
tives cited concern for biases in facial recognition technology,
which they noted disproportionately misidentifies people of
color and women. They also cited privacy concerns, unauthor-
ized sharing of data, and criminalization of persons living in
federally subsidized housing as reasons for introducing the bill.

6. Affordable Housing Incentives Act of 2019

To amend the Internal Revenue Code 0f 1986 to allow

for nonrecognition of gain on real property sold for use

as affordable housing.

Draft legislation by Rep. Adam Schiff (D-CA), pending introduction.
Staff of Rep. Schiff reached out to PHADA in August to

weigh in on this bill, which would provide owners of properties

sold to HAs for affordable housing development the same
benelicial tax creatment, similar to if the property had been
seized or condemned.

7. Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Update
The Affordable Housing Credit Improvement Act
(Reintroduced)

To amend the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 to reform

the low incomce housing credit, and for other purposes.

Legislation Introduced, S. 1703, by Sens. Maria Cantwell (D-WA),

Johnny Isakson (R-GA), Ron Wyden (D-OR), and Todd Young

(R-IN) on June 4, 2019, and veferved on the same date to the

Finance Committee, and H.R. 3077, introduced by Reps. Suzan

DelBene (D-WA), Don Beyer (D-VA), Kenny Marchant (R-TX),

and Jackie Walorski (R-TN) on June 4, 2019.

This bipartisan LIHTC legislation, would:

» Preserve or create a total of 450,500 homes over a ten-year
period through separate provisions of the Act, including
increasing the tax credit allocation by 50 percent, phased
in over five years.

« Establish a permanent 4 percent minimum floor for
financing with housing bonds and tax credits.

« Include new provisions aimed at making the credit more
effective in hard-to-reach rural and Native American
communities and for populations like homeless veterans.

« Restrict project rents to the tax credit rent, rather than a
higher Fair Market Rent, enabling HAs to utilize funds to
assist more households

This legislation builds upon the success of §. 548 and H.R.
1661, which PHADA advocated for (along with the ACTION
campaign) in the last session of Congress. Under the Con-
solidated Appropriations Act of 2018, two provisions of the
Act were signed into law: a 12.5 percent increase in LIIITC
allocation authority for four years and income averaging,
which allows tax credit units to serve households earning up
to 80 percent of area median income (AMI), offset by deeper
targeting in other units to maintain average affordability in
the development at 60 percent of AMI.

8. The Save Affordable Housing Act of 2019

To amend the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 to repeal
the qualified contract exception to the extended low-
income housing commitment rules for purposes of the
low-income housing credit, and for other purposes.
Legislation Introduced, S. 1956, by Sens. Ron Wyden (D-OR) and
Todd Young (R-IN), and H.R. 3479, by Reps. Joe Neguse (D-CO),
Don Beyer (D-VA), and Jackie Walovski (R-TN).

The legislation would reduce the loss of LIHTC properties
before the end of their affordability periods. Under current
law, LIHTC properties are subject to a 30-year affordability
period, but owners may pursue a Quaiified Contract, which
generally results in the conversion of properties to market
rate after 15 years. M

PHADA

511 Capitol Court, NE, Washington, DC 20002-4937

T. 202-546-5445 F:202-546-2280 www.phada.org 110



FY20 Budget Chart for Selected

HUD and USDA Programs

September 19, 2019

B_® \ATiONAL LOW INCOME

HOUSING COALITION

HUD Programs

FY20

Eis:;'n aiﬁilg::)ltal/azed) FY19 Final President FY20 House FY20 Senate | FY20 Enacted
Tenant Based Rental Assistance 22,598 22,244 23,810 23,833
Contract Renewals 20,313 20,116 21,400 21,502
Tenant Protection Vouchers 85 130 150 75
Administrative Fees 1,886 1,738 1,925 1,977
Section 811 Mainstream Vouchers 225 260 225 218
‘\;gzecr’?g; Affairs Supportive Housing 40 0 40 40
Tn'ba{ Veterans Affairs Supportive 4 0 5 1
Housing Vouchers
Family Unification 20 0 40 20
Mobility Demonstration 25 0 25 0
Public Housing Capital Fund 2,775 0 2,855 | 2,855
Emergency/Disaster Grants 30 10 30 50
Public Housing Operating Fund 4,653 2,863 4,753 4,650
Choice Neighborhoods Initiative 150 0 300 100
Self-Sufficiency Programs
Family Self-Sufficiency 80 75 100 80
Jobs-Plus Pilot 15 15 15 15
NAHASDA
Block Grant 655 600 671 646
Competitive Grants 100 0 100 100
Native Haw. Hsg Block Grants 2 0 2 2
Hsg. Opp. for Persons with AIDS 393 330 410 330
Community Development Fund 3,365 0 3,600 3,325
HOME Investment Partnerships 1,250 0 1,750 1,250
Self-Help Homeownership Opportunity 10 0 10 10
Homeless Assistance Grants 2,636 2,599 2,800 2,761
Rental Assistance Demonstration 0 100 0 0
Project-Based Rental Assistance 11,747 12,021 12,590 12,560
Hsg. for the Elderly (202) 678 644 803 696
Hsg. for Persons w/Disabilities (811) 184 157 259 184
Housing Counseling Assistance 50 45 60 45
Policy Development & Research 96 87 98 g6
Fair Hsg. & Equal Opportunity 65 62 75 65
Fair Housing Assistance Program 24 24 TBD TBD
Fair Housing Initiatives Program 39 36 TBD T8D
Healthy Homes & Lead Hazard 279 290 290 290

5/22/2019

41




S0V
RECEIVED WOOd.

SEP 25 2019

Traverse City Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions Inc.

| Housing Commission 41 Hughes Drive
Traverse City, Michigan 49696

USA

September 25, 2019 T: 231-922--9050

www.woodplc.com

Mr. Brian Flickinger

Incident Management Specialist

Remediation and Redevelopment Division

Cadillac District Office

Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy
120 West Chapin Street

Cadillac, Michigan 40601

Subject: Interim Remedial Response
Traverse City Housing Commission — Orchardview Townhomes

10200 East Carter Centre
Traverse City, Michigan
Facility ID: 45000108

Dear Mr. Flickinger:

As you are aware, arsenic was observed in soil at the Orchardview Townhomes property at concentrations
exceeding generic cleanup criteria for unrestricted residential land use, indicating that additional evaluation is
warranted to assess the potential for exposure through direct contact with soil. As current operator of the property,
TCHC is further evaluating the potential for arsenic exposure based on site-specific exposure factors.

The following interim mitigation measures are proposed to reduce potential exposure to arsenic while a site-
specific risk evaluation is conducted (Figure 1):

e Install an eight foot (ft) chain-link fence to separate occupied and unoccupied portions of the
property. A preliminary evaluation suggests that a site-specific direct contact criterion of at least
9.4 mg/kg is appropriate, based on consideration of reduced exposure due to snow cover. Arsenic
is below 9.4 mg/kg on the occupied portions of the property.

e maintain the existing four-ft high chain-link fence along the southern property boundary and add
signage to the fence warning of a potential exposure hazard.

* Place signage along the western and northern property boundaries warning of a potential
exposure hazard. Signs will be fastened 4 ft above ground level to t-posts set at 30 ft intervals as
shown on Figure 1.

'Wood' is a trading name for John Wood Group PLC and its subsidiaries a . .
‘ 112



Mr. Brian Flickinger
September 25, 2019
Page 2

The proposed signage will read:

Do Not Enter.

This area is under evaluation and may contain soils with pesticide substances that may exceed standards for soil
contact. Please scan the QR code for more information or contact the Traverse City Housing Commission at

for more details.

If you have any additional questions or concerns, please contact us at (231) 922-9050.

Respectfully submitted,

Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc.

y

ert J. Lint, CPG
Senior Scientist Senior Principal Engineer

PATCHC - Orchard ViewiRepartsy 1909 IRAPATCHC Intenm RAP docx

113



« =« Proposed 8fi Chain-link Fence

&  Proposed Signage

Surface Soil Decision Unit Area
QOccupied Area
Unaoccupied Area

PROPOSED INTERIM
10200 E CARTER ROAD EXPOSURE BARRIER
AT wood.
Figure 1

e g o

114



2
LA
= MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY - REMEDIATION AND REDEVELOPMENT DIVISION
PO BOX 30426, LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-7926, Phone 517-284-5087, Fax 517-241-9581

Request for DEQ Review of Response Activity Plan

This form is required for submittal of a request for the DEQ to review a Response Activity Plan, under Section 20114b, Part 201, Environmental
Remedijation, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended.

Section A: Type of Response Activity Plan being Submitted (Check all that apply):

Remedial Investigation . 20b(2)Site Specific Criteria

Evaluation Plan (modification of generic criteria)
Feasibility Study 20b(3) Site Specific Criteria or Surrogate
Remedial Action Plan (no generic criteria available)

Interim Response Plan Section 20118(4) and (5) Request
Mixing Zone Request Land or Resource Use Restrictions
20e(14) De Minimus GSI Impact Other, Specify:

O
000 O X

The Response Activity Plan addresses the entire facility:
(entire facility as defined by Part 201, all releases, hazardous substances, and environmental media)

The Response Activity Plan does not address the entire facility: X
Please specify the release(s), hazardous substance(s), environmental media, and/or portions of the facility addressed by

the Response Activity Plan.

Response activity work plan develops a site-specific unrestricted residential direct contact criterion for arsenic in soil and is
applicable to all areas of the facility.

Section B: Facility/Property Subject to (Check all that apply):

Facility regulated under Part 201 X
Part 201 Facility ID (if known):
Leaking Underground Storage Tank regulated pursuant to Part 213 0
Part 211/213. Facility ID, if known:
Oil or gas production and development regulated pursuant to Part 615 or 625 |
Licensed landfill regulated pursuant to Part 115 |
Licensed hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facility regulated pursuant to Part 111 |
Consent Agreement or other legal agreement with the MDEQ O
Section C: Facility and Locational Information:
Facility Name: Orchardview Apartments County: Leelanau

City/Village/Township: Traverse City
Street Address of Property: 10200 East Cater Road Town: 28N Range: 11W Section: 33

Quarter: SW  Quarter-Quarter: NW of SW
City: Traverse City State: Ml Zip: 49684

Decimal Degrees Latitude: 44.784229
Property Tax ID (include all applicable IDs): Decimal Degrees Longitude: -85.649650
Status of submitter relative to the property (check all that apply): Reference point for latitude and longitude:

Center ofsite [] Main/frontdoor [
Former Current Prospective Front gate/main entrance [X] Other []
Gliigr O O . Collection method:
PS Interpolati <
Operator 0 o M Survey [1 G (0 Interpolation
EQP4028

115



Request for DEQ Review of Response Activity Plan

Section D: Submitter Information:

Entity/person requesting review: Wood E&IS

Contact Person (name and title): Robert Lint, Senior Scientist
Submitter Address: 41 Hughes Drive

City: Traverse City State: MI Zip: 49696
Telephone: 231.486.4004 E-Mail: Robert.Lint@woodplc.com
Relationship of contact person to the submitter: consultant

Owner Name, if different from submitter: TCHC Company:

Address:

City: State: Zip:
Telephone: E-Mail:

Section E: Are/were the following present at the facility (Check all that apply):

Current Previous Unknown

Mobile or Migrating Non Aqueous Phase Liquids (NAPL)

Soil contamination above any residential criteria

Soil contamination above any non-residential criteria

Soil aesthetic impacts

Groundwater contamination above any residential criteria
Groundwater contamination above any non-residential criteria
Groundwater aesthetic impacts

Soil Gas contamination above residential vapor intrusion (V1) screening levels
Soil Gas contamination above non-residential VI screening levels
Conditions immediately dangerous to life or health (IDLH)

Fire & Explosion hazards related to releases

Contamination existing in drinking water supply

Imminent threat to drinking water supply

Impact to Surface Water

Surface Water Sediments above screening levels

N
N
DOOO00O00000000

Section F: The following questions assist DEQ in evaluating this request.

Known or Suspected Contaminant(s) Type (Check all that apply):
Petroleum [] Voiatile Organic Compounds [ ] Metals [X Other [

Current Site Status (Check all that apply):
Undergoing property transfer  [] Active operations  [_] Inactive operation [ ]

Current Property Use:

N

Residential X
Non-residential []

Anticipated Property Use:

Residential X
Non-residential []

Estimated Area of Contamination Addressed in Response Action Plan (Cumulative):
Currently undetermined [ <05acre [ >0.5acre X

Migration:
Yes No Unknown
Has contamination migrated beyond the property boundaries? ] ] X
Has the Notice of Migration been submitted? O X
Facility Investigation Status:
Ongoing [ Complete [X]
Page 2 of 3 EQP4028

116




Request for DEQ Review of Response Activity Plan

Facility Response Activity Status (Check all that apply):
None [ IRImplemented [] Response Activity Ongoing Response Activity Completed [

Drinking Water Supply for Facility (Check all that apply):
Municipal X Private Well(s) [ No Current Water Supply [ Municipal Available [

On-site Well(s) (Check all that apply):
Drinking Water [] Industrial/Commaercial Production  [] Agricultural/irrigation  [[] No well an-site  [X]
Approximate Depth of Well(s):

Local Drinking Water Supply: ' )
Is facility in a designated Wellhead Protection Area? Yes No [
Distance to nearest off-site drinking water well: 200 ft NE Private Municipal [

Surface Water Bodies on or Adjacent to Facility (Check all that apply):
Wetlands [ Ditch [] Stream/River [] Lake/Pond []

Local Surface Water Bodies:
Distance to nearest wetland: None Ditch: None Stream/River: None Lake/Pond: Nane

Have other plans been submitted for this facility?

Facility Name, if different than this submittal:
Date and Name of most recent submittal:

Section G: Environmental Professional Signature:
With my signature below, | certify that this plan and all related materials are true, accurate, and complete to the best of my

knowledge and belief.

Signature: Wﬁﬁ_b pate: 7/ {9

Printed Name: Robert J. Lint, CPG

Company of Environmental Professional: Waod Environment and Infrastructure Salutions, Inc.

Address: 41 Hughes Drive

City: Traverse City State: MI Zip: 49696

Telephaone: 231.486.8004 E-mail address: Robert.lint@woodplc.com

Section H: Submitter Signature:
With my signature below, | certify that this pfan and all related materials are true, accurate, and complete to the best of my

knowledge and belief and [ am legally authorized to sign for the submitter

Signature &“}?ﬂ Date 9.) }‘j—' 20 /?
Printed name: M NY Q‘N;ryaf./

Title/Relationship of signatory to submitterm@mm b-’ LT L.
Address: 150 Pine Street

City: Traverse City State: Ml Zip: 49684
Telephone: 231.922.4915 E-Mail address:

Tlerthph @ Howtrng. 29

This form and the Response Activity Plan should be submitted to the MDEQ Remediation & Redevelopment Division
District Office for the county in which the property is located, unless the response activity is related to a facility that is
regulated by another MDEQ Division. A district map is located at www.michigan.qov/deqrrd. If regulated by another
division, cantact should be made with that division for information on where to submit the form and plan.

Page 3 of 3

EQP4028

117



woOoJ.

Response Activity Work Plan
for Derivation of Arsenic
Site-Specific Direct Contact Criteria

Orchardview Townhomes

Prepared for:
Traverse City Housing Commission

Prepared by:
Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc.

41 Hughes Drive
Traverse City, Michigan

September 2019

Project: 3310190007

118



CONTENTS

1.0 INTRODUCTION... e . — w1
2.0 DIRECT CONTACT EQUATIONS AND EXPOSURE ASSUMPTIONS... W e 2
24 Generic Exposure Assumpt{ons and Proposed Site-Specific and ChemlcaI-Spemf c

Variables .. T o S s e S Ve v i v 3
2.1.1 Target RISk Level (TR) 3
2.1.2 Averaging Time (AT)... K
2.1.3 Oral Cancer Slope Factor (CSF) o d
2.1.4 Relative Bioavailability (RBA) ... R BT e d
2.1.5  EXposure DUration (ED).........c.occooiiieiiieiiniiisioeeiieeesoiesseesoneiaessse e sesass oo esanseaneans 4
2.1.6 Exposure Frequency - INgestion (EFi) ........ccccovevieiicviriiereeieeeeeiceerees e 4
2.1.7 Exposure Frequency - Dermal (EFd)...............covvivieiiusineeriiieesesesssnesessesssseeseens B
2.1.8 Age-adjusted Sail Ingestion FACtor (IF) .........cccovivrieeierersiie e cecsssesesssesescneereseneens 5
2.1.9 Ingestion Absorption Efficiency (AE.)6
2.1.10 Dermal Absorption Efficiency (AEd) ....0
2.1.11 Age-Adjusted Dermal Factor (DF) ... — " .8

3.0 DERIVATION OF SITE-SPECIFIC RESIDENTIAL DIRECT CONTACT CRITERIA. ..o T

3.1 Calculation of Site-SPecific DCC........ccvveiieiieieee ettt aaaens 7

4.0 PRELIMINARY RISK EVALUATION ..ottt ettt 8

TABLES

Table 1: Exposure Factors and Site-Specific Direct Contact Criterion for Arsenic

FIGURES

Figure 1:

Arsenic in Soil

APPENDICES

A

B
C

Technical Support Document, Work Plan for Derivation of Site-Specific Relative Bioavailability of
Arsenic in Soil

Technical Support Document, Site-Specific Exposure Frequency Factor
Technical Support Document, Site-Specific Soil Ingestion Factor

119



1.0 INTRODUCTION

The Traverse City Housing Commission (TCHC) operates the Orchardview Townhomes
transitional housing complex located at 10200 E Carter Road, Traverse City, Michigan. As part
of an expansion plan, TCHC requested that the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
(MDEQ), now known as the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy
(EGLE), complete a Brownfield Redevelopment Assessment. The assessment was initiated to
evaluate potential impacts from historical agrichemical use (lead arsenate) at the property while
it was operated as an orchard between approximately the 1930s and 1970s. The assessment
included a comprehensive evaluation of arsenic occurrence in soil. Arsenic was observed at
concentrations exceeding generic cleanup criteria for unrestricted residential land use, indicating
that additional evaluation was warranted to assess the potential for exposure through direct
contact with soil. As current operator of the property, TCHC is further evaluating the potential for
arsenic exposure based on site-specific exposure factors.

Generic cleanup criteria are based on conservative assumptions, designed to provide a rapid
initial site assessment, protective of exposure at most Michigan properties. Due to the use of
conservative assumptions, generic criteria are likely to overestimate exposure potential. Wood
was retained on behalf of TCHC to evaluate risk factors at the Orchardview property on a site-
specific basis, to determine whether additional response actions are prudent.

The generic criteria incorporate conservative assumptions for mulitiple inputs (e.g., exposure
duration [ED], exposure frequency [EF], etc.). For two of these assumptions, EF and relative
bioavailability (RBA), site-specific information may be used instead of generic values. The use of
site-specific information provides a more accurate reflection of potential site-specific health risks.
A site-specific value for EF is derived in the work plan based on local climatological data. RBA
cannot be determined without further soil analysis to measure the bioaccessibility of arsenic in
soil samples and calculate an estimated RBA. A proposed approach for derivation of RBA for

arsenic in soil is proposed in Appendix A.

Site-specific exposure assumptions for EF and RBA will be used to develop a site-specific
unrestricted residential direct contact criteria (DCC) for arsenic in soil at the subject property. For
other exposure factors, we reviewed the generic exposure assumptions and “best available
information” as presented in a 2016 update conducted by the MDEQ (2016). Where available,
“best available information” will be used.

Section 2 presents our approach to calculating a site-specific unrestricted residential DCC for
arsenic in soil at the subject property.

Section 3 presents a preliminary risk evaluation based on anticipated results from the site-specific
evaluation.

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 RAWPA\TCHC RAWP.docx

120



2.0 DIRECT CONTACT EQUATIONS AND EXPOSURE ASSUMPTIONS

Part 201 Rule 299.20(1) states that cleanup criteria for soil based on direct contact shall be
calculated for the generic residential category according to the following algorithms. Although the
DCC can be calculated for both carcinogenic and non-carcinogenic effects, the carcinogenic route
of exposure is generally more conservative than non-carcinogenic for arsenic. Therefore, only the
carcinogenic equations are shown below. Also note that RBA is not included within the generic
Part 201 equations but has been included below for reference. The generic values are provided

below for all exposure assumptions and chemical-specific factors.

DCC,q =

Where:
DCCeca

TR
AT
CF
CSF

RBA
EF:
AE;
EFq
AEq4

And

IF=[

Where,

IRsoilfage 1-6
EDage 1-6
BWi.s

IR soil/aduit
EDagunt
BWaduit

And

TRxATXCF

CSFX[(EF;xRBAXIFXAE;)+(EFgxDFXAE4)]

Direct Contact Criterion -
Carcinogenic

Target Risk Level
Averaging Time
Conversion Factor
Cancer Slope Factor

Relative Bioavailability

Exposure Frequency - Ingestion
Absorption Efficiency - Ingestion
Exposure Frequency - Dermal
Absorption Efficiency - Dermal

SAgge 1-6XEVXAF;ge 1-6 EDage 1-6

Rage 1—51‘EDage1—o)] " [[Radult‘EDadult]

BWage 1-6 BWaduit

(Soil ingestion rate)
(Exposure Duration)
(Body Weight)

(Soil ingestion rate)
(Exposure Duration)
(Body Weight)

SAaduttXEVXAFaguir EDagule

(1)

Calculated ug/kg

10-5

25,550 days

1x10+9 ug/kg

1.5 (mg/kg-day)! (Arsenic -
Specific)

Site-Specific (100% in
generic)

350 days

0.5 (Arsenic - Specific)
245 days

0.03 (Arsenic - Specific)

)

200 mg/day
6 years

15 kg

100 mg/kg
24 years

70 kg

DF=[

+|
BWage 1-6 ]

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 RAWP\TCHC RAWP.docx

Bwadult

| @

121



Where,

SAage 16 (Soil ingestion rate) = 2,670 cm?/day-event
EV (Event frequency) = 1 event/day

AFage 1.6 (Soil adherence factor) = 0.2 mg/cm?

EDage 1-6 (Exposure Duration) = 6 years

BWi.s (Body Weight) = 15 kg

SAadut (Soil ingestion rate) = 5,800 cm?/day-event
AF adun (Soil adherence factor) = 0.07 mg/cm?

EDadutt (Exposure Duration) = 24 years

BWadut (Body Weight) = 70 kg

2.1 GENERIC EXPOSURE ASSUMPTIONS AND PROPOSED SITE-SPECIFIC AND CHEMICAL-SPECIFIC
VARIABLES

In development of a site-specific DCC for arsenic, TCHC proposes to use a combination of:

o Part 201 generic default assumptions for unrestricted residential use as defined in Part
201, Rule 20, and listed in Section 2.0 above,

» Best available information as determined during a recent EGLE comprehensive cleanup
criteria evaluation (MDEQ, 2016), if available, and

e Site specific exposure values.

Selection of input values are described in the following sections, and are summarized in Table 1.

211 Target Risk Level (TR)

The target risk level (TR) is statutorily defined (Section 20120a(4)) as the 95% upper bound on
the calculated risk of one additional cancer above the background cancer rate per 100,000
individuals (10°) continuously exposed to a carcinogen at a given average daily dose for a 70-
year lifetime. The statutory value will be used in calculation of the site-specific criteria.

21.2 Averaging Time (AT)

Averaging time (AT) represents the number of days over which an exposure is averaged. AT for
carcinogens is a value representing an average lifespan or life expectancy. The generic criteria
are calculated based on an AT of 70 years. The default value is based on an sparsely
documented 1989 U.S. EPA recommendation involving the general US population.

EGLE evaluated this generic assumption as part of a comprehensive cleanup criteria update
(MDEQ, 2016). Several sources for recent Michigan specific information were reviewed, the best
of which came from the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services. Based on this
information EGLE recommended an AT of 78 years based on best available information.

TCHC also proposes to use an AT of 78 years based on best available information.

3 122

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 RAWPATCHC RAWP.docx



21.3 Oral Cancer Slope Factor (CSF)

The Part 201 default assumption is consistent with the current value from IRIS database (1.5
mg/kg-d), and represents best available information.

As noted previously, although the DCC can be calculated for both carcinogenic and non-
carcinogenic effects, calculations will be provided for the carcinogenic route of exposure only.

2.1.4  Relative Bioavailability (RBA)

The bioavailability of arsenic in soil can change depending on the physical and/or chemical
properties. Some forms of arsenic are less than 100% absorbed by the gastrointestinal (GI) track.
The ingestion component of the current arsenic DCC assumes arsenic is 100% absorbed in the
Gl track, however the ingestion component of the USEPA risk-based Regional Screening Levels
(RSLs) assume that only 60% of the arsenic in soil will be absorbed in the Gl track (USEPA, 2012;

2019).

TCHC proposes to modify the default value of 100% by using a site-specific arsenic RBA, to be
determined as proposed in Appendix A.

215 Exposure Duration (ED)

ED represents the number of years that individuals may be exposed to contaminants at their
residence or workplace. The generic Part 201 default assumption for residential exposure
duration is 30 years, based on U.S. EPA’s recommendations for evaluating reasonable maximum
residential exposures. The value was based on the national upper bound (90th percentile) for
time spent at one residence that was presented in the 1989 Exposure Factors Handbook.

During their evaluation of “best available information”, EGLE identified updated recommendations
based on 2008 data from U.S. Census Bureau, leading to an ED value of 32 years reflecting the
90" percentile of the distribution of time at current residence.

TCHC reviewed historic lease terms for the Orchardview Townhomes. The 90th percentile of
lease-length is approximately 6 years, suggesting that current exposure potential is much lower
than the generic assumption. There are currently no land use restrictions to administratively limit
ED at the property, and such a restriction would not be consistent with the objective of developing
an unrestricted site-specific DCC. Consequently, TCHC proposes to use an ED of 32 years based
on best available information.

21.6 Exposure Frequency - Ingestion (EF)

The default ingestion exposure frequency of 350 days per year (d/y) assumes daily direct contact
with soil, allowing for 15 days away from home per year. The default value is not consistent with
site-specific exposure because it does not account for reduced EF due to snow cover.

EGLE retained the value of 350 d/y for EF; in their 2016 evaluation of “best available information”
(MDEQ, 2016), but adjusted according to the following assumptions:

o Direct ingestion of soil will occur only on days when not limited by snow cover or away
from home on vacation (275 d/y), however,

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 RAWP\TCHC RAWP docx

123



o [ngestion of dust will occur every day that the resident is home, including days when soil
is covered by snow (350 d/y).

To maintain a single value for EF; (350 d/y) in the exposure algorithm, reduced exposure during
winter months was accounted for within the soil ingestion rate factor. Derivation of the soil
ingestion rate using EGLE best available information is presented in Appendix C.

TCHC proposes to use the default EF; of 350 d/y, accounting for reduced exposure during snow
cover days within the soil ingestion rate variable.

21.7 Exposure Frequency - Dermal (EFg4)

The default dermal exposure frequency is 245 d/y assuming reduced EF during 120 days of snow
cover per year. Snow cover days were estimated without reference to historic climatological data.

During their evaluation of “best available information” (MDEQ, 2016), EGLE identified a dataset
indicating that Michigan experiences an average of 78 days annually with air or soil temperatures
below freezing, and assumed that dermal exposure would not occur under such conditions. EGLE
further assumed that residents would be away from home 15 d/y, 12 of which would occur when
snow cover was not present, resulting in a dermal exposure frequency of (365-78-12) 275 dly.

The EGLE determined best available information is likely to over estimates EF 4 at the site because
Grand Traverse County experiences greater than average annual snow cover days.

TCHC identified a dataset recording the number of days annually with snow cover greater than
one inch. The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), National Center for
Environmental Information (NCEI) maintains a Global Summary of the Year (GSOY) database
containing a record of Days with Snow Depth > 1 inch (DSND). This dataset was used to calculate
a site-specific EFq of 253 d/y. Refer to Appendix B for further documentation.

21.8 Age-adjusted Soil Ingestion Factor (IF)

The soil ingestion factor (IF) seeks to quantify the total amount of contaminated soil ingested on
a daily basis from ingestion of soil and soil-derived dust particles, according to Equation 2. The
IF is calculated based on expected ingestion rates and EF. The IF is age-adjusted because young
children (zero to six years) are expected to ingest soil at a higher rate than adults.

e The soil ingestion rate (IR) for children (IR;,100 mg/d) and aduits (IRs, 50 mg/d)
recommended by U.S. EPA, and used by EGLE, represents an estimate of the amount of
soil ingested throughout a day’s activities.

e The dust ingestion rate for resident children (IR4, 100 mg/d) and adults (IRga, 50 mg/d)
recommended by U.S. EPA, and used by EGLE, represent an estimate of the amount of
soil and dust ingested through ingestion during a day’s activities.

The combined IR is 200 mg/d for children and 100 mg/d for adults.

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 RAWPATCHC RAWR docx

124



In calculation of the IF, the ingestion rate is time weighted according to dermal exposure frequency
(EF4) to account for the assumption that incidental soil ingestion will not occur during days when
the ground is frozen or covered by snow, or when residents are away from the home on vacation.
TCHC is proposes a site-specific IF of 97 mg-yr/kg-d based on a site-specific EFq of 253 d/y, as

documented in Appendix C.

21.9 Ingestion Absorption Efficiency (AEi)

Generic criteria are calculated based on chemical-specific values for ingestion absorption
efficiency (AE;), as defined in Rule 20(3). If chemical-specific data is not available, then the AE;
is assumed to be 50% for inorganic substances. Alternative best available information was not

identified during this evaluation.

TCHC proposes to use an AE; of 50% based on default Part 201 assumptions.

2.1.10 Dermal Absorption Efficiency (AEq)

Generic criteria are calculated based on chemical-specific values for dermal absorption efficiency,
as defined in Rule 20(3). If chemical-specific data is not available, then the AE4is assumed to be
1% for inorganic substances. The default Part 201 chemical-specific value for arsenic is 0.03
(3%). Alternative best available information was not identified during this evaluation. Site-specific

determination of AE, is not proposed.

TCHC proposes to use an AEq of 3% based on default Part 201 chemical-specific value.

2.1.11 Age-Adjusted Dermal Factor (DF)

An age-adjusted dermal factor (DF) is calculated to represent dermal exposure over the childhood
and adult years at one residence over an assumed ED. Skin surface area, body weight and an
adherence factor for both children and adults are used to calculate DF according to Equation 3.

Using the residential exposure assumptions defined in Part 201, Rule 20, the calculated DF is
353 mg-yr/kg-day.

During their evaluation of “best available information”, EGLE (MDEQ,2016) identified 2011 U.S.
EPA data that provided updated “best available information” for skin surface area of children zero
to six years old (2,400 cm?) and adults (6,000 cm?); updated adherence factors for children (0.3)
and adults (0.07); and updated body weight factor for adults (80 kg). Using these factors, along
with an updated ED for adults (26 years) together with the generic assumption for children (6
years) (total ED of 32 years) results in a DF of 425 mg-yr/kg-day.

TCHC proposes to use a DF of 425 mg-yr/kg-day based on “best available information”.

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 RAWP\TCHC RAWP docx

125



3.0 DERIVATION OF SITE-SPECIFIC RESIDENTIAL DIRECT CONTACT CRITERIA

Exposure assumptions used in development of the DCC can generally be classified in two
categories: (1) exposure assumptions related to land-use, such as exposure duration, and (2)
other factors including site-specific and chemical-specific factors intrinsic to specific conditions at
the site, such as the bioavailability of compounds at the site and climatological factors. An
evaluation using modified DCCs based on a restricted land use and limiting exposure patterns
(for example a recreational scenario, instead of a residential scenario) may require administrative
controls to ensure that future land use is consistent with the evaluation. An evaluation using
modified DCCs based on site-specific factors intrinsic to the property location and chemical-
specific properties at the site is likely to require no administrative controls, resulting in an
unrestricted residential criterion. The objective of this response activity work plan is to develop a
DCC appropriate to evaluate unrestricted residential direct contact with arsenic.

The only site-specific exposure assumptions proposed in development of the site-specific DCC
are EF, based on average annual snow cover, and RBA, which are both intrinsic to the site
location or chemical-specific conditions. Note that a site-specific IF has been calculated based
on the proposed site-specific EF. Consequently, areas of the property with residual arsenic
concentrations below the site-specific DCC would be eligible for an unrestricted residential no

further action determination.

3.1 CALCULATION OF SITE-SPECIFIC DCC
Exposure assumptions were selected from the following options:

(1) Generic exposure assumptions as codified in Part 201, Rule 20,

(2) Best available information as determined during a recent EGLE comprehensive cleanup
criteria evaluation (MDEQ, 2016), if available, and

(3) Site specific exposure values.

Selected exposure factors are summarized in Table 1, and were used with equations 1 through 3
above to develop a site-specific unrestricted residential DCC.

Using a site-specific value for dermal exposure frequency (253 d/y) and best available information
for other factors, the calculated site-specific unrestricted residential DCC for arsenic in soil is 11

mg/kg.

The current Part 201 criteria assume arsenic is 100% absorbed. Current U.S. EPA risk-based
screening levels assume that only 60% of the arsenic in soil will be absorbed in the stomach
(USEPA, 2012; 2019). If site-specific testing determines that the RBA is 70% or less, residual
arsenic concentrations at the property will be below site-specific unrestricted residential criteria.

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 RAWP\TCHC RAWP . docx

126



4.0 PRELIMINARY RISK EVALUATION

The Brownfield Assessment included a comprehensive evaluation of arsenic occurrence in soil at
17 different Decision Units (DU) (Figure 1). Arsenic was observed at concentrations exceeding
generic cleanup criteria for unrestricted residential land use (7.6 mg/kg), indicating that additional
evaluation was warranted to assess the potential for exposure through direct contact with soil.

Substituting a site-specific value for EF (253 d/y) and best available information for other generic
assumptions results in a site-specific criterion of 11 mg/kg. Arsenic concentrations at occupied
DUs are below 11 mg/kg, indicating that there is no potentially unacceptable risk from direct
contact associated with arsenic on the occupied portions of the property.

Arsenic concentrations on the unoccupied portion of the property range between 11 and 16
mg/kg, indicating that additional site-specific evaluation or response is warranted. If results of the
proposed RBA analysis determine that arsenic is less than 70% available, the site-specific criteria
will be above 16 mg/kg, indicating that the entire property would be eligible for an unrestricted
residential no further action determination.

If RBA is above 70%, additional site-specific evaluation and/or due care measures will be
implemented to assure potential direct contact health risks are managed appropriately.

TCHC is currently pursuing barrier fencing as an interim measure to reduce access to the
unoccupied portion of the property while additional evaluations are under consideration.

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 RAWP\TCHC RAWP docx

127



5.0 REFERENCES

(MDEQ, 2016) Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels Development and Application (Draft),
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, Remediation and Redevelopment Division,

Lansing, Michigan, June 2016.

(U.S. EPA, 2012) Compilation and Review of Data on Relative Bioavailability of Arsenic in Soil,
OSWER 9200.1-113.

(U.S. EPA, 2019) Regional Screening Levels (RSLs) - User's Guide 5.10 Arsenic.
https://www.epa.gov/risk/regional-screening-levels-rsis-users-quide

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 RAWP\TCHC RAWP.docx

128



TABLES

129



Qrchardview Townhomes
Wood Project Number: 3310190007

Table 1: Exposure Factors and Site-Specific Direct Contact Criterion for Arsenic

September 2019
Final

MDEQ 2016 Best Available
Variable Symbol Units Part 201 Rule 20 Update Site-Specific Informaiton
Direct Contact Criterion Ja/ky 7,500 3,100 _11.000
Target Risk Level TR - 1.00E-05 1.00E-05 -- 1.00E-05
Areveraging Time AT days 25550 28470 - 28470
Conversion Factor CF ug/kg 1.00E+09 1.00E+09 -- 1.00E+09
Oral Cancer Slope Factor SF ma/kg-day 1.5 1.5 - 1.5
Ingestion Exposure Frequency|  EF; days/year 350 350 - 350
Ingestion Adsorption Efficiency| AE; - 0.5 0.5 - 0.5
Dermal Exposure Frequency| EFy days/year 245 275 253 253
Dermal Adsorption Efficiency| AEq - 0.03 0.03 - 0.03
Age-Ajusted Soil Ingestion actor \ 114 101 78
Soil Ingestion Rate (age 1 -6)| [Rage 16 mg/day 200 179 139 139
Exposure Duration (age 1 - 6)| EDags 16 years 6 6 - 6
Body Weight (age 1 - 6)| BWage 1.6 kg 15 15 -- 15
Soil Ingestion Rate (adult)] IRaqut mg/day 100 89 69 69
Exposure Duration (adult)] EDagut years 24 26 - 26
Body Weight (adult)] BWaau kg 70 80 - 80
Age-Adjusted Soll Dermal Facta DF ng-yrikg-day 353 399 399
Skin Surface Area (age 1-6)| SAage 16 cm*/event 2670 2400 - 2400
Event Frequency EV event/day 1 1 -- 1
Soil Adherence Factor (age 1-6)| AFaga 16 mg/cm 0.2 0.3 - 0.3
Exposure Duration (age 1 - 6)| EDgge 1.5 yaers 6 6 - 6
Body Weight (age 1 - 6)| BWage 1 -6 kg 15 15 - 15
Skin Surface Area (adult)] SAaaut cm*/event 5800 4900 -- 4900
Soil Adherence Factor (adult)| AFagui mg/cm® 0.07 0.07 -- 0.07
Exposure Duration (adult)] EDaqu years 24 26 - 26
Body Weight (adult)] BWaaun kg 70 80 - 80

Caiculated

PATCHC - Orchard ViewiReports\1909 RAWP\Tablesilbls

Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc.

130



FIGURES

131



Legend

Surface Soil Decision Unit Area
QOccupied Area
Unoccupied Are:

‘ L4

- ssouos
- G-8in:16ppm

' &12in:9.3ppm

11 ppm &12In: 15 ppm

ARSENIC IN SOIL
10200 E CARTER ROAD
TRAVERSE CITY, MICHIGAN
Figure 1

132



APPENDIX A

Technical Support Document, Work Plan for Derivation of Site-Specific Relative
Bioavailability of Arsenic in Soil

133



Memo

To File File no 3310190007
From Robert Lint cc
Date September 18, 2019

Subject Technical Support Document
Work Plan for Derivation of
Site-Specific Relative Bioavailability of Arsenic in Soil
Orchardview Townhomes
Traverse City, Michigan

This work plan details an approach to determination of the site-specific arsenic relative
bioavailability (RBA) for use in subsequent derivation of a site-specific direct contact criterion
(DCC) for arsenic in soil at the Orchardview Townhomes facility.

The biological significance of arsenic can change depending on it's physical and/or chemical
properties. Some forms of arsenic are less than 100% absorbed by the body, with some
percentage being excreted rather than absorbed. The current Part 201 criteria assume arsenic
is 100% absorbed, however the U.S. EPA risk-based screening levels assume that only 60% of
the arsenic in soil will be absorbed in the stomach (U.S. EPA, 2012; 2019). The site-specific
RBA will replace the default assumption of 100% or 1 used to generate the generic DCC.

Development of site-specific RBA includes an assessment of the in-vitro bioavailability (IVBA).
An IVBA assay is a laboratory test performed to simulate a digestive system, providing an
estimate of the amount of arsenic that may be available for absorption within the human body.
The IVBA results will be used to develop the RBA estimate for arsenic using a validated
IVBA:RBA regression model and a 95% UCL of the mean estimation using the ProUCL (5.1)
program. The selected RBA value will be incorporated into the calculation of a site-specific soil
DCC for arsenic and replaces the default assumption of 100% or 1 used to generate the generic
residential. Representative soil samplies will be collected for the IVBA assay laboratory test.

Sample Collection

The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ), now known as the Michigan
Department of Environment, Great Lakes and Energy (EGLE), complete a Brownfield
Redevelopment Assessment for the facility (MDEQ, 2012). The assessment included a
comprehensive characterization of arsenic occurrence in soil at 17 decision units (DU) (Figure
1). Arsenic concentrations for the residentially occupied decision units ranged between 4.2 and
10 mg/kg. While slightly above the generic residential DCC of 7.6 mg/kg, these concentrations
are below a preliminary site-specific DCC of 11 mg/kg, based on a site-specific exposure
frequency factor.

Arsenic concentrations at unoccupied decision units DU-1 through DU-6 range between 11
mg/kg and 16 mg/kg. These concentrations exceed the generic and preliminary site-specific

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 TM - Bicavaitability of AS\Site-Specific RBA docx

134



DCC, suggesting additional evaluation of exposure risk is warranted in these DUs. Soil sample
collection for [VBA analysis will be from unoccupied decision units.

Two composite soil samples (12 total) will be collected from each DU (DU-1 through DU-6).
Composite samples will consist of soil collected within each DU from 5 random locations at a

depth of 0 to 12 inches.

A stainless-steel probe will be used to collect 5 aliquots in a systematic random fashion from
each selected DU. Surface vegetation and excess organic material will be removed from each
aliquot prior to placement in a plastic bag for mixing and homogenization. Once mixed,
composite samples will be placed in laboratory supplied containers and transport under chain of
custody according to laboratory supplied protocol.

Because the arsenic contamination is from a single source, namely agrichemical use, the RBA
value derived from these samples will be applicable to all areas of the facility.

Selected IVBA Method

As per U.S. EPA (2017b):

The IVBA assay for predicting RBA of arsenic in soil is the same extraction procedure validated
for predicting the RBA of lead in soil. In brief, the [VBA assay consists of incubating a 1 g soil
sample with end-over-end mixing in 100 mL of 0.4 M glycine buffer (pH 1.5) for 1 hour at 37°C

(body temperature).

ACZ Laboratories of Steamboat Springs, Colorado, is one of only a few commercial laboratories
in the United States that has developed reactors to perform the IVBA assay. ACZ has been
selected to perform the I[VBA analysis in accordance with U.S. EPA procedures and in
accordance with recommendations of the Interstate Technology Regulatory Council (ITRC)
Bioavailability of Contaminants in Soil guidance (2017).

IVBA:BA Model
As per U.S. EPA (2017b):
The endpoint of interest for risk assessment is a prediction of the oral RBA of arsenic in soil

(ratio of oral bioavailability of arsenic in soil to that of water-soluble arsenic) based on a

measurement of IVBA of arsenic in soil (solubility of arsenic in soil at gastric pH). The test soil
sample is assayed for IVBA, and the corresponding RBA is predicted from a regression model
relating IVBA and RBA. This same approach has been validated by EPA for predicting RBA of

lead in soil from [VBA.

In simple terms, this method is based on the concept that solubilization of metals in
gastrointestinal fluid is a predictor of bioavailability in vivo (see also ITRC, 2017). IVBA
measures the extent of metal solubilization in an extraction solvent that resembles gastric fluid.
IVBA results are then used to predict the in vivo RBA using a model developed by U.S. EPA,
which established that a strong correlation exists between the in vivo and in vitro results (U.S.
EPA, 2017b). The regression model used is based on a meta-analysis of data from studies in
mice and swine. IVBA and RBA measurements from 83 soils collected from different sites and
mineral types were paired together. The paired IVBA and RBA measurements for each soil
sample were included in a weighted linear regression model in which [VBA and RBA were
based on their respective variances (1/variance). The estimated slope is 0.79 + 0.01 and the

2
135

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 TM - Bioavailability of AS\Site-Specific RBA.docx



intercept is 3.0 + 0.1. The model used for predicting RBA from IVBA for arsenic is (U.S. EPA,
2017b):

RBAarsenic = ((0.79 x [IVBA (%)/100]) + 0.03) x 100

Actual RBA values may be higher or lower than the calculated value. This model explains
approximately 87% of the variance in RBA (weight-adjusted R2 = 0.87). The 95% prediction limit
for a single RBA measurement was +19% RBA (U.S. EPA, 2017b). Further details of the

derivation of the regression model is provided in Diamond et al.

Derivation of the RBA Estimate
IVBA results will be converted to RBA using EPA methods (U.S. EPA, 2017a), as described in

the preceding section. RBA calculations will be performed for all 12 soil samples collected as
described above.

A single RBA will be calculated. To arrive at a single value, a 95% UCL will be calculated using
the most recent version of U.S. EPA ProUCL software (ProUCL 5.1: U.S. EPA, 2015).

3

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 TM - Bioavailabilily of AS\Site-Specific RBA.docx

136



References

ITRC (2017), Interstate Technology Regulatory Council (ITRC), Bioavailability of Contaminants
in Soil guidance, November 2017.

MDEQ (2012), Brownfield Redevelopment Assessment Report for Orchardview, 10200 East
Carter Road, Traverse City, Michigan, Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, Site
Assessment and Site management Unit, Lansing, Michigan, September 24, 2012.

MDEQ (2015), Part 201 Generic Exposure Assumption Values Update, Technical Support
Document, Soil Direct Contact Exposure Frequency (EF), Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality, Remediation and Redevelopment Division, Lansing, Michigan,

September 2015.

MDEQ (2016), Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels Development and Application (Drafft),
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, Remediation and Redevelopment Division,
Lansing, Michigan, June 2016.

U.S. EPA (2012), Compilation and Review of Data on Relative Bioavailability of Arsenic in Soil.
OSWER 9200.1-113.

U.S. EPA (2017a), Standard Operating Procedure for an In Vitro Bioaccessibility Assay for Lead
and Arsenic in Soil. OLEM 9200.2-164. April 2017.

U.S. EPA, (2017b), Validation Assessment of In Vitro Arsenic Bioaccessibility Assay for
Predicting Relative Bioavailability of Arsenic in Soils and Soil-like Materials at Superfund Sites.

OLEM 9355.4-29.

U.S. EPA (2019), Regional Screening Levels (RSLs) - User's Guide 5.10 Arsenic.
https://www.epa.gov/risk/regional-screening-levels-rsis-users-quide

Wood (2019), Technical Support Document - Site-Specific Soil Ingestion Factor, Orchard View
Townhomes, Wood Environment and Infrastructure Solutions, Inc., Traverse City, Michigan,

September 2019.

4
137

P:ATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 TM - Bioavailabilily of AS\Site-Specific RBA docx



10200 E CARTER ROAD
TRAVERSE CITY, MICHIGAN

Legend
Surtace Soil Decision Unit Area||

Qccupied Area
Unocoupled Atea

: L

ARSENIC SOIL CONCENTRATIONS

SHALLOW & DEEP
wood.

Figure 1

e e - i VN 5 | AN S o i A o by

138



APPENDIX B

Technical Support Document, Site-Specific Exposure Frequency Factor

139



Memo

To File File no 3310190007
From Robert Lint cc
Date September 25, 2019

Subject Technical Support Document
Site-Specific Exposure Frequency Factor
Orchardview Townhomes
Traverse City, Michigan

This memo describes development of a site-specific exposure frequency (EF) value to support
derivation of site-specific direct contact criteria for arsenic in soil at the Traverse City Housing
Commission (TCHC) Orchardview Townhomes property. The EF parameter represents the
number of days per year that a resident is expected to be exposed to arsenic in soil through the
direct contact exposure pathway. Direct contact exposure is expected to occur through dermal
absorption and ingestion of contaminated soil. Ingestion of contaminated soil is further
expected to occur both through direct ingestion of soil and ingestion of dust. The exposure
frequency for ingestion (EFi) and dermal contact (EF4) are considered separately.

Part 201 Generic Exposure Assumptions

The generic exposure frequency for ingestion (EF;) is 350 days per year, based on U.S. EPA’s
recommendation for evaluating reasonable maximum exposures (MDEQ, 2015). The generic
EFi assumes that a resident will be away from home on vacation for 15 days per year but does
not account for reduced exposure during periods of snow cover.

The generic EF; does not account for reduced exposure frequency due to snow cover based on
the assumptions that dust exposure can occur during the winter months, and because soil
ingestion rates available in the source documents do not differentiate between soil and dust

ingestion.

The generic exposure frequency for dermal contact (EFq4) is 245 days per year based on U.S.
EPA’s recommendation to consider local weather conditions when determining EF4 and that
dermal contact will not occur when ground is snow covered or frozen. The generic EFq further
assumes 120 days per year of snow cover and that vacation time occurs only during the winter.

Best Available Information (MDEQ, 2016)
The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ), now known as EGLE, retained the

value of 350 days per year for ingestion exposure frequency (EF;) in their 2016 evaluation of
“best available information” (MDEQ, 2016), based on the following assumptions:

e Direct ingestion of soil will occur only on days when not limited by snow cover or away
from home on vacation (275 days per year), and,

* Ingestion of dust will occur every day that the resident is home, including days when soil
is covered by snow (350 days per year).

140

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 TM - EF\Site-Specific EF docx



To maintain a single value for EF; (350 days per year) in the exposure algorithm, reduced
exposure during winter months was accounted for within the soil ingestion rate factor.
Derivation of the soil ingestion rate is presented in a separate support document (Wood, 2019).

In development of dermal exposure frequency (EFq4), EGLE identified a dataset indicating that
Michigan experiences an average of 78 days per year with air or soil temperatures below
freezing and assumed that dermal exposure would not occur under such conditions. EGLE
further assumed that residents would be away from home 15 days per year, 12 of which would
occur when snow cover was not present, resulting in a dermal exposure frequency (EFg) of
(365-78-12) 275 days (MDEQ 2015).

Best Available Site-Specific Information

In development of a site-specific dermal exposure frequency (EF4), TCHC identified a dataset
recording the number days annually with snow cover greater than one inch. The National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), National Center for Environmental
Information (NCEI) maintains a Global Summary of the Year (GSQY) database containing a
record of Days with Snow Depth > 1 inch (DSND) at ten recording stations (Table 1) in Grand

Traverse and surrounding counties (Figure 1).

The database contains 289 individual records covering a 30-year period from 1989 to 2018.
None of the stations contained a complete record. The following evaluation makes no attempt
to extrapolate for missing data. Because EF4 represents average exposure frequency during
the entire exposure duration, we examined the central tendency of the data by calculating the
arithmetic mean (average) of the normally distributed data.

We first examined average annual snow cover days by recording station and found a range
between 100 and 120 days (Table 2). Stations in Fife Lake and Northport exhibited the greatest
number of snow cover days and are expected to be biased high due to local lake-effect snow
conditions. Average snow cover days for the four stations closest to the property ranged
between 101 and 104 days. Data from these stations were selected as “best available
information” for further analysis (Table 3). The average snow cover days by station was
calculated as 102 days per year.

We also examined average snow cover days by year (Table 3). During 13 years of the 30-year
record, only one of the selected stations reported data. No data was available from 1998.
These years were not considered in the average by year. Average snow cover by year ranged
from 71 to 134 days, with an average of 101 days.

Finally, we calculated an average of all records from the selected stations for the period
between 1989 and 2018 to come up with an average of 102 days per year with snow cover
greater than one-inch depth. Based on the site-specific data, best available information for
average snow cover days at the Orchardview property is 102 days per year.

A site-specific dermal exposure frequency EF4 is proposed assuming that dermal contact will
not occur during 102 snow cover days or during the prorated portion of vacation days taken
when snow cover is not present (15 days * (365d-102d)/365d = 11 days).

The proposed best available site-specific dermal exposure frequency value is,

141

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1809 TM - EF\Site-Specific EF docx



o _365d_102d 11d_252d
1=y y y y

Following previous convention for handling ingestion exposure frequency EF;, we will retain the
generic EF; of 350 days per year and account for reduced exposure during snow cover days
during calculation of the soil ingestion rate (Wood, 2019).

References

(MDEQ, 2015), Part 201 Generic Exposure Assumption Values Update, Technical Support
Document, Soil Direct Contact Exposure Frequency (EF), Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality, Remediation and Redevelopment Division, Lansing, Michigan,

September 2015.

(MDEQ, 2016), Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels Development and Application (Draft),
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, Remediation and Redevelopment Division,
Lansing, Michigan, June 2016.

(Wood, 2019), Technical Support Document - Site-Specific Soil Ingestion Factor, Orchard View
Townhomes, Wood Environment and Infrastructure Solutions, Inc., Traverse City, Michigan,

September 2019.

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 TM - EF\Sile-Specific EF docx

142



Orchardview Townhomes

Wood Project Number: 3310190007

Table 1 Recording Stations

September 2019

Final

STATION NAME LATITUDE LONGITUDE
USROOOOMBRR  BEAR MICHIGAN, MI US 44.8019 -86.0508
US1MIBZ0001 BENZONIA 5.3 S, Ml US 44,5398 -86.1065
USC00200758 BEULAH 7 SSW, MI US 445316 -86.1311
USC00202783 FIFE LAKE 2 WNW, Mi US 44.5848 -85.3653
USC00202788 FIFE LAKE 3 WSW, MI US 44.5650 -85.4133
USC00202984 FRANKFORT 2 NE, MI US 44.6480 -86.2100
USC00204399 KINGSLEY 2 WSW, MI US 44.5694 -85.5722
USC00205097 MAPLE CITY, Mi US 44 8550 -85.8352
USC00206007 NORTHPORT 2 W, MI US 45.1322 -85.6472
US1MILLOOG1 NORTHPORT 5.0 SSW, M! US 45.0615 -85.6486
USC00206012 NW MICHIGAN RES FARM, MI US 44.8830 -85.6752
USC00206158 OLD MISSION 3 SSW, MI US 44.9215 -85.5161
USw00014850 TRAVERSE CITY CHERRY CAPITAL AIRPORT, Mi 44.7408 -85.5825
USC00208249 TRAVERSE CITY MUNSON, MI US 44,7607 -85.6443

Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc.

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 TM - EF\Tables\EF

Page 1of 1 143



Duzhastvany Tomromes Soptamber 2019
Wood Project Number: 3310190007 Final

Table 2 Days of Snow Cover Greater Than 1 Inch, Tricounty Area

TRAVERSE CITY
TRAVERSE CITY CHERRY CAPITAL
Name BEULAH FIFE LAKE 2 FIFE LAKE 3 FRANKFORT KINGSLEY 2 MAPLE CITY NORTHPORT  LEELANAU FARM MUNSON AIRPORT, Ml US
Slation ID_ USC00200758 USOO_EZDZT&S USCO&WE?&B US%ZBH‘ USC00204388 USC00205097 USCO0206007 USC00208012 USC00208249 LUSWO0014850
1988 = - - 128 - - - - - 122
1990 - - - - - - 104 - - as
1991 - - - 113 - - 120 - - 105
1992 - - - 122 - - 114 - - 93
1993 - - - 101 - - 112 - - 86
1994 - - - - - - 12 - - 94
1995 - - - 119 - - - - - 132
1898 - - - 132 - - - - - 123
1997 - - - 123 - - - - - 101
1998 - - - 80 - - - - - -
1909 - - - a0 - - 97 94 - 83
2000 - - - 94 - - 87 98 - -
2001 - - - 100 - - 104 98 - -
2002 - - - 95 - 118 - 120 102 -
2003 - - 99 77 - 96 99 101 101 -
2004 99 - 110 - 104 101 102 108 101 -
2005 110 - 128 130 101 125 - 114 104 -
2008 1] - - Kl 78 81 - 70 683 -
2007 101 - - - 108 - 124 12 -
2008 129 - - 136 126 136 139 128 -
2009 104 - - 110 108 113 17 107 109 -
2010 100 - - - 96 100 99 100 85 -
2011 06 - - 89 - 107 91 78 a8 -
2012 70 - - a3 - - 82 81 78 -
2013 128 151 - - - - 134 - 133 -
2014 118 128 - - - - 127 130 128 -
2015 87 84 - 896 B - 83 78 83 -
2018 94 113 - - - - 112 104 105 -
2017 85 99 - 85 - 91 92 84 86 -
2ma 115 144 - 133 - - 158 — 114 -
TRverage oy sranon 00 T20 T2 0% O3 TO% O TOT 0T bLik3
--no data
Source: NOAA NCEI GSOY DSND Datasel
hitps:fiwww. ncd v
Wood E: & Infr Inc.
Page 1of 1

S UITHG - St Vit O P E1T el ¥

144



September 2019

Orchardview Townhomes
Final

Wood Project Number: 3310190007

Table 3 Days of Snow Cover Greater Than 1 Inch, Selected Stations

Station Name MAPLE CITY, M| NW MICHIGAN  TRAVERSE CITY Jﬁggg‘s zi;!::'_
us RES FARM, MIUS MUNSON, MI US AIRPORT, Ml US
Station Number USC00205097 USC00206012 USC00208249 USW00014850 Average by Year
1989 - - - 122 -
1990 - - - 86 -
1991 - - - 105 -
1992 - - - 93 -
1993 - - - 86 -
1994 - - - 94 -
1995 - - - 132 -
1996 - - - 123 -
1997 - - - 101 -
1998 = - - - -
1999 - 94 - 83 89
2000 - 98 - - -
2001 - 96 - - -
2002 119 120 102 - 114
2003 96 101 101 - 99
2004 101 106 101 - 103
2005 125 114 104 - 14
2006 81 70 63 - 71
2007 - 124 112 - 118
2008 - 139 128 - 134
2009 113 107 109 -- 110
2010 100 100 95 - 98
2011 107 76 88 = 90
2012 - 81 78 - 80
2013 - - 133 - -
2014 - 130 126 - 128
2015 - 78 83 - 81
2016 - 104 105 - 105
2017 91 84 86 - 87
2018 = - 114 -- --
Average by Station 104 101 102 103

Average of all data = 102 days
Average of data by Station = 102 days
Average of data by Year = 101 days

Source: NOAA NCEI GSOY DSND Dataset
https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/cdo-web/search?datasetid=GSOY

Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc.
Page1of1 145

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 TM - EF\Tables\EF



Document Path: PATCHC - Orchard View\Drawings & Prints\Figure 1 - NOAA .mxd

®  NOAA WEATHER STATON LOCATIONS

g~

ORCHARD\VIEW

TOWNHOMES

NOAA WEATHER STATION
10200 E CARTER ROAD LOCATIONS

TRAVERSE CITY, MICHIGAN
FIGURE 1




APPENDIX C

Technical Support Document, Site-Specific Soil Ingestion Factor

147



Memo

To File File no 3310190007
From Robert Lint
Date September 25, 2019

Subject Technical Support Document
Site-Specific Soil Ingestion Factor
Orchard View Townhomes
Traverse City, Michigan

This memo describes development of a site-specific age-adjusted soil ingestion factor to
support derivation of site-specific direct contact criterion for arsenic in soil at the Traverse City
Housing Commission (TCHC), Orchardview Townhomes property. In development of a generic
residential age-adjusted soil ingestion factor and associated direct contact criteria, the Michigan
Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) assumes a soil ingestion rate
that represents an estimated amount of soil and dust ingested during a day’s activity. Intake for
children (< 6 years old) and adults are estimated separately, and together with exposure
duration and body weight assumptions, are used to calculate an age-adjusted soil ingestion
factor (IF) according to the following formula:

. IRage 1—5)“EDage 1—6)] [Radutt*EDadult

I¥ [ Bwage 1-6 * [ BWadult ] (1)

Where,
IRsoiliage 1-6 (Soil ingestion rate) = 200 mg/day
EDage 16 (Exposure Duration) = 6 years
BWis (Body Weight) = 15 kg
[Rsoivadutt (Soil ingestion rate) = 100 mg/kg
EDadui (Exposure Duration) = 24 years
BW aduit (Body Weight) = 70 kg

Part 201 Generic Exposure Assumptions

The generic residential soil ingestion rate assumption for children 6 years and younger is 200
milligrams (mg) per day, and for individuals over six years of age, 100 mg per day, based on
U.S.EPA guidance (MDEQ, 2015). This value considers both direct ingestion of soil (IRs) and
ingestion of dust particles (IRq) together in a single estimate. Exposure is assumed to occur 350
days per year over a 30-year exposure period.

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 TM - Ingestion\Site-Specific Ingestion.docx

148



Best Available Information

EGLE conducted an evaluation of “best available information” in 2016 (MDEQ, 2016). Following
an extensive review of available data sources (MDEQ 2015), EGLE concluded that the generic
assumptions “reflected best available information”, with two important caveats:

» Ingestion rates were identified separately for soil (IRs) and dust (IRq), allowing calculation
of exposure due to soil and dust ingestion separately, and

e Daily ingestion rates for soil (IRs) should be prorated to account for reduced exposure
during winter months when soil is snow covered or frozen. MDEQ retained the
assumption that dust ingestion would remain unchanged year-round, regardless of snow
cover.

e Exposure would occur over a 32-year duration (MDEQ, 2015a).

MDEQ prorated ingestion of soil and dust (IRss) based on the following formula:

. . IRgq*EF. IRy*(EFg—EF
Time weighted IR = [ SE'Fd ‘] + [ d (EF‘: S)] (2)
Where,
IRsd age 1-6 (Soil & dust ingestion rate) = 200 mg/day
IRd age 1-6 (Dust ingestion rate) = 100 mg/day
IRsd adutt (Soil & dust ingestion rate) = 100 mg/day
IR4 adutt (Dust ingestion rate) = 50 mg/day
EFq (Exposure frequency for dust) = 350 days per year
EFs (Exposure frequency for soil) = 275 days per year

Based in the above assumptions, MDEQ recommended a time-weighted soil ingestion rate of
179 mg per day for children and 89 mg per day for adults (MDEQ, 2015).

Best Available Site-Specific Information

A site-specific exposure frequency has been developed for the TCHC Orchardview Townhomes
property (Wood, 2019). TCHC proposes to use a site-specific time-weighted soil ingestion
factor (IF) for calculation of a site-specific direct contact criteria. Exposure assumptions for the
generic Part 201 criteria, EGLE 2016 updated best available information, and site-specific best
available information are summarized below:

Part 201 EGLE 2015 Site Specific
Generic Updated
Residential Residential
led age 1-6 200 1 79* 1 72*
IRd age 1-6 100 100 100
Ide adult 1 00 89* 86*
IR aduit 50 50 50
EFq4 350 350 350
EF; 350 275 253
2

PATCHC - Orchard View\Reports\1909 TM - Ingestion\Site-Specific Ingestion.docx

149



E Dage 1-6 6 6 6

EDaduit 24 26 26
BWage 1-6 1 5 1 5 1 5
BWadut 70 80 80
IF** 114 100.5 97

* Time-weighted soil ingestion rate based on partial exposure during days with snow cover. Calculated
with Equation 2. ** calculated with Equation 1.

The site-specific ingestion factor based on site-specific exposure frequency is 97 mg-yr/kg-d.

References

(MDEQ, 2015), Part 201 Generic Exposure Assumption Values Update, Technical Support Document,
Soil and Dust Ingestion, Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, Remediation and
Redevelopment Division, Lansing, Michigan, September 2015.

(MDEQ, 2015a), Part 201 Generic Exposure Assumption Values Update, Technical Support Document,
Exposure Duration (ED) and Averaging Time (AT), Michigan Department of Environmental Quality,
Remediation and Redevelopment Division, Lansing, Michigan, September 2015.

(MDEQ, 2016) Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels Development and Application (Draft), Michigan
Department of Environmental Quality, Remediation and Redevelopment Division, Lansing, Michigan,

June 2016.

(Wood, 2019), Technical Support Document - Site-Specific Soil Ingestion Factor, Orchard View
Townhomes, Wood Environment and Infrastructure Solutions, Inc., Traverse City, Michigan, September

2019.

PATCHC - Orchard View\Raports\1909 TM - Ingestion\Site-Specific Ingestion.docx

150



